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MOTICE is hereby given that the 41" Annual General Meeting of the members of Super Tannery Limited will be
held on Tuesday the 30" September 2025 at 9:00 a.m. at 187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur — 208010 at the
registered office of the Company to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March 2025 the Balance
Sheet as on that date and the reports of Directors’ and Auditors' thereon,

2. Todeclare Dividend,

3. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Vegarul Amin, who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment.

4. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Yogendra Singh Katiyvar, who retires by rotation and being eligible offers
himself for re-appointment,

5. To appoint M/S Kapoor Tandon & Company Chartered Accountants as Auditor of the Company and fix their
remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

6. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of
Companies Act 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
there off or the time being in force) read with Schedule V' to the Companies Act, 2013, and subject to approval of
Members at the next Annual General Meeting Mr. Iftikharul Amin (DIN: 00037424), be and is hereby re-
appointed as the Managing Director of the Company for a further period of 3 years w.e.f. 30.09.2025 on the
terms and conditions as approved by Nomination &Remuneration Committee of the Board and the Board of
Directors as mentioned in the draft of the agreement placed before the meeting duly initialised by the Chairperson
for the purpose of identification and on the following terms and conditions.:

1.SALARY:
Rs 2,00,000/- per month with such annual increment as may be decided by the Board subject to maximum salary

of Rs 3,50,000/- p.m.

2. COMMISSION AND PERFORMANCE LINKED INCENTIVE:

The director shall be paid with the performance linked incentive decided by the Board of Directors or a Committee
based on achievement of such performance parameters as may be determined by Board of Directors or a
Committee thereof from time to time provided that the total remuneration including salary and perguisites paid to
the director shall not exceed the limits laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act,
2013

3. PERQUISITES:
The Managing Director shall be entitled to the following perquisites:

1. Unfurnished accommodation, gas, electricity, water, furnishing, leave travel concession for self and family,
medical reimbursement, club fee, medical and personal accidental insurance in accordance with the rules of
the Company.

The aforesaid will be restricted to Rs 5 lacs per annum. The perquisites shall be evaluated, for the purpose of
above ceiling, as per Income Tax Rules, 1962,
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2. Company's contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or annuity fund will be restricted to the tax
exemption limit and gratuity shall be payable as per the rules of the Company. These shall not be included in
the computation of perguisites.

3. The Company will provide a car and telephone at his residence. The use of car for the purpose of Company's
business and telephone at residence will not be considered as perquisites.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Director be and is hereby authorized to revise the remuneration of Mr.
Iftikharul Amin, within the limits as specified in Schedule V of the Act in such manner as the Board may consider
proper.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial yvear closing on or after 31st March 2025, the Company has
no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company may pay to Mr. Iftikharul Amin, Managing Director
remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and other allowances not exceeding the ceiling limit as specified under
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time
beinginforce."

7. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 150,152 and any other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013,and subject to approval of
Members at the next Annual General Meeting Mr. Igbal Ahsan, (DIN: 00037445), be and is hereby re-appointed
asthe Joint-Managing Director of the Company for a further period of 3 years w.e.f.30.09.2025 on the terms and
conditions as approved by Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board and the Board of Directors as
mentioned in the draft of the agreement placed before the meeting duly initialed by the Chairperson for the
purpose of identification and on the following terms and conditions.:

1. SALARY:
Rs 2,00,000/- per month with such annual increment as may be decided by the Board subject to maximum salary
of Rs 3,50,000/-p.m.

2. COMMISSION AND PERFORMANCE LINKED INCENTIVE:

The director shall be paid with the performance linked incentive decided by the Board of Directors or a Committes
based on achievement of such performance parameters as may be determined by Board of Directors or a
Committee thereof from time to time provided that the total remuneration including salary and perquisites paid to
the director shall not exceed the limits laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act,
2013.

3. PERQUISITES:
The Joint-Managing Director shall be entitled to the following perquisites:

1. Unfurmished accommodation, gas, electricity, water, furnishing, leave travel concession for self and family,
medical reimbursement, club fee, medical and personal accidental insurance in accordance with the rules of
the Company.

The aforesaid will be restricted to Rs. 5 lacs per annum. The perquisites shall be evaluated, for the purpose of
above ceiling, as per Income Tax Rules, 1962,

2. Company's contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or annuity fund will be restricted to the tax
exemption limit and gratuity shall be payable as per the rules of the Company. These shall not be included in
the computation of perquisites.

3 The Company will provide a car and telephone at his residence. The use of car for the purpose of Company's
business and telephone at residence will not be considered as perquisites.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Director be and is hereby authorized to revise the remuneration of Mr.
Igbal Ahsan, within the limits as specified in Schedule V of the Act in such manner as the Board may consider
proper.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year closing on or after 31st March 2025, the Company has
no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company may pay to Mr. Igbal Ahsan, Joint-Managing Director
remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and other allowances not exceeding the ceiling limit as specified under
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force."

8. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149,150,152 and any other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule V to the Companies Act,2013.and subject to approval of
Members at the next Annual General Meeting Mr. Imran Siddiqui (DIN: 00037552),be and is hereby re-
appointed as the Whole Time Director of the Company for a further period of 3years w.e f.30.08.2025 on the
terms and conditions as approved by Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board and mentioned in the
draft of the agreement placed before the Board meeting duly initialed by the Chairperson for the purpose of
identification and on the following terms and conditions, Remuneration as mentioned in the explanatory
statement annexed hereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to revise the remuneration of
Mr. Imran Siddiqui, within the limits as specified in Schedule V of the Act in such manner as the Board may
consider proper.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year closing on or after 31st March, 2025, the Company has
no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company may pay to Mr. Imran Siddiqui, Whole time director,
remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and other allowances not exceeding the ceiling limit as specified under
Part Il of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force."

9. To consider and if thought fit , to pass with or without modification(s),the following resoclution as an Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149,150,152 and any other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act,2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013,and subject to approval of
Members at the next Annual General Meeting Mr. Arshad Khan, (DIN: 00037655) beandishereby re-
appointedasthe Whole Time Director of the Company fora further period of 3years w.e.£.30.09.2025 on the terms
and conditions as approved by Momination & Remuneration Committee of the Board and mentioned in the draft of
the agreement placed before the Board meeting duly initialed by the Chairperson for the purpose of identification
and on the following terms and conditions, Remuneration as mentioned in the explanatory statement annexed
hereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to revise the
remuneration of Mr. Arshad Khan, within the limits as specified in Schedule V of the Act in such manner as the
Board may consider proper.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year closing on or after 31st March, 2025, the Company has
no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company may pay to Mr. Arshad Khan, Whole time director,
remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and other allowances not exceeding the ceiling limit as specified under
Part Il of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force."

10. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Special
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11.

Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149,150,152 and any other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013,and subject to approval of
Members at the next Annual General Meeting Mr. Mohd. Imran, (DIN: 00037627), be and is hereby re-appointed
as the Whole Time Director of the Company for a further period of 3 years w.e.f.30.09.2025 on the terms and
conditions as approved by Nomination & Remunaration committee of the Board as mentioned in the draft of the
agreement placed before the Board meeting duly initialed by the Chairperson for the purpose of identification
and on the following terms and conditions, Remuneration as mentioned in the explanatory statement annexed
hereto,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to revise the remuneration of
Mr. Mohd Imran, within the limits as specified in Schedule V of the Act in such manner as the Board may consider
proper.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year closing on or after 31st March, 2025, the Company has
no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company may pay to Mr.Mohd Imran, Whole time director,
remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and other allowances not exceeding the ceiling limit as specified under
Part |l of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force "

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 181 of the Companies Act, 2013, consent of the members be and is
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to donate to charitable and other funds not directly
related to the business of the Company or the welfare of its employees up to the extent of Rs. 30.00 lakhs (Rupees
thirty lakhs only) during the financial year ending 31st March, 2026."

12. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without medification(s), the following reseclution as an Ordinary

Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013,
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation
24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Reqgulations, 2015 (*SEBI Listing Regulations"), other applicable laws/statutory provisions, if any, as amended
from time lo time, K.N Shridhar & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries (FCS NO- 3882) be and are
hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for term of five consecutive years commencing from
financial year 2025-26 till financial year 2029-30, at such fees, plus applicable taxes and other out-of-pocket
expenses as may be mutually agreed upon between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Secretarial
Auditor.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the members is hereby accorded to the Board to avail or obtain from
the Secretarial Auditor, such other services or certificates, reports, or opinions which the Secretarial Auditor may
be eligible to provide or issue under the Applicable Laws at a remuneration to be determined by the Board.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and to take all such steps as
may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

13. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Special

Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 188(1)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Meeting of Board and Its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re- enactment thereof for the time being in force),
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14.

and as per recommendation and approval of Momination and Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee
and approval of the shareholders be and is hereby accorded to enhance the prescribed limit of the salary payable
to Mr. Mubashirul Amin, holding an office or place of profit in the company, as computed under applicable
provisions of Companies Act 2013 and its allied rules for monthly remuneration of 4,50,000 (Four Lacs Fifty
Thousand )and other perquisities in accordance with the Company rule.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof) be and is
hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be considered necessary, desirable, or
expedient to give effect to this resolution, including making such modifications or changes therein as may be
required by any statutory authority.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 188(1)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Meeting of Board and Its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re- enactment thereof for the time being in force),
and as per recommendation and approval of Nomination and Remuneration Committtee and Audit Committee
and approval of the shareholders be and is hereby accorded to enhance the prescribed limit of the salary payable
to Mr.Umairul Amin, holding an office or place of profit in the company, as computed under applicable provisions
of Companies Act 2013 and its allied rules for monthly remuneration of 4,00,000 (FOUR LAKHS) and other
perqguisities in accordance with the Company rule.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof) be and is
hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be considered necessary, desirable, or
expedient to give effect to this resclution, including making such modifications or changes therein as may be
required by any statutory authority.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
for Super Tannery Limited

Place : Kanpur R.K. Awasthi
Date : 13th Aug. 2025 Company Secretary
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NOTES:

AMEMEER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT APROXY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND APROXY NEED NOT BE AMEMBER OF THE COMPANY.
THE PROXY IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE DEFOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE
COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the meeting are requested to
send a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at
the meeting.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from 16th September to
30th September 2025 (both inclusive date) for dividend.

Members are requested to note that, dividend if not in cashed for a consecutive period of 7 years from the
date of transfer to unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund ("IEPF”) The shares in respect of such un claimed dividends are also liable
to be transferred to the demat account of the |IEPF Authority. In view of this Membersiclaimants are
requested to claim their dividends from the Company, within the stipulated timeline. The Members whose
unclaimed dividends/shares have been transferred to IEPF, may claim the same by making an application
to the |IEPF Authaority, in Form Mo .|EPF § available on www.iepf.gov.in. The Members/claimants can file anly
one consolidated claim in a Financial Year as per IEPF Rules.

As you may be aware Board of Directors of your Company at their meeting held on May 29, 2025, have
declared a Dividend of Rs. 0.05/- per equity share (having a nominal value of Re. 01/- each) for the
Financial Year 2024-2025.

As you may be aware, in terms of the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 ('the Act’), as amended by the
Finance Act, 2020, dividend declared, paid and distributed by a Company on or after 1st April, 2020 shall be
taxable in the hands of the shareholders. The Company will, therefore, be required to deduct tax at source
atthe time of payment of the dividend at the applicable rates as per the provisions of the said Act.

Fursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 shareholders are entitled lo make nomination in respect of
share held by them in physical form. Shareholders desirous of making nomination are requested to send their
request in the prescribed Form to the Registrar and Transfer Agents, M/s. KFin Technologies Limited,
Hyderabad. Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to consult/contact with their respective
Depository Participant (DP) for availing nomination facility.

Members are requested to notify immediately change in their address, PIN code, if any to company at its
registered office by quoting their folio number,

Members’ proxies are requested to bring attendance slip duly completed for attending the meeting.

Brief Resume of all Directors including those proposed to be appointed, nature of their expertise in specific
functional areas, names of companies in which they hold Directorships and Memberships / Chairmanships and
Relationships between Directors inter—se as stipulated under Regulation27 of the listing agreement with the
Stock Exchanges in India, are provided in the report on Corporate Governance forming part of the Annual Report.

E-Voting Instructions

1

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 read with Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
sefting out the material facts and reasons in respect of the resolution as set out above, is annexed hereto and
forms part of this Motice.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 108and 110 of the Act read with the Rules made thereunder and General
Circular No. 09/2024 dated 19" September, 2024, other Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
{"MCA™) from time to time, and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated 3" October, 2024
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI") (“the Circulars”), companies have an oplion to

7
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seek the approval of the Members through Postal Ballot (via remote e-voting) for the above-mentioned
resolution, instead of getting the same passed at a General Meeting. Accordingly, if the resolution is approved by
the Members through Postal Ballot via remote e-voting, it shall be deemed to have been passed as if the same
has been passed at a General Meeting of the Members convened in this regard.

3. Dispatch of Notice through electronic mode

In accordance with the provisions of the circulars, this Motice is being sent through email only to Members whose
email |IDs are registered with KFin Technologies Limited (*KFin"), Registrar and Share Transfer Agent ("RTA") of
the Company, National Securities Depository Limited (*NSDL") and / or Central Depository Services (India)
Limited ("CDSL") (collectively referred to as Depositories or NSDL / CDSL) as at close of business hours on
23.9.2025 ("cut-off date”). As per the Circulars, physical copies of the Notice, Annual Reports are not being sent
to all the Members. Members are requested to provide their assent or dissent through remote e-voting only. In
respect of those members who have not registered their e-mail IDs, the Company has mentioned the documents
to be provided to KFin hereunder.

Members may note that the Notice will be available on the Company’s website www.supertannery.com,
website of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited ("BSE") at www.bseindia.com and on the website of KFin at
https://evoting.kfintech.com.

4. Registration of e-mail ID

Members who have not registered their email IDs are requested to do so at the earliest. Members holding shares

in:

= Electronic mode can register their email ID by contacting their respective Depository Participant{s)(*"DP™).

- Physical mode can register their email ID with theCompany or KFin. Requests can be emailed to
www.supertannery.com or einward.risi@kfintech.comor by registering with the first holder PAN at
https://kprism.kfintech.com/signup. Existing users can login through KPRISM
(https:/fkprism kfintech.com/). All updation has to be done through ISR Forms as prescribed by SEBI.

5. Members whose names appears in the Register of Members / List of Beneficial Owners as on the cut-off date
onlyi.e., 23.09.2025 shall be entitied to vote on the resolution set out in this Notice. A person whois nota Member
as on the cut-off date should treat this Motice for information purpose only.

6. Instructions for remote e-voting

i. Incompliance with the provisions of Sections 108 and110 of the Act read with the Rules as amended and
Regulation 44 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations"), as amended from time to time, the Company is
providing facility to the Members to exercise voting through electronic voting system (“remote e-voling”) on
the e-voting platform provided by KFin. The Members may cast their votes remotely, using remote e-voting
only on the dates mentioned hereunder. The instructions for remote e-voting forms part of this Notice.

ii. Facility to exercise vote through remote e-voting will be available during the following period:

Commencement of Remote e-voting End of Remote e-voting
27.9.2025 (9:00AM) 29.9.2025 (5:00PM)

iii. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by KFinfor voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is
cast by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently or cast the vote again.

iv. During the above period, Members of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialised form, ason 23.9.2025, i.e., cut-off date, may cast their vote by remote e-voting.

v.  M/s.K.N Shridhar and Associates, Practising Company Secretary, iis appointed as the Scrutinizer for
conducting the Postal Ballot only through remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. The
Scrutinizer's decision on the validity of remote e-voting will be final.
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vi. The process and manner for remote e-voting is as under:

d.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and

Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations

read with SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 9th December, 2020 relating to

‘e-voting Facility Provided by Listed Entities’ ("SEBI e-voting Circular”) the Members are provided with

the facility to cast their vote electronically, through the remote e-voting services provided by KFin, on the

resolutions set forth in this Notice. The instructions for remole e-voling are given herein below.

E-voting process has been enabled for all the individual demat account holders, by way of single login

credential, through their demat accounts / websites of Depositories / DPs in order to increase the

efficiency of the voting process.

Individual demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the

E-voting Service Provider ("ESP") thereby not only facilitating seamless authentication but also ease and

convenience of parlicipating in e-voting process. Members are advised to update their mobile number

and e-mail ID with their DPs to access e-voting facility.

The process and manner of remote e-voling is explained below:

i. Accessto Depositories e-voting system in case of individual Members holding shares in demat mode

ii. Access lo KFine-voting system in case of Members holding shares in physical and non-individual
Members in demat mode.

. AccesstoDepositories e-voting system in case of individual Members holding shares in demat mode.

Type of

shareholders

Login Method

Individual 1.  ForOTP based login you can click on

Shareholders holding https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You will have to
securities in demat enter your B-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification code and generate
mode with NSDL OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered email id/mobile number and click on login.

After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site

wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on the company name or e-Voling service

provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for
casling your vole during the remote e-Voling period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

2. Exlshng Internet-based Demat Account Statement (“IDeAS") facility Users:

i. \isit the e-services website of NSDL https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a
personal computer or on a mobile.

ii. Onthe e-services home page click on the "Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login”
which is available under ‘IDeAS' section. Thereafter enter the existing userid and
password.

iii. After successful authentication, Members will be able to see e-voting services
under Value Added Services'. Please click on "Access to e-voting” under e-voting
services, after which the e-voting page will be displayed.

iv. Clickoncompany name i.e. 'Super Tannery Limited' or ESPi.e. KFin.

v. Members will be re-directed to KFin's website for casting their vote during the
remote e-voling period.

3. Those not registered under IDeAS:

i.  \Visithitps:/feservices.nsdl.com for registering.

ii. Select“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at

https:/leservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReq.jsp

ii.  Visitthe e-voting website of NSDL https:/iwww.evoting.nsdl.com,

iv. Once the home page of e-voling system is launched, click on the icon "Login”

which is available under ‘Shareholder / Member’ section. Anew screen will open.

v.  Members will have to enter their User ID (i.e. the sixteen digit demat account

number held with NSDOL), password / OTP and a verification code as shown on
lhe screen.

vi. After successful authentication, Members will be redirected to NSDL Depository

site wherein they can see e-voling page.




SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

Type of

shareholders Login Method

vii. Click on company name i.e Super Tannery Limited or ESP name i.e KFin after
which the Member will be redirected to ESP website for casting their vote during
the remote e-voting period.

viii. Members can also download the NSDL Mobile App "NSDL Speede” facility by
scanning the OR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

"' AppStore B Google Play

Individual Members | 41,  Existing user who have opted for Electronic Access To Securities Information

holding securities in (“Easil Easiest”) facility:
demat mode with i. Wisit https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Home/Login or
CDSL www.cdslindia.com.

ii. ClickonMNew System Myeasi.

iii. LogintoMyeasioption under quick login.

iv.  Loginwith the registered user ID and password.

v.  Members will be able to view the e-voling Menu.

vi. The Menu will have links of KFin e-voting portal and will be redirected to the e-
voting page of KFin to cast their vote without any further authentication.

2. Usernotregistered for Easi/ Easiest
i. Visit https./iweb.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistrationor
https:/iweb_cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiestReqgistrationfor
registering,
ii. Proceedtocomplete registration using the DP ID, Client 1D (BO 1D), etc.
ii.  After successful registration, please follow the steps given in point no. 1 above
to cast your vote.

3. Alternatively, by directly accessing the e-voting website of CDSL

i, Visit www.cdslindia.com,

ii. Providedemataccountnumberand PAN.

ii. Systemn will authenticate user by sending OTP on registered mobile and email
asrecorded in the demat Account.

iv. After successful authentication, please enter the e-voting module of CDSL.
Click on the e-voting link available against the name of the Company, viz.
‘Super Tannery Limited’ or select KFin.

v. Members will be re-directed to the e-voting page of KFin to cast their vote
without any further authentication.

Individual Members | j,  Members can also login using the login credentials of their demat account through

login through their their DPs registered with the Depositories for e-voting facility.

demat accounts / i. Oncelogged-in, Members will be able to view e-voting option.

website of DPs ii. Upon clicking on e-voting option, Members will be redirected to the NSDL/ CDSL
website after successful authentication, wherein they will be able to view the e-voting
feature.

iv. Click on options available against 'Super Tannery Limited' or 'KFin'.
v.  Members will be redirected to e-voting website of KFin for casting their vote during
the remote e-voting period without any further authentication.

10



SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

Important note: Members who are unable fo refrieve User ID / Password are advised lo use Forgot user ID and
Forgot Password oplion available at respective websites.

Helpdesk for Individual Members holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depositoryi.e., NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Securities held with NSDL | Please contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call
at toll free no.: 1800 102 0990 and 1800 22 4430

Securities held with CDSL | Please contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at
022-62343625, 022-62343626, 022-62343259

ll. Access to KFin e-voting system in case of members holding shares in physical and non-individual
members in demat mode.

Members whose e-mail 1Ds are registered with the Company / DPs, will receive an e-mail from KFin which will
include details of E-\Voting Event Mumber (EVEN), USER |D and password. They will have to follow the following
process:

i.  Launchinternet browser by typing the URL: https:/femeetings.kfintech,com,

ii. Enter the login credentials (i.e., User |D and password). In case of physical folio, User 1D will be EVEN (E-
‘oting Event Number) xxxx, followed by folio number. In case of Demat account, User 1D will be yourDP 1D
and Client ID. However, if you are already registered with KFin for e-voting, you can use your existing User |D
and password for casting the vote.

iii. After entering these details appropriately, click on"LOGIN™.

iv. You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are required to mandatorily change your password.
The new password shall comprise of minimum 8 characters with at least one upper case (A- Z), one lower
case (a-z), one numeric value (0-9) and a special character (@ #.3%, etc..). The system will prompt you to
change your password and update your contact details like mobile number, e-mail ID efc. on first login. You
may also enter a secret question and answer of your choice to retrieve your password in case you forget it. It
is strongly recommended that you do not share your password with any other person and that you take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

v. Youneed tologin again with the new credentials.
vi. On successful login, the system will prompt you to selectthe "EVEN"i.e., " 41st AGM’ and click on “Submit”

vii. On the voting page, enter the number of shares (which represents the number of votes) as on the Cut-off
Date under "FOR/AGAINST" or alternatively, you may partially enter any number in “FOR" and partially
"AGAINST but the total number in "FOR/AGAINST" taken together shall not exceed your total shareholding
as mentioned herein above. You may also choose the option "ABSTAIN". If the Member does not indicate
either "FOR" or "AGAINST" it will be treated as "ABSTAIN" and the shares held will not be counted under
either head.

viii. Members holding multiple folios/demat accounts shall choose the voling process separately for each foliof
demat accounts.

ix. Incaseyoudonotdesire to cast yourvote, it will be treated as abstained.
¥.  Youmay then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on "Submit”.

¥i. Aconfirmation box will be displayed. Click "OK” to confirm else *“CAMCEL" to modify. Once you have voted on
the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. During the voting period, Members can login any
number of times till they have voted on the resolution,
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General Guidelines for Members:

1. Institutional members (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG
Format) of the relevant Board Resolution / Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signatures of the duly
authorised signatory(ies) who are authorised to vote on their behalf. The documents should be emailed to
einward.ris@kfintech.comwith the subjectline "Super Tannery Limited ",

2. Incase of any query and/ or assistance required, Members may refer to the Help & Frequently Asked Questions
("FAQs") available at the download section of https://evoting.kfintech.com or contact KFin at the email ID
evoting@kfintech.comor call KFin's toll free No.: 1800 309 4001 for any further clarifications/ technical
assistance that may be required.

Procedure for Registration of email and Mobile : securities in physical mode

Physical shareholders are hereby notified that based on the SEBI| Circular Number SEBI/HO/MIRSD-PoD-
1/PICIR/2023/37, dated March 16th 2023. All holders of physical securities in listed company shall register the postal
address with PIN for their corresponding folio number. Moreover to avail the online services the security holder can
register email ID. Holder can register/update the contact details through submitting the requisites ISR 1 form along
with the supporting details.

ISR 1 form can be obtained by the following link: https://ris kfintech.com/ client/services/fisc /default.aspx
ISR Forms and the supporting documents can be provided by one of the following modes:

= Through ‘In Person Verification® (IPN): the authorized person of the RTA shall verify the original decuments
furnished by the investor and retain copies with IPV stamping with date and initials; or

+  Through hard copies which are self-attested, which can be shared atthe address below; or

Mame: KFIN Technologies Limited
Address: Selenium Building, Tower - B.Plot No 31 &32, Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally, Hyderabad, Telangana India = 500032

Through electronic mode with e-sign by following the link: https:/fris. kfintech.com/client/services/isc/default. aspx#

Detailed FAQ can be found on the link: htips:/fris kfintech.com/fag.htm. For more information on updating the email
and Mobile details for securities held in electronic mode, please reach out to the respective DP(s), where the DEMAT
alcis being held.

EVEN (E Voting Event Number) User ID Password

By Order of the Board of Directors

for Super Tannery Limited

Place : Kanpur R.K. Awasthi
Date : 13th Aug. 2025 Company Secretary
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
{Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

ITEM No.B&T:

Mr. Iftikharul Amin was re- appointed as Managing Director in terms of resolution passed by the Board of Directors at its
meeting and approved by the shareholders of the company at the Annual General Meeting on 30th September 2022 for a
period of 3 years. The present term of office of Mr. ‘Iftikharul Amin, as a Managing Director of the company will be expiring
arn 29.09.2025. Subject to Shareholders approval, and based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committes, the Board of Directors, at their meeting held on 13.08.2025 have approved re-appointment of Mr. ‘Iitikharul
Amin, as Managing Director for a further period of 3 years from 30.09.2025.

Mr. Igbal Ahsan, was re-appointed as Joint Managing Director in terms of resolution passed by the Board of Directors at its
meeting and approved by the shareholders of the company at the Annual General Meeting on 30th September 2022 fora
period of 3 years. The present term of office of Mr. lgbal Ahsan, as Joint Managing Director of the company will be expiring
on 29.09.2025., Subject to Shareholders approval, and based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, the Board of Directors, at their meeting held on 13.08.2025 have approved re-appointment of the Joint
Managing Director of the company for a further period of 3 years from 30.09.2025,

The main terms and conditions of re-appointment of Mr. Iftikharul Amin, Managing Director, Mr. Igbal Ahsan, the Joint
Managing Director of the Company are given in the notice.

The Board of Directors recommends the Special resolutions set out in item no. 06&07 of the Motice for approval of the
shareholders.

This may also be treated as an abstract of terms of re-appeintment of Mr. Iftikharul Amin, Mr. Igbal Ahsan, under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Iftikharul Amin, Mr. Igbal Ahsan, the Directors seeking re-appointment and being relatives are interested in the
resolutions.

Brief particulars of the Managing Directors and Joint Managing Director are being given in the report on Corporate
Governance attached to Directors Report.

ITEMNO.8

The present term of office of Mr. Imran Siddigui, as a Whole Time Director of the Company will be expiring on 29.09.2025
hence based on recommendation of Momination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors at its meeting held
on 13.08.2025 have approved the re-appointment of Mrimran Siddiqui subject toapproval of Shareholders of the
company, fora further period of 3 years w.e.f. 30.09.2025, The main terms and conditions of re-appointment of Mr. Imran
Siddigui Whole Time Director of the Company are as under;

SALARY:
Rs 50,000/~ per month with such annual increment as may be decided by the Board subject to maximum salary of Rs
55,000/- per month.

PERQUISITES :
The Whole Time Director shall be entitled to the following perquisites:

1. Heshall be entitled to earned leave/Privilege leave on full pay and allowance as per rules of the company, but not mare
than forty-five days leaves for each completed year of services. Bonus as per the rules of the company will also be
available to him.

2. Company's confribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund will not be included in the computation
of the ceiling on perquisites to the extent, these either singly or put together, are not taxable under the Income Tax Act,
1961, Gratuity payable shall not exceed half a month's salary for each completed year of service.

3. The Company will provide a car and telephone at his residence. However, provisions of car for the purpose of
Company’s business and telephone at residence will not be considered as perquisites. Personal long distance calls
on telephone and use of car for private purpose shall be billed by the company.
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Perquisites will be restricted to an amount equal to annual salary or maximum Rs. 150,000/- per annum whichever is less.
The perquisites shall be evaluated, for the purpose of above ceiling, as per Income Tax Rules, 1962.

The terms and conditions of appointed of aforesaid Whole time Directors may be varied, altered or modified by the Board
from time to time within the maximum limit laid down in Schedule \ read with other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act. 2013 or any amendmentis made hereinafter in this regard.

Where in any financial year during the currency of the tenure of the Whole time Directors the Company has no profits or its
profits are inadequate, the Company will pay remuneration to Whole time Directors by way of salary and perguisites as
specified above as minimum remuneration, subject to compliance of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Schedule V thereto including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force.

The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution set out in Item no. 8 of the Notice, for approval of the
Shareholders.

This may also be treated as an abstract of terms of re-appointment of Mr, Imran Siddigui, under the provisions of Section
190 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Except Mr. Imran Siddiqui, none of Directors of the Company is in any way either directly or indirectly concerned or
interested in the resolution except as a shareholder in general.

Brief particulars of Mr. Imran Siddigui are being given in the Report on Corporate Governance attached with Director's
Report,

ITEMNO:9

The present term of office of Mr. Arshad Khan, as a Whole Time Director of the Company will be expiring on
29.09.2025 hence based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors at
its meeting held on 13.08.2025 have approved the re-appointment of Mr.Arshad Khan, subject to the approval of the
Shareholders of the company, for a further period of 3 years w.e.f. 30.09.2025. The main terms and conditions of re-
appointment of Mr. Arshad Khan, Whole Time Director of the Company are as under.

SALARY :
Rs 25,000/ per month with such annual increment as may be decided by the Board subject to maximum salary of Rs
35,000/- per month.

PERQUISITES:
The Whole Time Director shall be entitled to the following perquisites:

1. Heshall be entitied to earned leave/Privilege leave on full pay and allowance as per rules of the company, but not
more than forty five days leaves for each completed year of services. Bonus as per the rules of the company will
also be available to him.

2. Company's contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund will not be included in the
computation of the ceiling on perquisites to the extent, these either singly or put together, are not taxable under
the Income Tax Act, 1961, Gratuity payable shall not exceed hailf a month's salary for each completed year of
service.

3. The Company will provide a car and telephone at his residence. However, provisions of car for the purpose of
Company's business and telephone at residence will not be considered as perguisites. Personal long distance
calls on telephone and use of car for private purpose shall be billed by the company.

Perquisites will be restricted to an amount equal to annual salary or maximum Rs 150,000/- per annum whichever is
less. The perguisites shall be evaluated, for the purpose of above ceiling, as per Income Tax Rules, 1962,

The terms and conditions of appointed of aforesaid Whole Time Directors may be varied, altered or modified by the
Board from time to time within the maximum limit laid down in Schedule V read with other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act. 2013 or any amendments made hereinafter in this regard.

Where in any financial year during the currency of the tenure of the Whole Time Directors the Company has no profits
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or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay remuneration to Whole time Directors by way of salary and
perquisites as specified above as minimum remuneration, subject to compliance of the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Schedule V thereto including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being
inforce.

The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution set out in ltem no.9 of the Notice, for approval of the
Shareholders.

This may also be treated as an abstract of terms of re-appointment of Mr. Arshad Khan under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Except Mr. Arshad Khan, none of Directors of the Company is in any way either directly or indirectly concerned or
interested in the resolution except as a shareholder in general,

Brief particulars of Mr. Arshad Khan are being given in the Report on Corporate Governance attached with Director's
Report,

ITEMNO:10

The present term of office of Mr. Mohd Imran, as a Whole Time Director of the Company will be expiring on 29.09.2025
hence based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee, the Board of Directors at its meeting
held on 13.08.2025 have approved the re-appointment of Mr. Mohd Imran, as a Whole Time Director subject to the
approval of the Shareholders of the company, for a further period of 3 years w.e.f. 30.09.2025. The main terms and
conditions of re-appointment of Mr. Mohd Imran, Whaole Time Director of the Company are as under.

SALARY:
Rs 40,000/- per month with such annual increment as may be decided by the Board subject to maximum salary of Rs
50,000/- per month.

PERQUISITES :
The Whole Time Director shall be entitled to the following perquisites:

1. He shall be entitled to earned leave/Privilege leave on full pay and allowance as per rules of thecompany, but not
more than forty five days leaves for each completed year of services. Bonus as per the rules of the company will
also be available to him.

2. Company's contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund will not be included in the
computation of the ceiling on perquisites to the extent, these either singly or put together, are not taxable under
the Income Tax Act, 1961, Gratuity payable shall not exceed half a month's salary for each completed year of
service.

3. The Company will provide a car and telephone at his residence. However, provisions of car for the purpose of
Company's business and telephene at residence will not be considered as perquisites. Personal long distance
calls on telephone and use of car for private purpose shall be billed by the company.

Perquisites will be restricted to an amount equal to annual salary or150,000/- per annum whichever is less. The
perquisites shall be evaluated, for the purpose of above ceiling, as per Income Tax Rules, 1962,

The terms and conditions of aforesaid Whole Time Directors may be varied, altered or modified by the Board from time
to time within the maximum limit laid down in Schedule V' read with other applicable provisions of the Companies Act.
2013 or any amendments made hereinafter in this regard.

VWhere in any financial year during the currency of the tenure of the Whole time Directors the Company has no profits
or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay remuneration to Whole Time Directors by way of salary and
perquisites as specified above as minimum remuneration, subject to compliance of the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Schedule V thereto including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being
inforce.

The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution set out in Item no.10 of the Notice, for approval of the
Shareholders.

15



SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

This may also be treated as an abstract of terms of re-appointment of Mr. Mohd Imran as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Except Mr.Mohd Imran, none of Directors of the Company is in any way either directly or indirectly concerned or
interested in the resolution except as a shareholder in general.

Brief particulars of Mr. Mohd Imran are being given in the Report on Corporate Governance attached with Director's
Report.

ITEMNO: 11

It has been the policy of the company to contribute in those charitable funds, which serve the society at large or for the
welfare of its employees, whether such charitable institution are directly related or not with the business of the
Company, the action of the Board is taken keeping in mind the responsibility that the Company owes to society as well
as to full fill the requirement of CSR by way of promoting preventive health care, promoting education, including
special education etc. Sometimes contribution so made exceed the limit prescribed by the section 181 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Board can't do such welfare work, beyond prescribed limit, without the approval of the
members. The aggregate of such contribution during the year ending 31.03.2026 is likely to exceed the limit as
prescribe by the Act. Therefore, your permission is requested.

The Directors recommend the resolution set out in item no.11 of the Notice for approval of members.

Mone of the Director of the Company in any way whether, directly or indirectly, except as trustee of trust which receive
the fund, is interested or concerned in this resolution.

ITEMNO:12

In accordance with Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations”). In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 9 of the Companies {Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification{s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force)
("the Act”), every listed company and certain other prescribed categories of companies are required to annex a
Secretarial Audit Report, issued by a Practicing Company Secretary, to their Board's report, prepared under Section
134(3) of the Act. Furthermore, pursuant to recent amendments to Regulation 244 of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
every listed entity is required to conduct a Secretarial Audit and annex the Secretarial Audit Report to its annual report.
Additionally, a listed entity must appoint a Secretarial Audit firm with shareholder approval to be obtained at the
Annual General Meeting.

Accordingly, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has approved the
appointment of M/s. K.N Shridhar & Associales Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a
period of five years. The appointment is subject to shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting. While
recommending for appointment, the Board and the Audit Committee evaluated various factors, including the firm's
capability to handle a diverse and complex business environment, its existing experience in the Company's business
segments, its industry standing, the clientele it serves, and its technical expertise. It was found to be well-equipped to
manage the scale, diversity, and complexity associated with the Secretarial Audit of the Company.

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution for approval by the Members, as set out at ltem No. 12 of the
Notice.

Mone of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), or their relatives have any financial or other interest in the
proposed resolution.

ITEMNO:13

Pursuant to recommendation of the Momination and Remuneration Committee, Audit committee, provisions of
Section 188 (1) (f) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 15 of the
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Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 ("Act”) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-

enactments thereof for the time being in force), The board of directors of the company at its meeting have ratified and

accorded its approval for enhancement of the remuneration and to hold an office or place of profit by Mr.Mubashirul

Amin, , being a related party effective from 1st July 2025 in the Company. The Details of salary and other terms and

conditions of salary payable from the Company are given below:

{a) Existing Salary includes basic salary, HRA and other allowances 450000/~ per month payable to Mr. Mubashirul
Amin,

(b) Other Perguisites: He will be entitled to other perquisites including company's contribution to provident fund,
bonus and leave travel concession in accordance with the rules of the Company:.

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution set outin item No. 13 to be passed as a special resolution,
ITEMNO:14

Pursuant to recommendation of the Momination and Remuneration Committee, Audit committee, provisions of

Section 188 (1) (f) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 15 of the

Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (“Act”) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-

enactments thereof for the time being in force), The board of directors of the company at its meeting have ratified and

accorded its approval for enhancement of the remuneration and to hold an office or place of profit by Mr. Umairul

Amin, being a related party effective from1st July 2025 in the Company. The Details of salary and other terms and

conditions of salary payable from the Company are given below:

{a) Existing Salary includes basic salary, HRA and other allowances 4,00,000/- per month payable to Mr. Umnairul
Armin,

(b) Other Perquisites: He will be entitled to other perqguisites including company's contribution to provident fund,
bonus and leave travel concession in accordance with the rules of the Company.

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution set outin item No. 14 to be passed as a special resolution,

By Order of the Board of Directors

for Super Tannery Limited

Flace : Kanpur R.K. Awasthi
Date : 13th Aug. 2025 Company Secretary
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Dear Shareholder,

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting the 41st Annual Report on the business and operations
of the Company together with Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 317 March 2025:

FINANCIAL RESULTS Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
(Rs. in Lacs) {Rs. in Lacs)
PROFITS:
Profit before Interast, Depreciation & 2437.03 2018.54
extra-ordinary items
Less:
Interest 528.36 461.89
Depreciation 743.78 670.74
Exchange Fluctuation Loss/{gains) 00.00 00.00
Bad Debts written off 00.00 1372.14 28.80 1161.43
Profit before tax 1064.89 857.11
Less:
Provision for current tax 300.00 180.00
Provision for deferred tax 2.66 55.36
Income Tax relating to earlier Years 36.07 (338.73) 21.03 (£66.39)
Profit after tax 726.16 590.72
Add: 3755.94
Profit brought forward from previous year 4358.56
Other Comprehensive Income 10.21 4368.77 11.92 3767.86
Profit available for appropriation 5094.93 4358.59

NOTE : Figures of the previous year have been re-grouped/re-arranged in order fo make them comparable.

1. DIVIDEND AND RESERVES:

The Board of Directors of your Company take pleasure to recommend a dividend of Rs. 0.05(5%) per equity shares
of Re.1/each for the year ended 31st March, 2025.subject to approval of shareholders at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. The dividend if approved shall result in a payout of 9.14 % current year profit available for appropriation.
This makes the management investar friendly and creates more confidence to keep the investors interest at heart.

2. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
The extract of Annual Return as provided under sub-section (3) of section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act')in
prescribed form MGT-9 is uploaded on www .supertannery.com.

3. OPERATIONAL REVIEW:

During the year under review, the income from operation(Turnover) of the company was Rs 28,614.20 lacs as
against Rs 22,902.91 lacs during the last financial year, shows improvement in the operational income by
Rs. 51,517.11 lacs. The company overall growth is satisfactory despite recession in the market.

4. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2025 have been disclosed as per Division ||
of Schedule |ll to the Act.
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5. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

The Company has SEVEN Subsidiaries namely:

= SuperCorporation Limited

Aarifi Tanners Limited

Secure Safety Limited

Super Tannery (UK) Limited

SuperltaliaS.R.L

HX London Fashion Private Limited

Pioneer Investment FZNO

The Financial statement including Consolidated Financial statement and separate statement in respect of
each of its subsidiaries have also been placed on the website of the Company. A statement containing salient
feature of the Financial Statement of subsidiaries/associates companies is forming part of Annual Financial
Statement. The Annual Accounts of the subsidiary companies will be kept open for inspection by any
investor at the head office of the company and the subsidiary concerned.

6. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

During the period industrial relations have been extremely cordial. Employees cooperation and co-ordination had
been animportant factor in the growth of the organization.

7.EXPORT AWARD:

The Company received the State Export Award —Uttar Pradesh for the overall export performance during the year
2021-2022 from the Hon'ble Chief Minister Yogi Adityanath.

8.FIXED DEPOSITS:
The Company has not accepted/renewed any deposit during the year under review, under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under.

9. CREDIT RATING:
During the year under review Care Rating Limited reaffirmed the long-term rating of BEB on the bank borrowing of the
Company.

10. HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT:

Employees are vital to the Company. We have created a favorable work environment that encourages humble
relationship. We have also set up a scalable recruitment and human resources management process, which enables
us to attract and retain high caliber employees. The Company also has started with collaboration of UP Leather
Industries Association a training center for recruiting trained labors.

11. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMAN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSALACT, 2013:

Your company strongly believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for each and every individual
working for the Company through various intervention and practices. It is the continuous endeavor of the
Management of the Company to create and provide an environment to all its employees that is free from
discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.

During the year ended 31st March, 2025 no complaint pertaining to sexual harassment was received by the
Company.

12. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES :

There were 550 employees with the company as aton 31% March, 2025. The percentage increase in remuneration of
each Director and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) to the median of employees remuneration and the list of top 10
employees in terms of remuneration drawn as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 form part of
Annexure || tothis Board Report,

13. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING &
OUTGO:

The particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption etc. pursuant to Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with Rule B of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out in the Annexure forming part of this
Report.
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14. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUMNALS:
Mo significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals during the previous year which
may impact the going concern status of the Company's Operation in the future.

15. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:
There is no change in the nature of business during the financial year.

16. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:
The company do not have any material changes and commitments in the company between the end of the financial
year and date of report.

17. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISM:

To create enduring value for all stakeholders and ensure the highest level of honesty, and ethical behavior in all its
operations, the Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism named as SUPER Whistle Blower Policy' in addition to
the existing code of conduct that governs the action of its employees. This Whistleblower policy aspires to encourage
all employees to report suspected or actual occurrence(s) of illegal, Unethical or inappropriate events (behaviors or
practices) that effect Company’s interest/image. A copy of the Policy is available on the website of the Company and
may be accessed through the web link www:htpp;//supertannery.com

18. DIRECTORS & KMP:

In terms of Article 125 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Vegarul Amin and Mr. Yogendra Singh Katiyar
, Directors of the Company retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself
for his re-appointment. Brief resume of all the Directors, their expertise in specific functional areas and names of
other companies in which directorship held and the membership of committee of the Board as stipulated under the
listing Agreement are given in corporate governance annexure, attached to this report.

19. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
The Company has received declaration from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet
with the criteria of independence as prescribed under sub-section (6) of section 149 ofthe Companies Act, 2013,

20.POLICY ON DIRECTORS'APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:

For the purpose of selection of any Director, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee identifies persons of
integrity who posses' relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities required for the position and also takes
into consideration recommendation, if any received from any member of the Board. The Committee also ensures that
the incumbent fulfills such other criteria with regard to age and other qualifications as laid down under the Companies
Act, 2013 or other applicable laws.

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Momination & Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection,
appointment and remuneration of Directors & Senior Management.

The Remuneration Policy of the Company is disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms a part of
the report.

21. FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

In compliance with the requirements of Regulation 27 of the listing Agreement, the Company has put in place a
Familiarization Programme for the Independent Directors to familiarize them with the Company, their roles rights
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the Company in which Company operates, business model efc.

22, MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Independent Directors met once during the Financial Year pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 25 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013. The Meeting of the Independent Directors was conducted without the
presence of the Chairman, other Non-Independent Directors and the Management team of the Company.

23. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:
During the financial year seven board meetings were held in accordance with the applicable provisions.

24. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:
+  Audit Committee
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+  Momination and Remuneration Committes
+  Stakeholder Relationship Committee

+  Investor's Grievances Committee

+  Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

25. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company has complied with the requirements prescribed under the Secretarial Standards on:
+  Meetings of the Board of Directors (S5-1)

+  General Meetings (S5-2)

= Declaration of Dividend (55-3)

*+ Reporton Board of Directors (SS-4).

26. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD COMMITTEE AND DIRECTORS:
The Company conducted the annual performance evaluation of the board, its various Committees and the directors
individually. The performance of the board was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from all the directors.

27.REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
Pursuant to Regulation 27 of the Listing Agreement, a report on Corporate Governance is given in Annexure to this
report.

28. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Board has laid down policies and processes in respect of internal financial controls and such internal financial
controls were adequate and were operating effectively. The internal financial controls covered the policies and
procedures adopted by your Company for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of business including adherence to
your Company's policies, safeguarding of the assets of your company, prevention and detection of fraud and errors,
accuracy and completeness of accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial information.

29. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) read with Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 with
respect to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, itis hereby confirmed:

(i} Thatin the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(i) That the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period;

(iil} That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assels of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) That the Directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 on a going
concern basis.

(v) Senior management on the basis of criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness of
board processes, information and functioning, etc. Board is being involved and briefed on all important
issues. Very high levels of engagement were observed and the opinions of each other were respected.

30. PARTICULARS REQUIRED AS PER SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,2013:

As per Section 134 of the Act, your Company has provided the Consolidated Financial Statements as on March 31,
2025, Your Directors believe that the consolidated financial statements present a more comprehensive picture as
compared to standalone financial statements. These documents will also be available for inspection during the
business hours at the Registered Office of your Company and the respective subsidiary companies. A statement
showing financial highlights of the subsidiary companies is enclosed to the consolidated financial statements.

3. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

In accordance with Accounting Standard AS-21 on Consolidated Financial Statements, your directors have
pleasure in attaching the Consolidated Financial Statements which form part of Annual Reports and
Accounts. These consolidated financial statements include accounts of Super Tannery (U.K.) Limited, Aarifi
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Tanners Limited, Super Corporation Limited Secure Safety Limited, Super Italia S.R.L , HX London Fashions
Private Limited and Pioneer Investment FZCO.

32. STATUTORY AUDITORS:
M/s. Kapoor Tandon & Company Chartered Accountants, Kanpur (Registration No: 000952C) statutory auditor have
been re-appointed at the Annual General Meeting in accordance of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

33.COSTAUDITOR:
As requires under the Companies (Cost Accounting Records) Rules 2011, the requirement of Cost Audit report does
not applicable to the Company as per MCA circular. Hence no report was filed.

34. SECRETARIALAUDITORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/S K.N Shridhar & Associates,
Company Secretary Kanpur to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company.

The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as “annexure B"

35.INTERNAL AUDITOR:
M/s R.K Dharis been appointed as the Internal Auditor of the Company in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013.

36. QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK:
The Audit Report and the Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2024-25 does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark by the Auditors,

37. LOANS, GUARANTEES & INVESTMENTS:
The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments have been disclosed in the financial statements.

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is available on the website of the Company
www.superlannery.com.

All contracts/arrangements entered by the Company during the previous financial year with the related parties were in
the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors reviewed
the transactions (which are repetitive in nature) and the Audit Committee granted approval for such transactions.
Thedisclosures as required under AS-18 have been made in notes forming part of the standalone financial statement.
The particulars of contracts or arrangements entered in to by the company with related parties referred to in sub-
section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been disclosed in Form No.AOC-2 which is annexed
hereto.

39.AUDITORS' REPORT:
The comments of the Auditors in their Audit Report and reference to “Notes on Accounts™ forming part of the Financial
Results are salf,

40. FRAUD REPORTING
During the year under review no instances of fraud were reported by the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

41.LISTING FEES:
Your Company has paid requisite Annual Listing Fees to BSE Limited (BSE) the Stock Exchange where its securities
are listed.

42 DEPOSITORY SYSTEM:
Your Company's Equity Shares are available for dematerialization through National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). The ISIN Mumber of your Company for both NSDL
and CDSLis INE460D01038.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

ANNEXURE | TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

Statement as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of the

Companies(Accounts) Rules,2014.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
(1) Energy conservation measures taken:

Up gradation of power generation and distribution systems for long term energy savings. Special

emphasis has been laid on boiler and steam generation,

(2) Additionalinvestments and proposal, if any, being implemented for reduction of consumption of energy:
Introduction of energy saving devices and systems in process machines.

(3) Impactofthe measures at(1) & (2) above for the reduction of energy consumption and consequent impact

on the cost of production of goods:

Energy conservation measures have helped in generation of required quantity of steam at a minimum

costwhich resulted in improving efficiencies and reduction in costs.

(4) Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production as per Form A of the Annexure

in respect of industries specified in the Schedule thereto:
Mot Applicable

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R &D):
(1) Specific areainwhich R & D carried out by the Company:
{a) New product development based on different raw hides/skins.
{b}Apart from production of safety footwear establishing standard products for fashion shoes/sandals.
(2 Benefits derived as aresultofthe above R &D;
{a) Cost reduction and better unit realization.
{b) Better product acceptance.
(3) Future plan of action: To continue to investin R & D for faster intreduction of new products.
(4) Expenditureon R&D:

2024-25 2023-24
(Rs.in lacs) (Rs.inlacs)
(a) Capital 0000 o000
{b) Recurring 1.88 2.18
(c) Total 1.88 218
(d) Total R & D Expenditure as % of turnover 0.00% 0.01%

Technology Absorption, Adoption And Innovation:

(1) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adoption and innovation: The Company is using
indigenous technology and is developing in house technology and is not dependent on any outside

technology / source.
(2) Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts: NotApplicable

{3) Incase of imported technology (Imported during the last 5 years reckoned from the beginning of the

financial year):

{a) Technology imported 1

{b) Year ofimport }

ic) Has technology been fully absorbed? H

(d) Ifnotfully absorbed, areas where not taken place, }
reasons therefore and future plan of action

Mot Applicable

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO:

(1) Activities relating to exports, initiative taken to increase exports, development of new export markets or

products and export plans:

On Export front, Company's performance is quite satisfactory and it is expected to be strong in the time to
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come.
(2) Totalforeign exchange earned & used:
2024-25 2023-24
{Rsinlacs) {Rsinlacs)
{a) Foreign exchange earned 23,129 66 17,072.90
(FOB value of exports) used
(b) Foreign exchange used 4726.14 2,693.28

(d) STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS OF MANAGING AND JOINT MANAGING DIRECTORS FORMING
PART OF THE DIRECTORS' REPORT:

Mame Designation | Gross Qualification |Experience | Date of Age Particulars

Remuneration (Years) Commencement | (Years) |of previous
of employment employmen

Mr. Managing Rs. 24,00,000.00 | Post 39 06.02.1984 66 Promaoter

Iftikharul | Director Graduate

Amin .

Mr, Jt.Managing | gs. 24,00,000.00 | Graduate 35 21.12.1988 63 Promater

lgbal Director

Ahsan

Notes:

1. Mr. Iftikharul Amin and Mr. Igbal Ahsan being brothers are related to each other within the meaning of
schedule lAof Companies Act, 2013.

2. Remuneration includes salary and perquisites as per rules of the company and recorded under the Income
TaxAct, 1961.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: KANPUR IFTIKHARUL AMIN MOHD.IMRAN
Date: 13.08.2025 Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 00037424 DIN:00037627
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ANNEXURE-II
TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERMNANCE:

In accordance with the Regulation 17 to 27 of (LODR) Regulation 2015 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock
Exchanges in India (Regulation 27) and some of the best practices followed internationally on Corporate
Govermnance, the report containing the details of governance system and processes at Super Tannery Limited is as
under:

Corporate Governance Philosophy

At Super Tannery Limited it is our belief that as we move closer towards our aspirations of becoming a global
corporation our corporate governance standard must be globally benchmarked. That gives us confidence of having
put in the right building blocks for future growth and ensuring that we achieve our ambitions in a prudent and
sustainable manner.

Shareholders Communications

The Board recognizes the importance of two-way communication with shareholders for giving a balanced report of
results & progress and responds to the questions and issues raised in a timely and consistent manner. Shareholders
seeking information may contact the Company directly throughout the year. They also have an opportunity to ask
questions in person at the Annual General Meeting. Shareholders can contact the company via dedicated
shareholder contact points as provided with this report or through any of Investor Service Centre of the Company's
Registrars and Transfer Agents. The company ensures that queries, complaints and suggestions are responded in a
timely and consistent manner.

Role of Company Secretary in Overall Governance Process

The Company Secretary holds a key role in ensuring that the Board Procedures are followed and regularly reviewed.
The Company Secretary ensures that all relevant information, details and documents are made available to the
directors and senior management for effective decision making at the meeting. The Company Secretary is primarily
responsible to ensure compliance with applicable statutory requirements and is the interface between the
management and regulatory authorities for governance matters. All the Directors of the company have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary.

Observance of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India

The Institute of the Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), one of the premier professional bodies in India, has issued
Secretarial Standards on important aspects like Board Meetings, General Meeting, Payment of Dividend,
Maintenance of Registers and records, Minutes of Meetings, Transmission of Shares and Debentures, Passing of
Resolution By Circulation, Affixing of Common Seal, Forfeiture of Shares and Board's Report although these
standards are recommendatory in nature, the Company substantially adheres to the standards voluntarily.

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

{iy The Board of Directors comprises a Managing Director and Joint Managing Director, five Executive and six
Non-Executive Directors. Out of 11 Directors four Directors are Independent and MNon-Executive
Directors, Women Director is Independent Mon-Executive Chairperson and two is Non-Independent and
Non-Executive Directors.,

{iil MNone of the directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of more than 5
commitiees as specified in the regulation across all the Companies in which he/she is a director.
Mecessary disclosure about position in other public companies as on 31st March 2025 has been made by
the director.

{iii) The names and categories of the directors on the board, their attendance at board meetings held during
the year and the number of directorships and committee chairmanship/membership held by them in other
companies is given below. Other directorships do not include alternate directorship and directorship of
private limited companies, Chairmanship/Membership of Board Committees included on Audit,
Remuneration and Shareholder/Investors Grievances Committees.

{iv) The present strength of the board is 11 comprises five Executive and six Non-Executive Directors. During
the year 2024-25 the board met 7 times (as against the minimum requirement of four meetings) on the
following dates: 30th May 2024, 13th August 2024, 18th September 2024, 13th November 2024, 14th
January 2025, 30th January 2025, and 13th February 2025, the maximum time gap between any two
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board meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty days.

The following table gives details of directors attendance at the Board Meetings and at the last Annual
General Meeting, number of memberships held by director in the Board/Committees of various

DDI‘I"IDEII‘IiES,'
MName Category | Attendance Particulars | Mumber of other  Directorships
Committes Member/Chairman
Board Last AGM Director- COther Commitiee
Meetings ships Committee  Chairman
Membership
Mr. Iftikharul Amin MD [ Yes 4 1
Mr. Igbal Ahsan JMD 5 Yes 5 1
br. Veqgarul Amin NED 5 Yes 2
Mr. Imran Siddigui ED 7 Yes 2
Mr. Arshad Khan ED [ Yes
Mr. Mohd. Imran ED =3 Yes 2
Mr. Yogendra Singh Katiyar| ED 5 Yes
Dr. Rohit Mohan NED-I 3 Yes 1 3 1
Dr. Mohd. 1zhar NED-| 4 Yes 1 3 1
Ms. Kahita Rani Dhar NED-I 4 Yes 2
Mr. Aftab Ahmad NED-I 7 Yes 2 3 1

MD-Managing Director; JMD-Joint Managing Director; ED-Executive Director; NED-I-Non-
Executive Director —Independent.

MNone of the Director is member of more than 10 committees or chairman of more than 5 commitiees
across all companies in which he/she is director. Brief resume of directors seeking re-appointment, nature
of their expertise in specific functional area, is given here under:

a. Mr. iftikharul Amin:

Mr. Iftikharul Amin, Managing Director of the Company (67 years), is a Post Graduate. He is named in
Article of Association of the Company as First Director of the Company and appointed as Managing
Directorin 1989. Mr. Iftikharul Amin has been closely associated with the Company for over 40 yearsand is
involved in the operations of the Company. He is having very good experience of leather and leather
products. His services are required very much to steer the company smoothly. He is also director of the
following companies :-

1. Super Tannery (UK) Limited

2. Aarifi Tanners Limited

3. Amin Tannery Limited

4. Super Corporation Limited

5. Paisa Vasool Trading Private Limited

b. Mr. Igbal Ahsan:

Mr. Igbal Ahsan, Joint Managing Director (64 years), is a Graduate. He joined the Board of Super Tannery
Limited as an Executive Director in 1988-89 and appointed as Joint Managing Director in 1993-94. Mr.
Igbal Ahsan has been closely associated with the Company for over 36 years and is involved in the
operation of the Company. He is having very good experience of leather and leather products. His services
are required very much to steer the company smoothly, He is also director of the following companies:-

1. Super Tannery (UK) Limited

2. Aarifi Tanners Limited

3. Safety Solutions S.R.L.

4. Amin Tannery Limited

5. Super Corporation Limited

6. Paisa \Vasool Trading Private Limited
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c. Mr. Veqarul Amin:

Mr. Vegarul Amin, (59 years), is a Qualified Leather Technologist. He joined the Board of Super Tannery
Limited as Director (Technical) in 1890 and appointed as Joint Managing Director in 2001 to January 1st
2019, the Company has changed his status as Non-Executive Non-Independent Director from the Joint
Managing director liable to retire by rotation and being eligible for re-appointment. As director. Mr. Vegarul
Amin has been closely associated with the Company for over 30 years and involve in the operation of the
Company. He is having very good experience of leather and leather products. His services are required
very much to steer the company smoothly. He is also director of the following companies: -

1. Industrial Infrastructure Services (India)
2. Amin Tannery Limited
3. Super Tannery Limited

d. Mr. Yogendra Singh Katiyar:

Mr. Yogendra Singh Katiyar, (48 years) is MSc-l and Administration of Civilians in EME was introduced in
the Board of Director of the company in May 2015 as an additional Director of the Company. Mr. ¥.5 Katiyar
is not a Director in any other Company. On January 1, 2022 the Company has change his status as Non-
Executive Non- Independent Director from the Whole Time Director liable to retire by rotation and being
eligible for re-appointment. As director.

e. Mr. Imran Siddiqui:

Mr. Imran Siddique (67 years) is a Chemical Engineer. He joined the Board of Directors of the Company in
1992-93 as an Alternate Director, His efficiency and capability enabled the company to appoint him as a
whole time Director in 1998-99. Mr.lmran Siddiqui has been associated with the company for over 47
years and closely involved in the operations of the company. He is responsible for Human Resources
Development, Legal, Administration, Information & Technology and Vegetable Tanned Scle Leather
Production. He has vast experience and his services are required by the company to steer it smoothly.

Mr. Imran Siddiqui is also directorin:

1. Secure Safety Limited

2. Super Tannery Limited

f. Mr. Arshad Khan:

Mr. Arshad Khan (61 years) is a Graduate and has been associated with the Company for the last 31 years
and closely involved in the export marketing of finished leather of Company. He was introduced in the
Board in the year 2000 as Additional Director and was regularized at the 16th Annual General Meeting of
the Company as a Whole Time Director. He has vast experience of export of leather and leather products.
He has visited many countries for this purpose and gained rich experience. His service is required for
steering the export of the company. Mr. Arshad Khan is not director of any other company.

g. Mr. Mohd. Imran:

Mr. Mohd Imran (58 years) is a Chartered Accountant having experience in export, import, accounts,
excise, customs and foreign trade matters. He is very initiative and closely associated with the company
since long time. Mr. Mohd Imranis also director in Secure Safety Limited and Super Tannery (UK) Limited.

2. AUDIT COMMITTEE:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings
of Board & Its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 18 read with Part C of Schedule Il to the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, your
Company has constituted an Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, comprising of the following directors
as on March 31, 2025:

NAME STATUS

Dr. Rohit Mohan (Mon-Executive Independent Director) Chairman
Mr. Aftab Ahmad (Mon-Executive Independent Director)  Member
Dr. Mohd Izhar (Non-Executive Independent Director)  Member
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During the year 4 meetings were held one of which was before finalization of annual accounts. The said
meetings were held on 30th May 2024, 13th August 2024, 13th November 2024 and 13th February 2025, The
meetings of the committee were attended by the members of the committee Dr. Rohit Mohan has financial and
accounting knowledge.

The meetings of Audit Committee were attended by the heads of accounts & finance and other respective
functional heads and statutory auditors as invitees. Members held discussion with the statutory auditors during
the meetings of the Committee and half yearly and annual audited financial accounts of the company were
reviewed by the Audit Committee before consideration and approval by the Board. The Committee reviewed
the internal control system also.

The terms of reference specified by the Board to the Audit Committee are as contained under Regulation 17-27
of (LODR) of the Listing Agreement. They are as follows:

a. Oversight ofthe company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information.

b. Recommending the appointment and removal of external auditors, fixation of audit fee and also approval
for payment for any other services.

¢. Reviewing with management the annual financial statements before submission to the Board:

(i) the going concern assumption

{ii) compliance with accounting standards

(i) compliance with stock exchange and legal requirements concerning financial statements.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit functions.

e. Discussionwithinternal auditors any significant findings and follow-up there on.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the

matter to the Board.

g. Discussion with external auditors before the audit commences nature and scope of audit as well as post-
auditdiscussion to ascertain any area of concern.

o

I_—h

3. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

For better compliance of Corporate Governance, the Remuneration Committee of the Company has been
designed to determine Company's policy on specific remuneration package of Executive Directors on the basis
of their performance. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule & of the
Companies (Meetings of Board & Its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule |l to
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, your Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors,
comprising of the following Directors as on March 31, 2025:

NAME STATUS

Dr. Rehit Mohan (Non-Executive Independent Director) Chairman
Mr. Aftab Ahmad (Non-Executive Independent Director)] Member
Dr. Mohd Izhar (Non-Executive Independent Director) Member

Details of remuneration paid to directors are given below:

Name of Director Salary including Perquisites | Sitting Fees Total (Rs¥in lacs)
Mr. Iftikharul Amin 24,00,000 - 24.,00,000

Mr. Igbal Ahsan 24 00,000 = 24.00,000

Mr. Vegarul Amin - - -

Mr. Imran Siddigui 708000 -- 708000

Mr. Mohd. Imran 394000 -- 394000

Mr. Arshad Khan 438000 = 438000
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4,

SHAREHOLDERS'/INVESTORS' GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 read with Part D of
Schedule Il to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, your Company has constituted a Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of the Board of
Directors, comprising of the following Directors as on March 31, 2025:

NAME STATUS

Dr. Mohd. |zhar Chairman
Mr. Iftikharul Amin Member
Mr. Igbal Ahsan Member

The Committee, inter-alia, approves issue of duplicate certificates and reviews all matters connected with the
securities transfer. The Committee also looks into redressing of Shareholders’ / Investors' Complaints like
transfer of shares, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of dividends etc. Mr \R.K Awasthi, the Company
Secretary acts as a Secretary of the Committee as well as Compliance Officer. Total No. of complaints received
and replied to the satisfaction of shareholders during the year was 77. No outstanding complaints were lying
unresclved as on 31st March 2025. Mo investors' grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month
with the Company.

CSR COMMITTEE:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies {Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, your Company has constituted a Corporale Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee of the Board of Directors, comprising of the following Directors as on March 31, 2025;

NAME STATUS

Dr. Mohd. |zhar Chairman
Mr. Iftikharul Amin Member
Mr. lgbal Ahsan Member

The Committee, inter-alia approves the CSR activities as run by the Company through its Amin Welfare Trust.
Besides this it has been the policy of the Company to take up activities such as healthcare including preventive
healthcare, education etc. During the year company has spend more than 2%of the average net profit of the
Company through its Hospital and Schools.

The basic aim ofthe Company CSR policy is to improve the lives of the local community,

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:
During the last three years, following Annual General Meetings (AGM) & Extra Ordinary General Meeting
(EGM)were held:

Year Location Date Time
2021-22 (AGM) 187170 Jajmau Kanpur 30.09.2022 9.00 A.M
2022-23 (AGM) 187170 Jajmau Kanpur 30.09.2023 9.00AM
2023-24 (AGM) 187/170 Jajmau Kanpur 30.09.2024 9.00 A.M
DISCLOSURE:

a. Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions i.e. transactions of the Company of material
nature, with its promoters, the directors or the management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have
potential conflict with the interests of the Company atlarge.

None of the transactions with any of the related parties were in conflict with the interest of the
Company. All the related party fransactions are negotiated on arms length basis and are only intended
to safeguard the interest of the company. Wherever necessary, the related party transactions are
disclosed in Notes to the Accounts, forming part of the Annual Report.
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10.

{b) Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock
Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three
years.

There were no instances of non-compliance of any matter related to the capital markets during the last
three years.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

Quarterly Results: The quarterly results were published in the "The Pioneer (English), New Delhi and Dainik
Aaj (Hindi), Kanpur. The Managemeant Discussion and Analysis (M D & A) is a part of Annual Report.

INSIDER TRADING:

In accordance with Securities & Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation 1992, as
amended in February 2002, the Board of Directors of the company formulated the code of conduct for
prevention of insider trading in shares of the company by its employees.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

10.1 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: Date and Time 30th September 2025at 9:00a.m.
Venue —187/170, Jajmau, KANPUR - 208 010.

10.2 FINANCIAL CALENDAR (1st April 2025 to 31st March 2028) : (Tentative)

BOARD MEETINGS:

Results for the quarter ending 30.06.2025: 2™ week of August 2025

Results for the quarter ending 30.09.2025: 2™ week of November 2025

Results for the quarter ending 31.12.2025: 2™ week of February 2026

Results for the quarter ending 31.03.2026: Lastweek of May 2026 (as per Listing Agreement.)

10.3: BOOK CLOSURE DATE/ RECORD DATE: 16" September 2025 to 30" September 2025 (both days
inclusive) for the purpose of dividend payment.

10.4: DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATE: Credit/dispatch of divided between 1™ October 2025 to 5" October 2025
10.5: (a) LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES ON STOCK EXCHANGES AT:
1.The Stock Exchange, Mumbai, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, MUMBAI- 400001,
NOTE: Annual Listing Fees for the year 2025-26 as applicable has been paid to the BSE.
(b) DEMAT IS IN NUMBERS IN NSDL & CDSL: Equity Shares INE460D01038

10.6:5TOCK CODE: Trading in Mumbai Stock Exchange and Stock Code is 523842.

pom— Cnmpi.any's Equity Share
High Low
Apnl 2024 10.05 B.66
May 2024 11.85 9.28
Jume 2024 11.11 7 64
July 2024 10.65 B.65
August 2024 15.24 053
September 2024 14.40 11.10
Crotober 2024 18.50 10.50
Movember 2024 1475 12.10
December 2024 14,00 11.11
January 2025 1240 8.70
February 2025 12.62 926
March 2025 10.75 8.12
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10.7:REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT:

KFin Technologies Limited

Karvy Selenium Tower B", Plot No 31432, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Gachibowli,

500032 Telangana, India

Phone: 40-67162222, 33211000

Fax:40-23420814

Email: shivakumar.n@kfintech.com

10.8:SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM:
In compliance of SEBI Circular No. D&CC/FITTC/CIR-15/2002 dated 27th December 2002, your
Company has appointed common agency to shareholders for all the work relating to share registry in
terms of both physical and electronic at single point by our Registrar & Transfer Agent i.e. KFIN
Technologies. Lid. (K.TL.) Hyderabad. The share transfers, which are received in physical form, are
processed and the share certificates returned within a period of 10 to 15 days from the date of receipt,

Hyderabad-

subject to the documents being valid and complete in all respect.

10.9:SHARE HOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31.03.2025

5. No. | Description Cases Shares | % Equtiy
1 BANKS 1 3,000 0.00
2 CLEARING MEMBERS 1 1| 0.00
3 DIRECTORS AND THEIR RELATIVES g 6,30,77,723 58.4
4 HUF 186 9,37 455 0.87
5 BODIES CORPORATES 44 30,80,771) 286
& NRI Mon-Repatriation 46 1.04382 0.10
7 MON RESIDENT INDIANS 83 290,423 0.27
8 RESIDENT INDIVIDUALS 19,249 3,67,95,691 34.08
9 IEPF 1 36,83,914 3.41

Total: 19,619 10,79,73,360, 100.00

10.10: Distribution Schedule as on 31st March 2025:
SUPER TANNERY LIMITED
DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULE AS ON 31/03/2025
Sno | Category Cases % of Cases Amount % Amount

1 |uptol -5000 18,590 94.75 1,42,57,051.00 13.20
2 | 5001 - 10000 583 2.98 42,29,090.00 3.91
3 | 10001 - 20000 240 1.23 34,13,282.00 3.17
4 | 20001 - 30000 77 0.40 19,10,956.00 1.77
5 | 30001 -40000 33 0.17 12,17,704.00 1:33
& | 40001 - 50000 23 0.11 24,96,3593.00 1.00
7 | 50001 - 100000 37 0.19 24,96,393.00 2.31
8 | 100001 & ABOVE 36 0.19 7,93,75,201.00 73.51

Total: 19,619 100.00 10,79,73,360.00 100.00

10.11:DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY:

The company has entered into agreement with NSDL and COSL for the dematerialization of its equity
shares. The equity shares of the company are frequently traded on the BSE. Approximately 91.33 % of

the equity shares issued by the Company have been dematerialized up to 31st March 2025,

32




SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

.

12.

10.12:0UTSTANDING GDR/ADR/ WARRANTS ORANY CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS, CONVERSION
DATE AND LIKELY IMPACT ON EQUITY : Nil

10.13: PLANT LOCATIONS:

(a) Chrome Tannery : 187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur-208 010
(b) Sole Tannery : (i) Mona Nagar, Jajmau, Kanpur-208 010,
: (i) 187170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur— 208 010
(c) Fashion Shoe Division : 6, Akrampur, Unnao — 209 801
(d) Footwear Division - 169, Jajmau, Kanpur-208 010.
(e) Safety Shoe Division : Leather Technology Park, Banthar, Unnao, U.P.

10.14: ADDRESS FOR INVESTORS' CORRESPONDENCE:

Shareholders correspondence should be addressed to our Registrar & Transfer Agents at the address
mentioned above. Shareholders may also contact Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the
Company at:

1871170, Jajmau, Kanpur-208010

Phone: 0512-7522000371, 7522000372, 7522000373 Fax: 0152-2460782,

E-mail: share@supertannery.com; info@supertannery,com.

Website: www.supertannery.com

Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all their correspondence to their respective
Depository Participant.

CODEOF CONDUCT:
The Company has a code of conduct applicable to its Directors and senior management personnel,

Declaration as required under the Listing Agreement:

All Directors and senior management of the company have affirmed compliance with company's Code of
Conduct for the financial year ended 31" March 2025.

Place : Kanpur IFTIKHARUL AMIN
Kanpur: 13.08.2025 Managing Director

NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:

The company has adopted non-mandatory requirements to the following extent:

Chairman of the Board — The Company does not have a Chairman. At every Board meeting, a Director is
elected to preside over the meeting. The company has constituted Remuneration committee of the Board.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: KANPUR IFTIKHARUL AMIN MOHD.IMRAN
Date: 13.08.2025 Managing Director Whole Time Director

DIN: 00037424 DIN: 00037627
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ANNEXURE-I

DETAILS PERTAINING TO EMPLOYEES REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES

ACT,2013

A. DETAILS OF REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
READ WITH RULES 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014:

1. The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
during the Financial year 2024-25, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of
the employees are as under:

Mame of Director Director Remuneration of | %increase/decrease Ratio of
/KMP and Identification No DirectorfKMP in Remuneration in remuneration of
Designation DIN for the Financial the Financial each Director /to
Year 2024-25 Year 2024-25 median
(Rs in lacs) remuneration of
employees
1. Mr.Iftikharul Amin | 00037469 2400000 00 14.286
2. Mr, Mohd Imran 00037424 393164 00 25
3. Mr. R.K. Awasthi MNA, 279663 00 MNLA.

2. The % increase of remuneration is provided only for those directors and KMP who have drawn remuneration from
the Company for full fiscal 2025 and full fiscal 2024. The Ratio of remuneration to Median Remuneration of employees
is provided only for those directors and KMP who have drawn remuneration from the Company for the full fiscal 2025,
3. No remuneration paid to non-executive directors including independent directors.

4. The Median remuneration of employees of the Company during the Financial year was Rs 1.64 Lacs.

5. Inthe financial year, there was an increase of 5.07% in the median remuneration of the Company.

6. There were 450 permanent employee of the Company on the rolls of the Company as on March 2025.

7.Average percentage increase made in the salaries of the employees other than the managerial personnel in the last
financial year 2023-24 was 4,87,

8.The Key parameters for the variable component of remuneration availed by the directors are considered by the
Board of Directors based on the recommendation of the Nomination and remuneration Committee as per the
Remuneration policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

9.The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of employees who are not directors but receive
remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year -Not Applicable.

B. STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF SECTION 197(12) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 READ WITH RULES 5(2) AND 5(3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

1-Top ten employees, in terms of remuneration drawn

Name Designation| Age | Qualification Date of Experience Gross Pravious
commencement remuneration | employment
of employment

Mr. Iftikharul | MD 67 Post Since 40 2400000 Super Tannery

Amin Graduate incorporation Limited
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Mr. Igbal JMD 64 | Graduate 21/12/1988 36 2400000 | Super Tannery

Ahsan Limited

Mr. Mohd Director 58 | Graduate & 11/05/1994 31 393164 Super Tannery
Imiran & CFO C.A. Limited

Mr. Imran Director 67 Graduate 16/03/1978 47 704564 Super Tannery

Siddqui Limited

Mr. Arshad Director 61 Graduate 01/11/1994 H 416564 Super Tannery

Khan Limited

Mr. Mubas- Product 41 Graduate 01/01/2008 17 1833164 | Super Tannery

hirul Amin Manager Limited

Mr. Tanveerul | Product 39 Graduate 01/08/2007 18 1468164 Super Tannery
Amin Manager Limited

Mr. Umairul Product 35 Graduate 13/05/2013 12 1353164 Super Tannery

Amin Manager Limited

Mr. Ahmad Product 31 Graduate 01/07/2017 8 573164 Super Tannery
Faraz Amin Manager Limited

Mr. R.K. Company | 60 Post 21/11/2008 17 279663 Super Tannery

Awasthi Secretary Graduate Limited

2. Employed throughout the financial year 2024-25 and in receipt of remuneration in the aggregate, not less
than one crore and two lacs rupees: - N-A

Name Designation |Age | Qualification Date of Experience Gross Previous
commencement remuneration | employment
of employment

Motes:-

«  All appointments are contractual and terminable by notice on either side.
= Mr. Iftikharul, Managing Director Mr. Igbal Ahsan, Joint Managing Director, Mr. Mubashirul Amin, Mr.
Tanvesrul Amin, Mr, Umairul Amin and Mr. Ahmad Faraz Amin, are relatives of each other.
= Mo employee was employed for a part of the financial year who was in receipt of remuneration of Rs.8.5 lacs
or more per month,
= ltis hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid as per the remuneration policy for Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other employees,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Industry Structure and Development:

The Indian Leather Industry plays a significant role in the Indian Economy in view of its substantial export earnings,
employment generation and growth opportunities. The export of leather and leather products has increased over
past few years.

The Company is striving high to caplure over Global Market in respect of Leather and Leather Products. The
Company has taken various steps to promote company's products all over the world and it is being done in line with
global trends to enhance scale, global competitiveness and financial flexibility and also to contribute towards
achievement of company's objective and to increase revenue, production volume, market shares and shareholder's
returns.

Your company in view of the competitive scenario has taken various steps to meet these challenges and also
capitalize on budding opportunities available. The company is regularly carrying out detailed analysis of leather
industry and has been making all possible efforts to understand the various minutiae of the emerging market
scenario. The company has been investing considerable amount of funds on its Research & Development Programs
in order to enrich and improve the quality of products.

Opportunities:

Company has gained reputation and established itself globally as Supplier of quality products. The company has
demonstrated global competitiveness and has achieved international standards for the quality of its products and its
immense capabilities provide massive opportunities in the foreign market. Company's overall strategy is to enhance
shareholder value by receiving better returns through a long-term investment.

Threat:

The company is fully aware of the factors dictating competition and has been investing with the ups and downs
through its various effective measures like cost optimization, competitive pricing, improved production process and
enhanced customer salisfaction.

Even under difficull operating conditions, company has been consistently performing at its best. It is expected that
company's sound policies, competitive cost position will enable the company to lead the market effectively.

To exist in the competitive market and improve the value of shareholder, company is consistently considering all the
significant factors, which provide sharp edges that enable company to enhance the margin.

Out Look:

Company's maximum operational income is based on the margin on export of leather and leather products. As most
of part of the earning is realized from Export, outiook depends upon the global economic scenario, global demand
and supply and International product prices. Above all the performance of your company largely depends on the Ex-
imp policy of the Union Government, Looking at the overall development of the Indian economy and the efforts of the
Cenfral Government to achieve higher GDP, Board of directors of your company is very much optimistic to the future
ofthe Company.

Risks and Concerns:

Although Your Company does not perceive any serious threat, still company is taking care against the risk of growing
pressure of prices, foreign exchange rates variation, current and future litigation, working capital management, bad
debts etc. Foreign exchange liabilities / revenues are mainly concerned with the company's operation. Regular
monitoring of movement of foreign exchange rates is carried out and decisions are taken as to when outstanding are
to be covered and payments are to be made. Working Capital requirement are to be kept at minimum level in order to
maintain the lowest possible interest rate.

Company has strongly prepared itself to meet cutthroat competition in global market by adhering to international
quality standards of its product.

In addition fo above company has overall risk management strategy, follows such practices & policies that are
framework of efficient management to count the risk in advance
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Internal Control System and their Adequacy:

The company has made sufficient arrangement for internal control system and its monitoring for keeping proper
record of the purchase of raw materials, stores, components, plant and machineries, equipment's and all other assets
for production and sale of finished leather and leather products. The company has clearly fixed rules and
responsibilities for all management personnel and all operational activities are well controlled. The system ensures
authorization of all transactions, records and the reports correctly and properly through computerized system.

The Audit committee of the Company also re-examines adequacy of internal controls, systems of risk management
policies adopted by the Company.

Company's Laws and Regulations are also reviewed by the internal Audit Team regularly from time to time and its
report is submitted to the promoters and put up in every Board Meeting. In arder to provide sufficient support for
business promotion of the company, the finance and commercial functions have been properly set. The company
takes into account from time to time and Analysis its progress in accordance with the Laws and Regulations set by the
internal auditors and report to the Board in every Board Meeting in support of best practices for internal control,
standard operating norms and guidelines are being issued. The Company also incorporates all financial operating,
and information technology systems are also evaluated from time to time,

Environment and Safety:

The Company feels its responsibility and is fully aware of the importance to achieving exhibiting healthy
environmental performance by checking effect of its activities, product or services for the environment. The
environment policy of the company fully complies with the environmental laws and prevention of water, air and noise
pollution and all efforts are made for continual improvement in the environmental performance. The Company has
also initiated focusing its attention on "Charter on Corporate Responsibility” under the policy of the Government of
India. The Company takes all measure to save and minimize the environmental effect on air, water by strictly using
and further sounding its environmental management system to meet its objective. The Company ensures providing
safe work place, machines and safety control measures within the organization and a sense of safety consciousness
is spread amongst all the workmen, employees and supervisors.

Industrial Relations and Human Resources Development:

The Company gives much importance to maintain good relations with its employees ensuring that employees feel
valued and energetic in creating an atmosphere and culture so that they can maximize their contribution in increasing
the growth and further development of the company, and in turm the Company thinks of individual growth of its
employees for their dedicated participation in organizational development.

The company's priority is to reduce the employee's turnover ratio. The company's approach and efforts are to create
congenial work environment for individual growth, which enable the development of whole arganization. Relationship
with the employees remains cordial through out the year. The company has a team of over 500 dedicated employees
working towards the company's mission.

Discussion of Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance:

Effective working management is regularly concentrating to reduce the cost of debt as much as possible. Prudent
cash management endeavor to utilize the optimum Working Capital in order to reduce the interest cost and also to
avoid the bottieneck of company's operation.

Research & Development:
The company is committed to continue technological innovation, physical and chemical standardization and
improvement to achieve high standards of product quality and customer satisfaction

Key factors that keep the company one step ahead:

a. Extensive interaction with the latest technological developments.

b. FPresence in allmajor trade fairs, seminars and workshops for optimum knowledge up gradation.
c. Well qualified and progressive workforce.

d. Fully equipped Laboratory

The tannery units of the company work under guidance of a well-equipped laboratory conducting physical and
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chemical tests. It also has a pilot tannery to conduct trials of new leathers at a small scale before its implementation in
bulk production. The laboratory has all the requisites to perform tests of leather as per EN, 1ISO and DIN standards.

The company is amongst few companies which provide certification as per the REACH guidelines of European
Chemicals Agency.

Design Studio:

The footwear units of the company conduct their production as per the guidance of a newly built, state of the art
designing cell, lead by well qualified shoe technologists and designers. Due to a rapid change in the product profile
over the past few years, this studio was installed keeping in mind the ever-changing tests and preferences of the
customers, while keeping time frame into consideration.

Quality Assurance:

A major factor which keeps the company ahead is its obsession with total quality, which includes products of the
highest standards. quick and efficient customer service, leading to complete customer satisfaction. Factors like these
help the company to retain customers, some of them, for aslong as 31 years.

Asia Pacific Leather fair, Hong Kong
Lineapelle, Bologna, ltaly

Maoda, Birmingham, United Kindom

All China Leather Exhibition, Shanghai, China
A+ AFair, Dusseldorf, Germany

Fimec Fair, Novo Hamburgo, Brazil

Cautionary Statement:

Statements in the Management Discussion & Analysis Report which seek to describe the company's objectives,
projections estimates, expectations and predictions may be considered to be "forward looking statements” and are
stated as required by applicable laws and regulations. Actual results could differ from those expressed or implied.
Many factors including global and domestic demand-supply conditions, prices, raw materials availability,
technological changes, changes in Government policies, tax laws and other statues may affect the actual results,
which could be different from what the Directors' envisage in terms of future performance and outlook,
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REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Social Responsibility:

Super Tannery Limited (STL) believes in total commitment to society. The promoters of the company run an
organization known as AMIN WELFARE TRUST (AWT) which follows the motto of "Promoting Hope in Life." This trust
has taken up number of social causes in the field of EDUCATION & HEALTHCARE.

STL nurtures relationships across the entire range of stakeholders, which has the Company understand pertinent
issues, develop businesses, enhance shareholder value and manage risks better. It is the relationship, trust and
commitment to stake holder's interest and the warm reciprocal of the same by the stakeholders that make STL robust,
resilient and sustainable. STL actively integrates shareholder goals with its own and then pursues them
collaboratively.

STL's commitment towards excellence in Health, Safety and Environment Performance is one of the company's core
values. The company is unwavering and its policy of, "safety of persons overrides all production targets”, which drives
all employees to continuously break new grounds in safety management for the benefit of the people, property,
environment and the communities in which STL operates. This is the Company's responsibility as a global corporate
citizen. The 'pursuit to achieve world class operational excellence’ has been the key focus of the Company.

Healthcare:

AWT operates a hospital known as Chaudhary Ehsan Kareem Hospital, well equipped with the most modern
machinery and infrastructure, in the industrial area of Jajmau, Kanpur City, providing healthcare facilities in a number
of fields including Neurology, Vision, Endocrinology, Dentistry and Pre/Post Maternal Care.,

STL has a program an initiative to promote healthy workplaces and reduce health and safety risks, has been
instrumental in creative a culture ofimplementing health, safety and environment project on priority basis.

This performance has also helped the Company to improve its performance on the occupational health and safety
front.

Education:

On 26th January 2010, AWT launched a state of art educational institution namely Super International School with the
aim to provide world class education at affordable cost to the middle income group. The school is affiliated with the
C.B.S.E board and is equipped with the latest infrastructure required for a healthy and constructive approach to
education. To know more, please visitwww.superinternationalschool.com

Environment

When the leather industry enough developed, the pollution of air and water increased and the stage reached where
scientists started thinking on making better use or reuse of material which caused pollution keeping in mind the
economical factor else no industrialist would accept the change.

Special emphasis has been laid on use of low waste technology with minimum possible expenditure and maximum
quality production because it is natural for any industrialists to resist a change unless it is likely to give better quality
production with least expenditure. Pollution is given the last priority by them whereas we give it the first priority.

At STL we are very much cautious about pollution. We have our own water treatment and chrome recovery plant in
which we collect the drain water full of nickel, chromium and many more harmful substances. Our deep interestis in
green and clean environment. The chrome is used in the processing of hides & skins in which 65% is consumed during
the process while 35% goes waste. The presence of chrome in the discharged water of tanneries is hazardous for
public health as its excessive use can cause severe skin diseases. To minimize the danger we have water treatment
plant to purify water to its maximum possible level. We believe to contribute in safe and healthy environment. STLisan
eco friendly tannery.

Health, Safety & Environment

We at STL are committed to provide a safe and healthy working environment for our employees by adopting a
proactive approach. It is part of our work ethic to ensure that safety, health and environment safeguards are in place
right from the inception to the execution stage. We accept the need for constant up gradation of safety & health
standards commensurate with the rapid changing technology in production,
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025.

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managenal Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members,

SUPER TANNERY LIMITED,
187170, JAJAMU, KANPUR,
UTTAR PRADESH.

We were appointed by the Board of Directors of the Super Tannery Limited (hereinafter called the Company) to
conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025,

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Super Tannery Limited (herein after called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and
expressing my opinion thereon,

Based on our verification, the Super Tannery Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit.

We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
31st March, 2025 Complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
herein after:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of:

{iy The CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder:

(i) The Securities contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made thereunder:

(iii} Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1929 and the rules and regulation made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings:

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 ('SEB| Act'):-

{a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) regulation,
2011

{b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 :

{c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation,
2009 - Not applicable to the Company for the year under review,

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 : Not applicable to the Company for the year under review;

{e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India(lssue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulation, 2008: Not
applicable to the Company for the year under review,

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India{Registrars to an Issue And Share Transfer Agents) Regulation,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing With client: Not applicable to the Company for the year
under review;

{g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India{Delisting of Equity Share) Regulations,2009: Not applicable to
the Company for the year under review;

{h} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 Not applicable to
the Company forthe yearunder review;

(vi) (Mention the other laws as may be applicable specifically to the Company) N.A.
we have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The Company is maintaining
Minutes Book as per the norms, but not as Stated in the S5-1 and 55-2, the company has been suggested to
comply the standard viz. numbering of Minutes Book, whether they are Board Minutes, Committee Minutes or
General Body Minutes.

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (hereinafter
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called as “Listing Agreement).
During the period the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. Mentioned above, to the extent applicable:

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Woman Director. There is no change in the composition of the
Board of Directors during the period under review,

Adequate notice is given to all directors to convene the board meeting, agenda (detailed notes on agenda were sent,
but sometime at least seven days in advance notice were not adhered), and a system for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

Majnritg decision is carried through and recorded as part of the minutes, it was found that most of the time it was
unanimous but the name of proposer and seconder were given in the minutes book

We further report that
The adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company
to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines to the extent applicable.

We further report that

On the basis of the questionnaire provided to the company during the audit period, on the basis of reply received
from the various departments, it was concluded that the company has complied with the following laws applicable to
the Company.

Forexample:

(i) Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974;

(i) Air {Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981;

{iii}) Environment Protection Act, 1986;

{iv) FactoriesAct, 1948,

{v) Industrial Disputes Act, 1947;

{vi) PaymentofWagesAct, 1936;

(vii) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948;

(viii) Employees State Insurance Act, 1948;

{ix) The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952,
(x) The Paymentof Bonus Act, 1965;

{xi) The Paymentof Gratuity Act, 1972;

(xii} The Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place (Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Signature:

K. M. Shridhar & Associates

Date : 13.08.2025 Name of Company Secretary in Practice/Firm:
Place: Kanpur FCS No.3882 C P No: 2612

UDIN:F003882G0O01011768
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Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read

with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement Containing Salient Features of the Financial Statement of
Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures

Part "A”: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.
Particulars Details
81, | STUKLTD | SECURE |HXLONDON PIONEER | AARIFI
Mo, Neme of the Subsidiaries SAFETY |FASHIONS |INVESTMENT TANNERS
| P LTD. PVTLTD  FZCo. LTD.
1. | Reportingpericd forthe | 31032025 | 31032025 | 31032025 | 31032025 | 31032025

subsidiary concemed, if
different fram the haolding
company's raparting period
2. | Reporting currency and GEP MR INR AED INR
Exchangs rate a5 on the
last date of tha relevant
Financizl year in the cass
of foreign subsidiares

3, | Share capital Rs.1.52 Rs.150.00 | Rs. 1.00 | Rs. 22.73 Rs.146.07
4. | Reserves & surplus Fis.|-) 248 88 Ris-) 26.43 | Re 1502  Rsl)4792 Rs. (LBA
5 | Total assets Rz 8.21 Rs.28.51 Rs. 33153 | Re. 6446 Rs. 10844
6. | Tolal Liabilities Rs. 821 Rs.24 51 Rs. 33153 | Ris. 64,46 Rs. 108.44
7. | Investmants NIL NIL | NIL | NIL | Rs.1.T3
B. | Tumover NIL 007 21875 | 56,61 NIL
8, | Profil before taxation Re. 4,62 Res.{-) 6.8 | Rs. 1502 | Rs (-)43.93 Rs.0.50
{10, | Provision for taxation NIL NIL | MIL | NIL MIL
[ 11. | Profit after laxation Rs. 462 Fis.-) .69 | Rs 15.02| Rs (-)4393 | Rs.0.50
|12, | Proposed Dividend MIL NIL | NIL | NIL MIL
[13, | % of shareholding 100% 63.20% | 100% | 100% | 82.52%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidianes which are yet to commence operations
2. Mames of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

i iates int r

SUPER
CORPOR-
ATION
LTD.

31052025 |

IR

Rs.5.00
Rs. 0.70
Rs. 15.38
Rs. 15.38
NIL

Rs. 19.74
Rs. (.35
NIL

Rs. 0.35
NIL

G

In Lacs)

SUPER
ITALIA
SRL

31.03.2025

EURD

Rs.0.75

R, i-) 54.01
Re. 220.95
Rs. 220,95
NIL
Rs.124.68
Rs. (-] 31.38
NIL

Rs. (-] 31.38
MIL

100%

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to

Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of associates/Joint Ventures

NIL

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

Shares of Associate/|oint Ventures held by the company on the year end
No.

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture

Extend of Holding%

Description of how there is significant influence
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Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated

Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet

Profit/Loss for the year
Considered in Consolidation
Not Considered in Consolidation

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be
certified.
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Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contractsfarrangements entered into by the company with related

parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis:

{a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:

{b} Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:

{c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions:

(d} Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:
{&) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

{f) Date(s) of approval by the Board:

{g) Amount paid as advances, if any;

{h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section 188: NA
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:
{a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:

{b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:

{c) Duration of the contracts [ arrangements/transactions:

{d} Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:
{e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

{f) Amount paid as advances, if any:

The Details has been given under the head notes to financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SUPER TANMNERY LIMITED

hr. Iftikharul Amin Mr. Mohd. Imran R.K. Awasthi
{Managing Director) (Director Finance &CFO) {Company Secretary)
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Kapoor Tandon & Co. ' Branch
v *24/57, First Floor, Birhana REoad,
Chartered Accountants (_.Ai Kanpur . 26800

- 104, 10" MNeor, Himalava Houge, ———

sa o wasturaa Gandh Marg,
Mew De b 1140 D01

Independent Auditors’ Certificate On Corporate Governance

To the members of Super Tannery Limited

1z

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Super Tannery Limited (“the
Company”), for the year ended on March 31, 2025, as stipulated in regulation 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of
regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations").

Management's responsibility

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of management. This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to
ensure compliance with the conditions of corporate governance stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the corporate governance. It is neither audit nor
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

We have examined the books of accounts and other relevant records and documents maintained by the
Company for the purpose of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with corporate governance
requirements by the Company.

We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance
Mote on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("the
ICAI™), the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, in so far as
applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for
Special Purpose issued by the ICAl which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code
of Ethics issued by the ICAI

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1,
Quality Contral for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other
Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanation provided
to us and representations provided by management, we certify that the Company has complied with the
conditions of corporate governance as specified in regulation 17 to 27, clause (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and
paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule \ of the SEEI Listing Regulations, as applicable during the year ended
March 31, 2025.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Kapoor Tandon & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo.000%320C

(Divyank Migam)
Partner

Place: Kanpur M. No, 438443
Date: 29.05.2025 UDIN; 25438443BMIOEH3383
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Kapoor Tandon & Co. ) Branch
Feanpun — 208007

D= 104, 1% Floor, Himalava House,
23 Aesliroa Gendh Marg,
Mew De ki 110007

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To,
The Members of Super Tannery Limited

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audiled the accompanying standatone financial statements of Super Tannery Limited ("the Company”), which comprise the
standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss {including other comprehensive
income), the standalone Statement of Change in Equity and standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{hereinafter referrad to as "Standalone Financial Statements™),

Im our opinion and o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, thereof ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit, total comprahensive income, change in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in acoordance with the Code of Ethics
issusd by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion on the standalone Financial Statements,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a
whaole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters, We have determined that there are
no key audit matters to be communicated in our report,

Information Other than the standalone Financial Statements and Auditors® Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexuraes to Board's Report and Corporate Governance and
Shareholder's information, but does not include the conseclidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor's
report therson,

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statemeants or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude thal there is a matenal misstatement of this other information, we are required o
report that fact. We have nothing to reportin this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these
slandalone financial statements that give & true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other
comprehensive income, change in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
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and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance
of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adeguate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatemeant, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
gither intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a materal misstatement when
it exists. Misstatemants can arise from fraud or error and are considered materal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected toinfluence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an auditin accordance with SAs, we exercise professional jJudgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Wae also:

* |[dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intermal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design auwdit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion an whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operaling effectivenass of such contrals.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriatenass of management’s use of the going concemn basis of acoounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions
are basaed on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report, However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company o cease to continue as a going concern,

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

« Materality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements thal, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i} to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

“We communicale with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal contral that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independance, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independance, and where applicable, related safequards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremealy rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expacted to cutweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”), issued by the Ceniral Government of India in terms of
sub-section (11) of seclion 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A", a stalement on the malters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, tothe extent applicable.

2. Furtherto our comments inAnnexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief ware

necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(B) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
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(c)

(d)
ie)

(gl
ik

examination of those books;

The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the

standalone statement of change in equity and the standalone statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account;

Imour apinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section

133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as of March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of

Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section

164 (2)of the Act,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating

effectivenass of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B™, Our report expresses an unmaodified opinion on

the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration ta its directors during the year

in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

With respect to the other matiers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit

and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements — Refer Mote no. 33 to the financial statements;

i, the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any matanal
foreseeable losses; and

i, there has been no delay in transfermng amounts required lo be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other parson or entity, including foreign
entity {"Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsosver by
or on behalf of the Company (*Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

() The Management has represanted, that, to the best of its knowledge and beliaf, ne funds {which are material aither
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entity (*“Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Basedonthe audit proceduras that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come o our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (1) and (i) of Rule
11{e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. (a) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Company during the year is in accordance
with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

(b} As stated in Note 12 () to the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Company have proposed final
dividend for the year which is subject 1o the approval of the members al the ensuing Annual General Mesting. The
amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

vi. Based onourexamination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its
books of accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tamperad with and the audit trail has
heen preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention

For Kapoor Tandon & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.000952C

(Divyank Nigam)
Partner

Place: Kanpur M. Mo, 438443
Date: 29.05.2025 UDIN: 2543844 3BMIODYT 227
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Kapoor Tandon & Co.
Charterad Accountants
D= 104, 1% Floor, Himalava House,
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Branch
*a'37, First Flocr, Birhana Road,
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23 Aesliroa Gendh Marg,
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110 007

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors® Report

{Referred to in paragraph 1 of our report of even date on standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 of
Super Tanneny Limited)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of accounts and records examined by
us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belisf, we stale that:

(i) (a)

{b)

(c)

{A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative details and situation of its
property, plant and equipment and relevant details of right-to-use asset;

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of infangible assets;

The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assels so to cover all

the assels once every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the

nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for venfication during the year

and were physically venfied by the Management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us,

na material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

Title Deeds of immoveable properties as disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company

excepling the following properties {refer Note no. 50 (a)}:

Gross Held in Whether Held i i
Desecription of Property Carrying Value the promater, Since E:;zﬂ;ffs; not being held in
(Rupeses) Mame of |director or relative '
Land No. 1363,Banther Unnac 24.722.00 |Veaarul Amin Director 14.08.2002 | Though cost of land is paid
Land No. 1362 Banther Unnao 99.892.00 |Veqarul Amin|  Director 14.08.2002 | by Company but due to
; oversight registration was
Land No. 1417 Banther Unnao 1.05.453.00 |Vegarul Amin Director 14.08.2002 | 4 o in the name of diractor.
Land No. 1416 & 1415 Banther Unnao|  05.306.00 |Vegarul Amin Director 09.10.2002 | However the process of
Land No. 1413 & 1414 Banther Unnao| 2 05820.00 |Vegarul Amin Director 01.01.2004 | registering the title deeds in
Land No. 1364 & 1365 Banther U i ; the name of company is
anc: g AL L HInad 42.850.00 Vmul .ﬁ.r'm_n D!recior 10.03.2004 | erway at the Hime: of
Land MNo. 1366 Banther Unnao 1,02,520.00 |Iftikharul Amin Diractor 14.09.2004 | finalization of accounts,

{d} The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during the year.

{e) Mo proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules madea
thereuncer,

(i) {a) Theinventories of the Company have been physically verified by the management at reasonable interval during the year. In
our cpinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification is appropriate having regard to the size of the company and
natura of its operation, Mo discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on
verification during the year when compared with books of account,

(b} Asdisclosed in note no. 50(e) to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess

of Rupees five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The
quarterly returns/ statements filed by the Company with such banks are not in agreement with the books of accounts of the
Company and the details are as follows:

{Rs. in Lacs)
Value as per Values as per quarterly retum/ Differance Reasan
Quarter Ending of Accounts statements filed with lenders
June 30, 2024 11218.54 11022.89 195.65 Jh"'-ﬁ E*F|9|"'_'I!d. the diHEl'ﬂl'ilillﬁE;- anz EEFT- ;
September 30, 2024 11435.52 11304.70 VB | o g oo Tt S0 pedhidit.
December 31, 2024 10800.64 10587.99 232 65 on provisional basis and atso because of
eclusion af certain curent assets in the

March 31, 2025 10945.84 10820.04 55.80 staternents filed wilh 1he kenders,
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(iii) The company has made investments , granted unsecured loans to companias, during the earlier years, in respect of which:
{a) ThaCompany has provided loan to two WOS and also to one subsidiary. The details are as under:

{Rs. in Lacs)
MName of the Company | Relationship | Loan/ Guarantee Balance as at 31 .03.2025 mm;m:::g ?rglan:.lnt outstanding

Super Tannery (U.K) Lid | WOS Loan 130.04 130.04
Secure safety limited Subsidiary Loan 12.49 12.49
Super ltalia SRL WOs Loan a87.91 a87.91
Pionear Investmant Wwos Loan 90,49 181.57
FZCO

Total Lean 320.93 412.01

(b Inour opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans, during the year are, pnma facie, not
prejudicial to the Company's interest.

ic) Asthe loans are in the nature of demand loan, no schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
specified.

(d) Inrespect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount thereon as no demand has hean raised by the
company.

(e] Moloan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the yvear, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted
to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

ify  During the year, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature loans either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

{iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making
investmeants and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

{v) Inouropinion, the Company has not accepted any deposit or an amount deemed to be deposit during the year within the meaning
of Section 73 to Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Rules framed there under. Hencs, paragraph 3(v)
of the Order is not applicable.

{vi) Having regard to the nature of the Company's business | activities, the maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the
Central Government under section 148(1) of the Act. Accordingly reporting under clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the Order is nat
applicable,

(vii{a) According to the books and records produced and examined by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed Statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax (GST), Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues as applicable
with the appropriate authorities and no undisputed amount payable in respect of aforesaid statutory dues were outstanding as al
March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax and GST which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

{vill) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

{ix}{a}) The company has notdefaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or on the payment of interest thereon to any lender
during the year.
{b)The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any governmsnt
authority.
{c)The Term loan availed by the company has been utilized for the purpose for which such loan was obtained.
{d}On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not
baen used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.
{ejthe Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidianes and
hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.
{f} The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securties held in its subsidiaries, JV or associate
Company and hence reporting under clause 3(ix){f) of the Order is not applicable.

{x) {8} Thecompany has not raised any maney by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments ) during
the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)a) of the Orderis not applicable,
(b} During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Orderis not applicable.

{xi) {a) Mofraud by the company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year,
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(b} Mo report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.
(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year (and upto the date
of this report), while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures,

(xii) The company is not a “Nidhi Company”; hence paragraph 3{xii) the Order is not applicable.

(i) In our opinion, ransactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Act where applicable and the
details of such transactions have been disclosed in Note no.d6 in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the
applicable Ind AS.

(xiv) () In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its
business,
(b) We have considerad, the internal audit reports for the yvear under audit, issued to the Company during the year and till date, in
determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

{xv) In our opinion, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Hence, paragraph 3(xv) the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) (a2} In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)ia), (b) and (¢} of the Order is not applicable,
(b} In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3{xvi){d) of the Orderis not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial vear covered by our audit and the immediately preceding
financial year.

{xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial rafies, ageing and expected dales of realisation of financial assets and paymant of financial
libiliies, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a pariod of
ona year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the auwdit report and we neither give any guaraniee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

(=2} The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and there is no unspent C5R
amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act or special account in
compliance with the provision of Sub-section (8) of Section 135 of the sald Acl. Accordinaly, reporting under clause (xx) of the
Order is not applicable for the year.

For Kapoor Tandon & Co,,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.00D952C

(Divyank Nigam)
Partner
Place: Kanpur M. No. 438443
Date: 29.05.2025 UDIN: UDIN: 25438443BMIODYT227
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Kapoor Tandon & Co. ) Branch
Feanpun — 208007

D= 104, 1% Floor, Himalava House,
23 Aesliroa Gendh Marg,
Mew De ki 110007

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors® Report

(Referred toin paragraph 3(f) of our report of even date on the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025
of Super Tannery Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Super Tannery Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the yearended on
that date.

In aur opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating sffectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Cver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining interal financial controls based on the intemal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assels, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completensss of the accounting records, and the timealy
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Qwr responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Maote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance
MNote") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance aboul whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such contrals operated effectively in all matenal respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
undarstanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depand on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of malerial misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

Ve belisve that the audit evidence wea have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls system over financial reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
refiability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the fransactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
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regarding prevention or imely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may ocour and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future pericds are subject to the risk that the internal financial contral
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
proceduras may deteriorate.

For Kapoor Tandon & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.000952C

{Divyank Migam)

Partner
Place; Kanpur M. No. 438443
Date: 29.05.2025 UDIN: UDIN: 25438443BMIODY 7227
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SUPER TANMERY LIMITED (CIN: L19131UP1984PLCO0GA21)

Standalone Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025

Particulars Maote Mo, Az at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Rg. in Lacs R, in Lacs R, in Lacs Ri. in Lacs
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
{a} Property, Plant, Equipment & Intangible Assets 2[a) 0.103.19 T.732.90
(b} Capital work-in-progress i) 1KT,44 1,329,50
{c] Other Intangible assets 2ib) B3 9.22
(d] Financial Assets
i} Imvestments 3 T .43 33409
{il) Loans 320,60 411,69
{ili) Other Financial Assets 5 54.93 11665, 55 4160 TET4E
Current Assets
{a) Inventories [ 3349455 555639
{b] Financial Assets
(il Trade receivables 7 5.551.49 5HET.IR
(i) Cash and cash equivalents B 132,74 139,43
{iii) Bank Balances other than (i) above 9 554.65 T03.13
(] Other Financial Assets 10 223,65 Te62.53 Bh7.27 T.597.11
{c} Current Tax Assets (Net) - -
{d] Other current assets 11 114766 1. 504 80
TOTAL ASSETS 16,563, 16 24,607 41
E AMND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 12 107,73 107973
(b} Other Equity 13 &, 7305 10 RO, TH B T.6E 10.127.41
LIABILITIES
MNon current liahilities
{a) Fimancial llabilithes
(il Borrowings 14 233.51 B4 80
(b} Deferred tax Habilities (net) 15 RIB. 10 RLLS0
c} Other non-current liabilities 16 THT.1T T14.27
Current llablilities
{a) Financial liabilities
{i}y  Short term borrowlings 17 6,082 46 7.751.24
lii] Trade payables 18
(@} Total Oulstanding Dues bo micro and small enterprises 226.02 GORAR
{ib) Total Quistanding Due to partes other than micro and smal 4,334 .35 271485
[iii} ©ther financial liabiities 19 1,791.94 13,084.77 95215 12,026.72
{b) Other current liabilities 20 550,17 620,06
c] Provisions 21 2T0.66 22264
TOTAL EQLITY AND LIABILITIES 26,563,116 24,607 40
haterial Accounting Policies 1
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements
A5 per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Kapoor Tandon & Co.
Charterad Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, 0009520
Maohd. Imran Iiikharul Amin
Director (Finance) & CFO Managing Director

Divyank Nigam
Partner

b, Mo, 438443
Place; Kanpur
Date: 26.03.2023

DIN 037627 DN KR T424

R K. Awasthi
Company Secretary
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED [CIN: L19131UP1984PLC0DGA21)
Standalone Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulisrs MNaote Na, 2024-35 202324
Rs. As. s s,
INCOME:
Rewenua from Operations
{a] Sabes [ income from operations 22{a} 26,916.21 21.610.42
{b} Other Operating Revenus 22(b) 1.483.81 1840002 1.079.29 2268971
Other Income 13 FAERE 213,20
Total Income 1861420 11.902.91
EXPENSE:
Cost of materials consumed FL] 1785935 13.671.35
Purchase of stock-in-trade 25 Rl 1R G118
Changes in inventories of finished goods,
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 26 (214.29) 162,80
Employee Benefits Expenses 27 133317 1,138,110
Fimance costs 18 53836 a6l 89
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses i} T43. TR 670,74
Other Expenses 30 (. A37. 76 502903
Total Expenses 17.549.31 12,045 80
Prafit before Exceptional items and Tax 1. d BG BAT.01
Exceptional items - -
Profit before Tax L. B 85711
Tax expense:
1. Current Tax EILTRE 190100
1. Deferred Tax 2.66 55.36
3. Tax adjustment relating to earlier years
Current Tax 3607 2103
Deferred Tax - I38.73 - 26639
Profit for the period Ti6.16 500,72
Other comprehensive income
{i) iterms that will net be reclassified to prefit or loss
(a} Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans 14.15 1651
[ii] Income tax refated to iterns that will not be reclassified to prafit or loss (3.9 [[1%e1] {4.59) 1192
Total comprehensive income for the period TinaT w264
Earnings per equity share 31
[Face Value per Share Rs. in Lacs1/-}
1. Basic 067 0.55
2. Diluted D.67 01,55
Material Accounting Policies 1

See accompanying notes to the standalone financizl staterments
As per our attached report of even date

For Kapoor Tandon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo. 000S52C

Divyank Migam
Partmer

M. Mo, 438443
Place: Eanpur
Date: 2%.05.2025

For and on behallof the Board

Muhid. Tmran
Director (Finance) & CFO
DN 07627

R. K. Awasthi

Iftikharul Amin
Managing Director
D3I O T4 24

Company Secretary
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SUPER TANMERY LIMITED {CIN: L19131UP1984PLCO0GA21)
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March, 2025

A, Equity Share Capital

Particulars Rs. in Lacs
Balance as at March 31, 2023 107973
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior peried errors =
Restated balance as at April 01, 2023 1,079.73
Changes in equity during the yeas =
Bulance as af March 31, 2024 1079.73
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period emors -
Restated balsnce as at Apnil 01, 2024 1.079.73
Changes in equity during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 107973
B. Other Equity
Reserve and Surplus O] - Orher Tonal
Particulars Capital Securitics Crenerl Retnined Other
Reserve  |Premium Resarve Eamings Equity
Balance as af March 31, 2023 17.67 170,18 4,455,239 3,755.95 B499.01
Trafint fiar 1he year E80.72 9072
Dividersd Paid (53.99) 153.90)
Other Comprehensive Income 11.92 11.92
Balance as at March 31, 2024 17.67 | TR | 440024 | 4.354.59 - 904768
Profin for 1he year 126.16 T 16
Dividerst Poid (53.99) {53.99)
Other Comprehensive Inceme 1021 1021
Balance as at March 2025 17.67 | 170.18 | 4.347.24 5,004.96 - 9,730.05

Material Aceounting Policies

See accompanying notes 1o the standalone financial statements
As per our attached report of even date

For Kapoor Tandon & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, 000952C

For and on behalf of the Board

Mok, lmran

Director (Finance) & CFO
Divyank Migam DIM:M0ATH2T
Partner
M. Mo, 438443

Flace: Kanpur
Date: 20.05,2023

R. K. Awasthi
Company Secretary

Iftikharul Amin
Managing Dircctor
DIM:AMATA24
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED (CIN: L19131UP1984PLCO0GA21)

Standalone 5 t of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met Profit hefore tax 1,064,848 B57.11
Adjustments for
Drepreciation’ Amaisalion T43.78 67074
Profit on Sale of Property, Mlant & Equiprments {2725) (21}
Lass on Rale of Property, Plant & Equipments 181 306
Interest income {R2.248) {25.59)
Aceretion in Investment and Share of profit frem LLP (LR {3.03)
Expected Credin Loss 182 LIS
Finance Cost 424446 41284
Defermal of income on government grant {852} {145 K2%
Remeasurement of net defined benetin plans 14.15 1651
Marivairves Mol Provision arll 2648
Operating profit before working capltal changes LIkR4. 84 1E22.44
Changes in working capital:
{Increase )’ Decrease in trade receavables 424.940 [BER_38)
(Increase)’ Decrease in invensories L2k .59
{lscrease)’ Decrease in other non carrent boan 4] 0% {LE1.5T)
{Increase)’ Decrease in other non financial asset {13335} -
{Increasel Decrease in ather current fnancial assets {15638} {X75.51)
{Increase)’ Decrease in other current assets 44714 (234.64)
Increase’ (Decrease} in non carrent Dzhilities . -
Increase! (Decrease) in rade payables 128704 (X22.41)
Ircrense! (Drecrense} in other financial habilities R39.79 21813
Increase! (Decrease) in other current labilities (HE00) Tio
Incrense! (Decrense) in Provisions {10,000} L]
Cash generated from operations 5007420 921217
Ingomie 1axes refunded | (paid), net {E33.05) (15297}
Mel cash generated Trom operaling activilies 404115 Tod2
B, CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property Flant &
Equipment{inchuding CWIP ) (2.H32.00) {1, 166650
Purchose of tther inlangible asets (A2} {405}
Procesds from sale of property, plant and equipment 10,45 584
Frcrease of nam-current investiments (458 10y {22.62)
Interest received H2.24 2550
{iher bank balances {Margin Money) 148 4% [ 264k 50
Mt eash (used in)  generated from iovesting activities {349.52) 1142237
T, CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceda)| repayment) rom'ef short-tenn loans 1 1,068.78) a6
Procesds/{repayment ) from/el long-term loans 148.71 3997
Finance costs posd 1424.46) (412 B4}
Drividend paid {3599} {33.99)
Mat cosh used in financing sclivites {1.398.52) 55279
INCREASE [ {DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 40331 (W38}
Cash and cash eguivalbents at the beginning of the year 134943 LELE |
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 73274 13043
{refer Mote Moo B for break-up) .00 .00
Material Accounting Palicies
See agcompanying nates te the standobone financinl siatements
As per our atiached repon of even date For and on hehalf of the Board
For Kapoor Tandon & Co,
Charered Accountanis
Firm Registration Mo, (KK9320
sohd, Imran Htikharal Amin
Mrector (Finance) & CFO Managing Director
AN THZT DIM:O00ET424
Divyank Migam
Partner
M. No. 438443
Place: Kanpur R. K. Awasthi
Drate: 24,015, 202% Company Secrefary

57



SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

SUPER TANNERY LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 1:

A. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Super Tannery Limited ("the Company") is a public limited company having its registered office situated at 187/170
JAJMAL ROAD JAJMAU KANPUR was incorporated on 06.02.1984,

The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and exports of Leather and leather footwear.

The Company's equity shares are listed at the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

Thefinancial statements were approved forissue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on May 29, 2025.

B. MATERIALACCOUNTING POLICIES

g Il

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act. In addition, the guidance
notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) are also applied except
where compliance with other statutory promulgations require a different treatment.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for

following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value amount:

i) Certainfinancial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments),

i) Defined benefit plans - plan assets
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods or
senvices.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardiess of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue.

Operating Cycle for current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/inon-current classification.

An assetis classified as currentwhen itis:

a) expected to be realised orintended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle,

b} held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Aliability is classified as current when:

a) itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle,

b} itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) itisdueto be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) there is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period,

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle of the Company, that is, the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalentis 12 months.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its functional currency.

Critical estimate and Judgements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
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estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements,
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on anongoing basis.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

Employee benefits (estimation of defined benefit obligation)

Post-employment benefits represent obligations that will be settled in the future and require assumptions to
project benefit obligations. Post-employment benefit accounting is intended to reflect the recognition of
future benefit costs over the employee's approximate service period, based on the terms of the plans and
the investment and funding decisions made. The accounting requires the Company to make assumptions
regarding variables such as discount rate and salary growth rate. Changes in these key assumptions can
have a significantimpact on the defined benefit obligations,

+ Estimation of expected useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at each reporting
date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and
economic obsolescence that may change the utility of property, plant and equipment.

Contingencies

Legal proceedings covering a range of matters are pending against the Company. Due to the uncertainty
inherent in such matters, it is often difficult to predict the final outcome. The cases and claims against the
Company often raise difficult and complex factual and legal issues that are subject to many uncertainties
and complexities, including but not limited to the facts and circumstances of each particular case/claim, the
jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law. In the normal course of business, the Company consults
with legal counsel and other experts on matters related to litigations. The Company accrues a liability when
it is determined that an adverse outcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. In the event an adverse outcome is possible or an estimate is not determinable, the matter is
disclosed.

Valuation of deferred tax assets

Deferred income tax expense is calculated based on the differences between the carrying value of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases that are considered temporary
in nature. Valuation of deferred tax assets is dependent on management's assessment of fulure
recoverability of the deferred benefit. Expected recoverability may result from expected taxable income in
the future, planned transactions or planned optimising measures. Economic conditions may change and
lead to a different conclusion regarding recoverability.

+ Fairvalue measurements

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair values are measured using valuation
technigues, including market multiples model (Market Approach) and Capitalisation method (Income
Approach)which involve various judgements and assumptions.

impairment of Property, plant and equipment, Right-of-use assets, intangible assets (other than
goodwill) and Capital work-in-progress

The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on future cash flows after
considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rates
and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using
internal forecasts. The cash flows are discounted using a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
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presentvalue,

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period; they are recognised in the period of the revision and future
pericds if the revision affects both current and future periods.

6. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which
represent the carrying value of property, plant and equipment recognised at 1st April 2016 measured as per the
previous GAAP. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to
bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and
adjustments arising from exchange rate variations atfributable o the assets.

Subseguent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity
and the cost can be measured reliably.

Assets are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
forintended use.

Expenses incurred relating to project, including borrowing cost and net of income earned during the project
development stage prior to its intended use, are considered as pre - operative expenses and disclosed under
Capital Work - in - Progress.

Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the Company intends to use these
during more than a period of 12 months.

7. Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
Company, is classified as investment property. Property, plant and equipment are stated al cost, net of
recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represent the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment recognised at 1st April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP. Such cost includes purchase
price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its
intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate
variations attributable to the assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment or any significant part initially recognised of such item of property
plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the
assetis derecognised.

8. Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated
residual value. Depreciation has been provided on such cost of assets less their residual values on straight line
method on the basis of estimated useful life of assets as prescribed in Schedule || of the Act,

Estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment as estimated by the management is the same as
prescribed in Schedule || and the same are as follows:

Factory buildings - 30 years

Mon-factory buildings - 5 to 60 years

Railway sidings - 15 years

Plant and equipments - 15 years

Furniture and fixtures - 8 to 10 years
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Computers (included under plant and equipments) - 3 years

Office equipments -5 years

Vehicles - Bto 10 years

Freehold land is not depreciated/amortised.

Assets held under financial leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets or, wherever shorter, the term of relevant lease.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro rata basis except that, assets costing upto Rs. 5,000 each are fully
depreciated in the year of purchase.

The estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

9. Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less
accumulated amortisation/depletion and impairment loss, if any, Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing
costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, net
charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to
the intangible assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity
and the cost can be measured reliably.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets being computer software is amortised on straight line method over the period of five years.
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangibles assets recognised as on
April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of
transition date.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible assel are reviewed at least at the end of
each reporting period and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The amortisation expense on intangible assels is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

10.Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
assel's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating
unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds recoverable amount.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased.

If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount, A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the assetin prior years.

11.Leases

Company as a Lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a define period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified assets, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contact involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the
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Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease
and (i) the Company has the right to direcl the use of the asset.

As a lessee, The Company recognises a right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
assetorthe site on which itis located, less any lease incentives received.

The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right of use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated
useful lives of right of use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In
addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the
Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or
the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments, including in-
substance fixed payments and lease paymenis in an optional renewal peried if the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option,

The lease liability is measured at amaortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The
Company applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similarend date.

Company as a Lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. Where the Company is a lessor under an operating lease, the asset is
capitalised within property, plant and eguipment and depreciated over its useful economic life. Payments
received under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

12. Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. The basis of determining the cost for
various categories of inventory are as follows:

(a) Raw matenals, Chemicals, Components, stores & spares and Stock in Trade — Cost includes cost of
purchase (Net of recoverable taxes) and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on FIFO basis.

{b) Stock in process and finished goods- Direct cost plus appropriate share of overheads.

(c) Saleable Scrap/Waste/By products - At estimated realisable value.

(d) Inter unit gods transfer — transfer price

(g} Import Entitliement / Licences — At estimated realisable/Utilisation value

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

13.Foreign Currencies

a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The financial statements are presented
in Indian Rupee (INR/Rupees), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

b) Transaction and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded on initial recognition at the exchange rate prevailing on the
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date of the transaction,

Any gains or losses arising due to differences in exchange rates at the time of translation or settlement are
accounted for in the Statement of Profit & Loss either under the head foreign exchange fluctuation or
interestcost, as the case may be, except those relating to long-term foreign currency monetary items.

14. Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates
Investment in associates and other related parties are carried at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.
15, Fair Value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market which can be accessed by the

Company for the asset or liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
5lgnlf|cant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly orindirectly observable
Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
{based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

16.Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets nol recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial assets.
Based on the business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset, the Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit and loss.
Debt instruments at amortised cost
Debt instruments such as trade and other receivables, security deposits and loans given are measured at the
amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and
Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPP|) on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
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effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
inance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit orloss.
Debt instruments at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
A'debtinstrument’ is classified as at the FWTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and
The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.
Debt instruments included within the FVTOC! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
atfair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).
Debt instruments at Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
FWTPL is a residual category for debt instruments excluding investments in subsidiary and associate
companies. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
FWTOCI, is classified as at FWVTPL.
After initial measurement, any fair value changes including any interest income, foreign exchange gain and
losses, impairment losses and other net gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition
Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
pnrlr‘nzlnl;n..r dereco-gnlsed (i.e. removed from the Company's Balance Sheet) when
The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through'
arrangement; and either:
The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
On de-recognition, any gains or losses on all debt instruments (other than debt instruments measured at
FVOCI) and equity instruments (measured at FVTPL) are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Gains and losses in respect of debt instruments measured at FWVOCI and that are accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition. Gains or losses on equity instruments measured at FVOC! that
are recognised and accumulated in OCI are not reclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition.

17. Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss

on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

b} Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
In case of other assets (listed as a) above), the company determines if there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased
significantly, an amount equal to 12-month ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance. However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognized as loss
allowance.

18. Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
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Financial Liabilities at Fair Val rough Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL,
fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk is recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are
not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities classified and measured at amortised cost such as loans and borrowings are initially
recognized at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss.

Derecognition
Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

19. Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage the commodity price risk and exposure on
account of fluctuation in interest rate and foreign exchange rates. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
measured at fair value with changes being recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Derivatives are carried
as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken through profit and loss.

20. Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amorlised cost. Any differences between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in Profit or loss over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be drawn down. Inthis case, the fee is deferred until
the drawdown ocours.

The borrowings are removed from the Balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid including any noncash asset
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/{losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability of at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a
long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability
becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the
lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statement for issue, not to
demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

21. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
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funds.

Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing
costs.

Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of
activities relating to construction/development of the qualifying asset upto the date of capitalisation of such
assetis added to the cost of the assets.

Interest income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowing pending expenditure on gualifying
asselis deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation,

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur,

22. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the standalone balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultanecusly, The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company, or the counter party.

23.Claims

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts are disclosed after a careful evaluation of the facts
and legal aspects of the matter involved.

24. Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Capital Commitments

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance
sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by future events not
wholly within the control of the Company, or present obligations where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed when the inflow of economic benefits is probable.
However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent
asset, butitis recognised as an asset.

25. Government Grant

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attached conditions will be complied with.

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses incurred in previous
period(s). Such a grant is recognised in profit or loss of the period in which it becomes receivable,

Government grants shall be recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants related to assets are presented in the balance sheet as deferred income and is recognised
in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related assets or other relevant basis.
Government grants by way of financial assistance on the basis of certain qualifying criteria are recognised as
they become receivable.

In the unlikely event that a grant previously recognised is ultimately not received, it is treated as a change in
estimate and the amount cumulatively recognised is expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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26. Revenue Recognition

Sale of Goods and services

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when (a) control is transferred to the
customer, which is mainly upon delivery in case of domestic sales and on issuance of Shipping Bill in case of
export sales.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods supplied and
services rendered, net of returns, rebates and discounts to customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, such as Goods &
Services Tax (GST).

Interest Income

Interest income is accrued on using on a time basis by the effective interest rate with reference to the principal
oufstanding.

Dividend Income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been
established.

Exportincentives

Export Incentives are recognised when certainty of receipt is established.

Insurance Claim

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted [ expected to be admitted and to the extent
that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and itis reasonable to expect ultimate collection.
OtherIncome

Other income is accounted for on accrual basis except where the receipt of income is uncertain and in such
caseitis accounted for on receipt basis.

27. Employee Benefits

The Company makes contributions to both defined benefit and defined contribution schemes which are mainly
administered through/by duly constituted and approved Trusts and the Government.

Defined Contribution Scheme

In case of provident fund administered through Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, the Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

In case of members of constituted and approved trusts, the Company recognises contribution payable to such
trusts as an expense including any shortfall in interest between the amount of interest realised by the
investment and the interest payable to members at the rate declared by the Government of India.

The Company's confributions paid / payable during the year to provident fund administered through Approved
Trust, Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, Superannuation Fund and Employees' State Insurance
Corporation are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to contributions.

Defined Benefit Scheme

Gratuity: Cost of providing the Benefit is determined on an actuarial basis at the end of the year and charged to
Statement of Profit and Loss. The cost of providing these benefits is determined by independent actuary using
the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the asset ceiling, (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and return on plan assets), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. It is included in retained earnings in the statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Leave encashment: Leave balance as at the end of the calendar year is encashed and balance leaves earned
thereafter to the extent not availed by the employees are provided in the accounts.
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28. Research and Development Expenditure

Expenditure on research of revenue nature is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss and that of capital nature
is capitalized as fixed assets.

29. Taxes onIncome

Current tax is the amount of tax payable determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and provisions
ofthe Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance
sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using
the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temparary differences, carry forward tax losses
and allowances to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be ulilised. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax rates. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off
sel, and presented as net,

Current and deferred taxes relating to items directly recognised in reserves are recognised in reserves and not
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the
form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that
the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an deferred tax asset in the
Balance Sheet when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

30. Dividend Distribution

Dividends paid {including income tax thereon) is recognised in the period in which the interim dividends are
approved by the Board of Directors, orin respect of the final dividend when approved by shareholders.

31.Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows statement is prepared as per the Indirect Method specified in Ind AS 7 on Cash Flows. Cash and
cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in statement of cash flows exclude item which are not
available for general use on the date of balance sheet.

32. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of
extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of
extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of
any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares
which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the
net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be
converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a |later date. The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e.
average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares
are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

33. Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in consistent manner with the internal reporting provided to the Chief

Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the Company,
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34. RecentIndian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31,
2025, MCA has notified amendments to Ind AS — 117 Insurance Contracts. Ind AS 116 — Leases, relating to
sale and leaseback transactions and consequential amendments to other standards which are not material,
applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024, The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and
based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have any significantimpact inits financial statements

On 7 May 2025, MCA issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2025, which
made certain amendments to Ind AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, effective from 1
April 2025, These amendments define currency exchangeability, provide guidance on estimating spot
exchange rates when a currency is not exchangeable and include related disclosure requirements. The
Company does not expect this amendment to have any significantimpact in its financial statements.
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Calitians §73.28| - 423100 - - - - 46108} L5 44}
A wl Masch 31, 2025 30646 1530.34 9,916 50 EEDLTS .31 10036 27140 B21 90 14,386.42 2,078.44
Accumulated Depreciaion®
A al Masch 31, 2023 - 334.37 2,84497 11058 40.80 48.87 12B.36 AT4.21 3,981 76 -
Addition - 729 LEFE=] TER 159 a8.71 1357 4542 59595
Il Sdjustreants 73.13 7319
Dutetions (X ATOLES) ABDS0Y
A al March 31, 2024 = 455.66 3,350.99 113.27 42.39 57.58 14B53 30893 4,5740 =
Additions TLE3 53B48 .43 218 1030 2058 5102 B
Inddis Adjusteants 3334 3934
Dttt iong {1758} 45441} AT23T)
Az al Masch 31, 2025 = 52749 3,900.58 117.76 44.57 67.BE 165.18 39559 524333 =
Het Carrying amous
A ot March 31, 2023 30,92 1002.24 4,436.12 10541 9.78 24,40 B62.7T1 205,72 7,17230 1,175.44
A ot Masch 31, 2024 35092 1,083.53 4,B21.71 107.73 17.13 21.80 8123 4830 7,732 50 1,3F550
Az at Masch 31, 2025 F0E.86 052.B5 6,015.52 152.99 13.74 32.38 10155 Aps31 9,103.13 2,075.44
Dither Istangible assets
Farticulars Cofupithr. | M Trademark TOTAL
IRz In lacs) {Rs. In facs) ®s. I lacs| |Rz=. In lacx)
| Gross carnying value®
A at Maech 31, 2023 6.37 a7 L.55 B8.73
Additons i1 3.28
| Cetetians
| A= at March 31. 2028 9.65% a7 155 12.07
Additions o4 0=
Celetions E
Az at March 31, 2025 .05 [E 1 155 12.47
0.53 058 0.78 2,25 |
Additions 59 - 0.x3
Deletions = -
Ay at March 31, 2028 148 54 [} 2.E%
dditions 059 - 0,53
Deletions & £ -
g at March 31, 2025 207 058 078 p T
Met Cammying amcand
g ot March T1, 2023 58K 023 0T (33
i at March 31, 20248 H.17 29 0.7 9.1
ix t Plarch 31, 2025 188 039 .77 8408
*At deemed cont 3 pey IND-AS 101
2.c) [ Assets green as security for Borrowangs
Al ghe items of Preperty, Phink and Equipment of the Company hewe baen gioen o lenders o security for seious barowing fsclities
{li} The mansgement has caried out an sxercise of idenbfying the amet that may bave been impared, durieg the yess, momespect of esch cash gemersting unfl, On the bass of review carned out by the
meragemaent. there was no ampairment loss on feoed assets during the pear,
Capetanl-Wark-im Progress {CWF) (R in s}
{a] Agrizg wchedole dor CapRabwark-in A Ax i Warch 31, 2095 At March §1, 7034
Farticulan Aot in CWIF foe s permd of Tatsl Amment in CWIF for & perind of Toisl
Lites thas 1y 1 -1 years T3 s febari: than 3 years Less than L yar 1+ 2 1paars 1 A pars fone than 3 wears
A0 Progects in grogress 1amn.m 55108 115 2 20T AL 04 0T 1aray 26T 115 B £.33%.50
117] Progects tin g rarily suspesdal - - - -
Todsl LT SF1LOR JLE76 = 07 AL 207 a1 4% E2E.T2 11576 £, 33550
{o} DWIR, whase comgletin: i overtur or hay msseeded iy ot compuad in s original plin ni
dle ikits under deval: i gilike CWIP| ML HiL
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

SUPER TANNERY LIMITED (CIN: L19131UP1984PLCD0GAZ1)
Motes forming part of the Standalone Financial &

for the year ended March 31, 2025

3 Financial Assers: Investmunts - Nom Carrvst

Particulars Ax i March 31, 2125 Asak March 31, 2024
Wa. ol Mo, of
Shars R, In Jacs Shases Rs.in lacs
Equity Shares Unguoded
A, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
(ip SUPER TANNERY {UK.) LIMITED
Cwdinary Shares of GBP 1 each falky paid up L 152 1] 152
(Hy - AARIFI TANNERS LIMITED
Exquity Shanes of Rs. in Lacs 10 each Bally paid ap 1205266 16424 1205366 146424
(Hi) SUPER CORPORATION LIMITED
Equiny Shares of Rs, in Lacs 100 each fally pald up 26,4000 Ll 2600 2l
(v} SECURE SAFETY LIMITED
Equity Shares of Rs. in Locs 10V- each fully paid ap G A5 M0 a4 93 945 30 44.93
(v]  Hupser lalin SEL
Ordinary Shares of Euro 1= cach fully paid up 2090 0.75 900 .75
(i) HX London Fashions Pyi. Lid
Exquiny Shates of Ra, 100 esch fully pald 10000 (R (LEEETE 1.0
iviil Piomeer Investment Freo
Equisy Shares of Rs. [0V~ each fully paid 2,1 ELIEE S} [LEE{TITH] 2174
Talal - A 745 KB IBT.7R
B. OTHERS
(i SUPERHOUSE OVERSEAS LIMITED
Equity Shares af Bs. m Lacs 10V- gach fully paid 3000 050 3000 .50
(i) AL-BARR FINANCE HOAISE LIMITED
Equity Shres of B, i Lacs 100 easch fulby paid 20,000 2 20D L
(il SYIT PRONEXT MACHINES PRIVATE LIMITEDR
Equizy Shares af Rs. in Lacs 00 esch fully paid 850 et | 8,500 1O
(ivd INDUSTHIAL INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES (INDHA) LIMITED
Equity Sharcs of Bx. in Lacs |0V- cach fully paid HHHS 031 #1000 74
(v} KANPUR UNMAD LEATHER CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT COx LTD.
Exquizy Shares of Bs. b Locs100- cach ully paid 7500 TS0 75000 1.50
U JATMAL TANNERY EFFLUENT TREATMENT ASSOCIATION
Equity Shares af Rs. in Locs1 0V each fulky paid 26,200 a2 26,200 242
Total - B 1431 14.44
C, INVESTMENT IN PARTNERSHIF/LLEF FIRM
(ip BOVINIFRILLS LLP
11 5% im the capdtnl of the L [Ehe] 75
Share of Fesorves and Surplus of the LLF 20 3T
Total - © an.73 31.45
Eguity Shares CQusted
I (1} Superhouse Ll
Equity Shares of Rs, in Locs 10/ each fully paid 5200 .52 3,20 152
Tonal - Iy [ER [TEF]
Total {A+H+C+D) TUEA3 13419
Aggregate Hoak Yaolee of Quetsd Invesimends 52 52
Mot Walue af Qusted Investimems 732 HEZT
Aggregate Heak Valee of Unguated Invesiments THIL 1S 2x2
Aggregate pravision R demmution n vilue ol lnvesirenis
i Caplial n i Sha Haihn L Bs, im Locs
Profit
Sharing Capital as on Capital as vn
Same of Pariners Rarie ILIAZRS 3032024
I i Shahblae Khan 5% 275 175
2 Super Taomery Limited 15% 073 075
3 M, [ikbans] Amin 1545 Q.73 74
4 Mr Fjbal Ahean 15% 0,73 75
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

SUPER TANNERY LIMITED [CIN: L19131UP1284PLCDO0GA21)
MNotes forming part of the & Financial Stat

For the year ended Barch 31, 2025

4 Finanial Assers: Loans - San Curvent

Particalars

A at arch 31, 225

Rz In lacs

Bs in lacs

A5 at March 31, 2024

Rs. In lacs

Hs. In lacs

Loang aed Advasniss
0 Subsidzrses
Seoured Considersd Cool
Umseenrad Considered Geod
Ursesured whach have significam mcrease i credit risk
Ursecured credit impaired
(refier Mite o 35 for detalls)

Tutal

5 (her Financial Assels - Non Current

320,03

120093

320493

EIR R

41163

41169

B at March 31, 2004

Partsculars As ak March 31, 3025

Rs. In lacs Rz In lacs
Unszeured Comsidered Good
Seoarity Deposiis 54.93 1.6
Totul a4.93% 4101
# Invemtorles (Af cost or ned lisnkle value which is lawer)

Partsulars A at March 31, 2025 A5 at March 31, 2004
R, In lacs B in lacs
Raw Matomals 56,17 1,382,560
Work in Progress 199749 211848
Finshed Gionds | (RS2 T4 44
Chemleal, Compomns aml span: pams 143201 1,381.93
Waste & Scrap 1526 24.80
Totul 239438 455030

L)

ik} Dharing the year Rs in Lacs Mil was n i a5 expense

7 Finapcial Azsets - Carrent: Trade Heceivable

All the Imveniorics bave been hypothecsied ax secarity for vanous working fcrlities from banks,
ls write-desn of imventory.

Partsculars

A5 at March 31, 2025

Rz In lacs

Rz In lacs

A at $arch 31, 2024

Rs, In lags

Az In lacs

Secured Considered Good

Unsecured Considered Crood

Unsecured which bave sigaiflcant increase in ereds sk
Unsecured credit impaired

Lizas: Imparrmient Loss Albowance [ECL)
Toaal

355044

133158

368507
133.58
555149

{1 All ihe Trade Receivubles have been hypothecated as secumity for varions working facilities from hanks.

Tride Hoceavnhle apeing Schedube

394728

12276

a0 G
122.7a
5,967,218

(A5 in Lags)

Particulars Wal Due

Cutstarding from duse date|

date of transasction

Tatal

5 momibes
- | year

Le=ss tham
i moths

| year -
2 wear

2 year -
3 wear

Mdare than
3 year

As af March 31, 2025
Urdisputed Trode Beceivables
{nh Considered Crood
{in) Which have sipnificant increase
im credit risk E
{iidy Credit impaired B
[hspuied Trade Recervables
(1) Considerod Good - - -
(i) Which have sipndfican mensase
i credit risk . . :
(i) Credit imgpaired = = -

JATE 626,47 L7896

6.6 73.53

iz

3EK

5.551.49

13158

Togal 3ALE b3, 14 1. H62.6%

5H.TH

AT 4%

568508

As ot March 31, 2024
Ulpadispured Trode Recefvables
i) Considered Goud
{in) Which have sipnificant mcrease
m credit risk -
{itdy Credit impaired E
Dhsputed Trade Recsivables
{1 Comsidered Gomd - - -
(i) Which hase sipficen) mensse
i credit risk . . .
(i1} Credit imgaired z a a

1.953.55 INTITG Ting

#ll.71 .50

14015

1218

180 B

.37

5,967.28

12276

Total 1,.953,55 23347 75143

1h1.33

118.26

i B L84
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

SUPER TANMERY LIMITED (CIN: L19131UP1984PLCO0GA21)

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31,

2025

8 Financlal Assets - Current: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Rs. In lacs. Rs. In lacs Rz, In lacs Rs. In lacs
Balances with banks
01 CUFTen! ACCOais ST0.RI 16346
on EEFC account 19149 3.0
300,00 22850
Cheques and Draft on Hand /Remittance in Transit 130,43 471
Cash on hand 11.81 620
Total Ti1T4 13941

9 Financial Assets - Current: Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Rz, In lacs Rz In lacs
Margin money deposits (resticted, held as len agamst bank guaranizes) 538,54 (o] 48
Earmarked balances with banks - unclaimed Dividend la 1l 1165
Total 554,65 70313
1 her Current Financial Assets
Partigulars As at March 31, 2025 Asat March 21, 2024
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs
Unsecured Consideresd Goosd
Export Incentive Receivable 403 3% kx4l
Balonece with GovtRevenue puthonty 420,30 03K
Tuatal LrER 6h7.27
11 Oiher Current Assefs
Purticulars As at March 31, 2025 Asat March 31, 2024
As. In lacs Rs. In lacs
Unsecured Consideresd Good
Advances to Trade Creditors QRE 24 143246
Advance recoverable in cosh or kind or tor value to be received B2E3 h9.39
Prepaid expenses G330 5967
Interest receivable from WOS 13.96 328
Tatal 1,147.33 1,594.K0
12 Equity Share Capital
Particulars A5 at March 31, 2025 A5 at March 31, 2024
N, of No, of
Shares Bs in Lacs Shares Rs, in Lacz
Aunthorised
Eguity Shares of Rupee 1/-cach 10,00, (3, (WK 11000+ 10 (000 1. 100nn
lssned
Equity Shares of Rupee 1/-each 10,7%,73, 340 L0773 10,7%,73, 360 1.079.73
Subscribed and Tully paid-up
Equity Shares of Bupee 1/-cach 10,79,73,360 107973 10,79,73.360 1.079.73
Total 107973 1.079.73
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

SUPER TANNDRY LIMITED [CIN- L19131UP198APLOO0G6A21]

Motes forming past of the Standslone Fnancial Ststements Tor the year ended March 31, 2025

(A) Reconsiliatinm of the nmimsher ol eguity charis and share capital

Particulars A5 at March 31, 2025 Az at March 31, 2004
W ol Shares Hs. m Las M, af Shares R= in Lz
Subsorbed andg Ay paid-ue equiy shaves
Chatstanding 1 the beglising of the year 179,73, 160 [Eird k] 10,79,71, 364 AT T3
Shares tasued durng the year - = e =
Chutsianding 24 the end of the year 101,75, 75, S0 1,074.73 10,749,731 361} LA TY
(B Detail of Shares held by the prowaters:
Az at March 31, 2025 Az at March 31, 2024 Uhanges during the year
3. Mame of the Promaier M. of %% of Shares M. o %4 of Shares Changes during the year
Mo, Shares held Shares held Mool shames b
| VEQUARDL AMIN 1,788 901 l656% -1,78,83,500 -1 56%
2 HYBAL AIISAN GLA2,502 RAT 9141502 AT - -
3 IFTIKHARUL AMIN 1.521.35,622 ld.1E% 0080432 Sl 61,55,1%0 5.70%
4 MUBASHIRUL AMIN 695447 5.37% 4590000 A X5% 11,058,447 102%
7 UMAIRUL AMIN 36.9544% 5.17%  A550000 4 25% 11,056,448 102%
i TANVEERUL AMIN #5.51,730 E0T%  45,00.000 417% 20,51,730 1.90%
T FARHA FATIMA il 6B, 01% 570%  41162R9 1% 20,510,730 190%
H BOPHLA AMIN 3458400 120 34 SR I - -
9 ISEMAT I0HEAL 1,113,555 1R31%  3MLAZRHE LR B0AT, 755 TAS%
1 RUMANA AMIN = - 26,3341 14 |26,33.400) -1 Ad%
Total - 6,30,77,723 SHA1%  &30,T7,7I3 SH.AI% - LE 1
A5t March 31, 2004 As &t March 31, 2023 Changes during the yiar
5. Meme ol thi Fromater o, of % of Shares o, of %o of Shares Changes during the yiar
K. Shares he:ld Sharce held Mool shases %
I VEQUARLUIL AMIN 1, 7823, 000 Iriat,  1L.TH 83,900 I 50 - -
2 HDRAL AHSAM 142,502 AT 01,43 %02 N7 - -
3 IFTIEHARLL ARMIN i 801,432 1.40% R TV Rl L b -
4 MUBASHIRLL AMIN 44,540,000 4.2%%, 45,9000 425 -
3 UMAIRUL AMIN 44 540, 1 4.28% 4590000 4 250 . .
i TANVEERLUL aMiN EERCIRITEH 44T 25,0000 4.1
T FARHA FATIMA 41,146,289 3% 4484912 di4%  14H621.0M Lk FL
H SOPHLA AMIN 34.58,400 1a0%  BA R4 3% . .
9 ISMAT I0BAL 30,82 R00 1E6%  MESXEO0L 1 RA . .
1 RUMANA AMIN 26,135,400 2d4% 2632400 gt - -
Tatal - 630,77, 723 SHAZ% 42640 ST (BAHG2RA0) B 12%

1 Terms amd rights attached to eguity shares

The company bas only vne class of equity shanes having a par value of Bx. 1 per share. Each holder of cquity shares is entilled to one vole per share. The company
devlares and s dividends in Indias Rupees. The dovidend proposed by the Heard of Dirsciors (s sabjeet ie the approval of the sharehoklers i the ensising Annual

Cieneral Mecting.

I the cvent ol Tigusdstion af e cormpany, the holders of equity shares will be ennithad W0 o remaining 155633 o the company, afier dutrdbaion ol all
preferenial amaunts. The distribution will be in proportion to the nember af equity shares held by the shareholders.

1[0 [etnils ol sharchelders hobdisg more than 5% shares i ihe

Sharcheddeds Maie

Ag ot March 31, 3025

Az at March 31, 2024

P off Shares ) Mo, ol Shares e
(8] M= Vegand Az - = 1,78, 81,500 L&6.50%
[by M. lghad Abean F1.42,502 AT H1,41.502 4T
fe) M thikharul Amim 1,82.35,622 4.1 1% B, 80432 241%
fdy  Mr. Mabastaril Amin b U5 84T 5.17%
rel Mr Umssul Anin L T §5.37%
i Mr Tarveersl Amin P Bk ] 6.07%
(gl Mrs. Farha Fatiesa NI 5.71%
th M lsma lghal 1,11,30, 555 13E%
2024-25 2023-24
iMa, of Shares) Mo, of Shares)
(E1 Exquity Shares allotbed as fully paid pursuant to coniesctis) witheul paimend being received m qish MIL o
during the emmediiely preceding five vears
(F}  Equiry Shares allotted as fulky paid up Bonus Shares doring the immediately precedmg five vears HIL HIL
(3] Equity shares buy-hack in immediniely preceding five yoars MIL HIL
() Shares held by helding aliimate bolding company and’'er thesr subsidiancs’ essociales NIL KIL

il (1) The Beard of Dircelors af the Company bas recomimended a final dividend of Bs. (kD8 per equny share (5% face valse of Bs.| each for the year ended March 11,

2028, suhject i che apgroval of Shareholders.

(b} The conypany has pasd fnal dividend of Bs 005 per equity stare|3%) face value of Rx | sach for the year ended Manch 312024
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

SUPER TAMMERY LIMITED (CIN: L19131UP1SRAPLCDOGEAZ])
Notes forming part of the Standalone Finandial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

13 idher equity

Particabars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs
{a) Capital Reserve 17.67 1767
ib) Becurifies Premicm 270,18 2THLER
{c) General Reserve 4,347,214 4,401 .24
() Reined Earmings 5,094 .96 4350 540
Tutal 9, 7HLIE 04768
—_— —_—

(A} Capital Reserve
[t represent the gain of capilal natere which mainky include the excess of value of nel assets acguired over consideration paid by the company for business

{B1 Secarities Premium
Seeurifies premium reserve is used o recond the preminm on issue of shares ond is utilized in accordance with the provisions ol the Act,

10 General Reserve
Mundntory iransfer 10 general reserve is not required under the Companies Act, 2013

{13 Retnined Earnings
Retained camings are the profits that the Company has earned nil dote, less any transfers wo general reserve, dividends paid or other digtributions out of reserves o

14 Financial Liabilitics - Non-current: Borrowings

Particubars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Rs. Inlacs Rs. In lacs
Secured
Rupee loans
Term boans fromn banks - INR 2671 -
Wehwle Term loans from banks - INE 206 ¥ BBl
Tutal 13351 84,50

Repayment terms:
(8] The clasificaison of loans between carrent Habilises amd non-current labilises continues based om repayment schedule under respective agreements a3 no leans
have been recalled dwe to non compliance of conditions wider any of the loan agreessens,
(b} Inberest rates: Loans availed from hanks in TNR carry interest rate mnging from 1005% to 1163 %5 (March 31, 2024: 1O5% b 1 165%) for term leans.
{2)  Bcheduled repayments: Conracianl repayments in case of loans from banks (ineluding Current marurities disclosed under other Curreni finoncial labilinies:

Particulirs As at March 31, ME23 A3 &l March 31, 2024
Rs. in Lacs Rs i Lacs
Upitor throe vears 16237 9334
Between three b five years 68.50 .65
Crwer five yeors 31,23 -

Refer note 390 ih) (11} & (1110 en Interest mbe sk and Liguidity Bisk respectively.

Securiry details:-
Afresaid Term Loans are secured by hypothecation' mergage of company’s maveable and im-moveahle properiies. Farther secured by the persanal punrantes
af promoter Directors of the company ad Aarifi lanners Lid, which i ihe subsiliary of the company.
Wehicle Loans

Seured by hoypotheention of vehicle financed,

15 Deferred tax Habilities (Ner)

Particubars As at March 31, 2025 A at Barch 31, 2034
Rz, In lacs Rz, In lacs

Tau effect of fems constituling defered fax Tabiity

Borrowengs messuared of amortized cost

Om difference between book balance and tax balance of fixed assets 4335 RE4.25
U EPRCG, [DLS & Other [hems 167,34 198,71
1.012.74 1,082,546

Ta effect of Tems constituling deferred [y assels
Expenses allowable on payment bases and other dems 19464 27144
Tatal Tax effect of items constinuting defermed ax pssets 19464 271
Nt Deferred Tax Liability BT 1150
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

SUPER TANMNERY LIMITED{CIN: L151531UP1984PLCO0GAE)

Motes Forming part of the § fal Firancial % for the year ended March 31, 2025
16 Crther Nom-curvent Liahiblicies
Tartwculars Ag at March 31, 2025 As a1 March 31, 2024
A= Hs.
Drefirned Resvinane
Goad Grant under 118 [76.50 152.27
EPCG Obliganans GBI ET 62,161
Total TEYIT TI4.27
1a) Clovermment Gl ander IDLS, the deferred grant income: s recogntoad in Sttement of Profil ard Loss on a systemabic bass gver the uselul il of assd on
wivich sach prant b recelved sobseer 1o complianee of otlver rerms & condisons of the scheme
(b1 Undler EPCG seheme, the Company b commitied W export prescnibed times of e duty asved on impor of capital poods over s specifled perod of time apant

fram maistaining average cxpon grosath, In cise such commioments are not met, the Cempany wankl be reguined w pay the duty seved alomg winh imeress i
ik regulniery aushormies. The deferned grant income is recognized m Sintemsenit of Profis and Loss an a sysiematic basis over the penads in which the relmed
perfarmance obligations are fulfilled.

17 Financial Linhilities - Current: Shert term Barrowings

Particulurs Ag at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
5, I kses Rs. In lacs
Secured
‘Workang Capisal Loan from banks
Rupee Loars
fi}  Cash Credit TOT.44 43104
{ith  Pecking Credn 355000 4,308 44
Tie) Advarse agamsl bills senl for collechon 99534 230041
5,66 .87 7, 10056
Currenl matunties ol Tong lerm brmings 4H.E] 2119
Cithier Shart tenm Barmowings
Fareign Currency lian
il Stand by lne of Creditt SRLC) STL.TR 607
Tural 0, BE2. 40 7,751,24
Amaunt of defaul as on the Balance Sheet date:
(8} Repement of loan NIL ML
1h1 Interestan Loan NIL MIL

(A Sedniy

Workimg Capital Leams are primarily seeuned by hypothecstion of preseni und fatuse Currenl Asscls amid Actionable Claims (vie. leventonies, made receivable /
busok debis, 1lul.'9l.u||di|pg miomigs, receivable claims, bills aid maténals m iransi )

These are furtber collaterally seoancd by extension of charge ever mivzable amd mmmoveable propertses of the company.
Farther secured by perspeal puamniee. of promater directod s of the company and Aanii tnnees lid. which is the snbsidiary of the company.

1]

of proinaler denscten(s) of e compary and Aandi ssnnees Tl which is the sebediary of the company,

1y Rate of Interest

‘Wrking capiial crediz facilities carry mierest rtes ranging from 7,800 10 8,50,

I8 Financial Liabilities - Current: Trade Fayable

Stand by Line of Credst SALC) are primarily secured by hypothecstion of Plant and machiney and raw matersad and are furiber secured by personal geanintee

Particulars As ak March 21, 2025 As at barch 33, 2024
As R,
() Todsl Crrtstanding Dues 1o micro and small enterprises (refer nole below) 22602 BOR.4%
(lsh Tional Chatsraendimg Dhae s paries other thae micro anid small enteprises 438435 2,714.84
Total A4, 6110.37 331333
Trmle Fayable ageing Schedule: R, I lacs
Particulars Mod Due 2] g fram dus date/date of transaction Taal
Lese than 1 year - 2 year - Pare than
| vear 2 wear 3 year 3 years
As ot March 31, 2025
Unalispuned Dues
i1l MSME (Moo and Small Entities) 21954 L] - - - 236,02
{iiy Others 1274401 306077 207 1 2823 438435
Enapuised Dhaes
(11 MSME (Mkro and Smsll Eniidies) - - - - - -
figp Oibers a - = & a -
Tatal 1. AY3.5% 30aT.21 21.07 1125 1825 4,001,37
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

As ar March 31, 2024

Unidisputed Dues

i BMEME (Micro and Small Entities) BIE AR B - B - A AR

(t]  Cwhers 155632 LS 18 a817T 1565 13.53 271483

Drispused Dues -

(0 MSME (Micro and Small Entitiesh - - - - - -

il (mhers = = a = - -
Total 2,164,541 1.059.18 K17 15.65 15.53 331333

Mabe: The company has regquested confinmation from Suppleers regarding their negistratsm {filling of Mamarandum) under the Micro, Small and Medimm Emerprses
Deevelopment Act, 200 (ibe MEMED Aot According 1o the information available with the company, the following disclosires has been made in respect of dues 1o

Particulars A5 at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Rs. In lacs R in ks
(a) Principal amoant and intereet due thereen remainimg ungaid 1o any sopplicr st the
Principal Amoun 236,02 Gl 4%
Inserest due on abovi 400 -
thy Ameunt ol inlerest paul by the company in bems of sectane 16of the M3MED Act, WL il
abang wilh the amount of the payvment made 1o the supplier beyond the appomted day bheer)
i § Amouns of imerest doe and payable for the peried of delay in making payment NIL sl
(ahich have heen paid but heyand the nppoeimied day during the yearh bt withoa i
(dy the amount of inferest geomed and remnining unpaid at the end of the year 974 504
fe b the aroant of further imerest rewaining due aod pavable even in the succeeding
wears, untl such date when tlse inderest dues above ane sctually pasd to thi smsall NIL wIL
enlerprse, Tor the purpose of desallowance ol o daductible expenditure wmiber sectaon
19 Fimancial Liahbilities - Current: Other Fimancial Liahilitics
Particulnrs As at Manch 31, 2025 As &t March 31, 2024
Rs. In lacs B Inlscs
i Beak averdmfi frnm banks Fod 6 21.23
{&d Unclamed Dhvwdend * Ia.1l 1565
() Crheer Liabilities 1,381,212 LIL i)
Total 1,791,594 95515
* Represenis dividend nmaunts either not claimed or kept in abeyance in necordance with Section | 26 of the Companies Act. 2013
2 Oiber Current Liabilitics
Particulars AL at Masch 31, 2025 As &l March 31, 2024
Az, In lacs R In ks
fa) Acdvanee From customers 1E6.91 A3 16
() Advance against sale of fixed assets 348,15 440010
{eb MTM valastian an farward cover 93,91 Hif B0
Todal 55917 G206
21 Current Lisbilities: Provisisns
Particulars As at March 31, 202% Asat March 31, 2024
R, In lacs B in fscs
Provision for Ciratairy 253,640 I14.81
Prowision for asation .04 T.H3
Tital 270,66 121164
—
1t Revenug fram operatians
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Rz, In lacs Re In lats
(a) Sales ! [ncome from operalions
(ih Sales (Export) 231M2 43 TRA451 42
{ii) Exchange Fluchmtion an Sakes (Expart ) 40711 10881
(eiih Sales | Indigenous) 341667 295019
irefer Move (o) below For bresk-up) 2nal6,2] 2161042
{1 Oileer Opérmating revenae
Export Incentives |refer Mote (d) bedow for bresk-up) 1 A53.5] LaTaH
Rewere from aperations (gross) 2HAM, 02 126071
() Breakup of Sales
Fimished Lenther (including Split, snddlery & ocher relased ) T1LR25 640 ERALEE)
Leather Shoe and companents 15.0%0.60 12,193 48
Tatal 208014, M) 21611042
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

SUPER TANMNERY LIMITED [CIN: L151310UP1984PLOO06421)
Motes forming part of the & il Fimancial %

far the year ended March 31, 2025

iy Details of pler operaring revens
Exporl Incentives
Dty Diraw Hack 1, B 54 246,27
Chther cxpant incentives/licences 293,37 233.00
Total | 48351 1,070,349
13 (biher Imcome
Pariscalars As ak March 31, 2325 As at March 31, 2024
Rs, In lags Re. in lacs
{a1 Inberest income
- o Froed Dhepessin with Banks B1.26 2554
= Inberesd recerved om Income Tax - =
- Inkerest received from WS - 3
(h Profiton Sale of Propery Plen & Eguipments 27,25 21
fel Miscellaneous Incone 1 14 508
() Deferred revense an EPCG & IDLS Sahsidy KR 14582
(el Share of prodis from the LLP - LR I

Tuotal

24 Cost of material i
Tartseulors As af March 31, 2025 Asat March 31, 2034
R, In lacs Rs in lacs
Hivw Materinl onsuried
() Raw Hide fior sobe E36.05 HT.RT
by Raw Hide for chroms 3,499 31,3374
(e) Wi Bles Leather Chioms: 544 4316
(dy Upper for safety shoes 1. 76207 [62% BT
(e Finksh kzacher for shoe upper and shaes 2.474.25 2504 93
il Chhers 153.00 28563
Raw Material comsumisl 2507 T.HER. 24
Chernicals comsamed 4,323,104 5 1635.72
Biomes & Sparce consimed 3086 014 2,618.79
Tatal 17.550.35 13,671.35

25 Purchase of steck In trade

Partulars As At March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
s, In lacs B in lacs
ia) Finshed Leather (ineluding Spli 27248 511K
by Shoe Upper ERR.T0 052
Totul Ehl.1H 11,59
i e
26 | ‘decrease in | inries
Parngulars As at Masch 31, 2025 As at March 31 2024
s, In lacs Bs in lacs
ligvemiogss: ot the commeieciss of the W=
Finmshed Gowds TAR.4 10B3 34
Woek in process 2118.48 |50 5
Waste & Serap 24.%h 20 ki
TOTAL A 2.E01.TR 305458
Irvemiicdses w1 the end of the year
Finshed Gonds 1 (RG22 TR A
Wik in process 1,547 449 211548
Waste & Sorap 1936 24 hi
TOTAL B 0607 2B91.TR
IreereasedInercase) im Stacks | A-B) [214.2%) 16280
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SUFER TANMERY LIMITED[CIN: L19131UF1984FLO006421]

Motes forming part of the Standalone Fimancial 5t far the year ended March 31, 2025
27 Employec bemelil vxpense
TParisculars As at March 31, 1025 As at Barch 31, 2024
Rs, Iri lacs Bs in lacs
Salary and Boous 1,003.32 B54.58
Drireczars Bemmmeration H35R [
Coaributeon g Provident sl other funds nz.a7 6.02
Coatributsan to Grataity Fund .02 5182
Workmen and Smif Weltare cxpenses RA.IR T5.A0
Total 1.333.
I8 Finange cost
Pariicualars As ab March 31, 2025 A at March 31, 2024
R, In lais AL In lacs
Imsterest o
- Term Loan 63 63
= Others 41783 di06.21
424 40 412,54
Bank Charges ER.T0 LR
Foreign Baok Charges 14.34 15087
Total 2830 d6i1.59
19 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Partsculnrs Ag ab March 31, 2025 At BMarch 31, 2024
R, In lacs R in lacs
Drepreciation Amonization on Tanpihle Asseis T43.09 N
Amoatisatin of Inlangible assels 059 60
Total T43.TR 670,74
M (piher cxpenses
Pariscalars A5 ak March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 70324
R, In lscs Ri In lacs
Manufmerng Expences
Joh Wosk Changes 2,122.43 | 55042
Power and Fuel 67647 64362
FPollution Conirsl Expenses £ ] (IR
Fagpairs and Mamienance
= Buildmy 174.98 17166
- Mschinery B4, Iii,.“'_.
330200 255280
Zelling and Dastmbutinn Expenses
Freight, Hamdling and Cther Sakes snd Dristribugion Expersce [IEELE & [N
Cammasssan on Sale S4H.43 23934
Uhelige: Selling Expenses H397
Adbvestisement and Pubdicity [ e d] 12,51
Bhacl Dhebis - Provision write ofl’ 13933 764
Expectad credit loss 182 L0135
201065 I 46H, =
Estabdighment Expersis
Feni 15.72 1L96
Bates and Taxes HI 1% [
Insuranioe 41.91 48 96
ECGC Premmm T3 T it
Camsmunicaism cosi 34. M) 36,21
Travelimg amd Conveyanecs 3754 276 6%
Eezpairs and Mamienance - Others AL RT.74
Frinting &nd Stariosery 1ia? 1374
Ligal am] Professonal Charges .33 TaT|
Auditor's Remmneration [refer Mote {a) below ! 3.5 345
Mliscelbarsons Expenses 2T AR 104 B3
Rosiarch & Development Expenses |.EH 212
C8R Expendiiure 15. 11 1344
Subseriprion and Dunation 14.%1 10,73
Liwss om Salo of Propenty Plam & Equipmenls .81 126
Dimumition in value of Investment &S [KE1L
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Exchange Fluctuation 54.21 4545
1, 0116.43 Y750
Tatal 6, 437.Th 5,0249.03
lay  Auditor's rermaneraltion comprises:
A auditor 545
Todal : 545
—————
Particulars Ag at March 31, 2025 A5 at March 31, 7024
s, I Lss Re. B lacs
1. Earning per share (EPS)
|ah Profil for the year (Rs in Lacs) T2 b6 .72
{hy Weighted average number of equity sheres for the purpese of P70, TS, 3600 00 B0, TR 560,00
of calcukation of Basic ond Dilaied EPS
I Mominal vabae of equity shares (Rupees) 1.0 1.060
{1 EFS- Basic and dilmed (Rupees per share) n&? mss
1% Capital nnd other commitmends
i Estimated vaboe of contracts remaining o e sxeoatel on capital
soconid [nel ol advanies) | 5095] 297.00
ii.  Other Commitments NIL NIL
33, Contimgent labilifies
i1 Caonringers Liahilitees in respect of!
Lah Letier of Cradit opened and outstandang 635441 227.83%
1h) Claims against the company mot ackrowledgod as debi NIL MIL

4,

Disclosure pursisant to Ind A5 1% "Employee Benelits™;
in)  Defimed Contribation Flam

I

The evnployees of the Company ane of & siale

ped el

ent benelht |s|.||15 wamely Proslent fbnd ard Pension an| Employes Stawe Insurnce

{ESTp operated by the Govermmens of India. The Company is requirsd o cantribuze a specified percentage of payroll costs to the retiresent benefit and E5I

schemes.

The only ohligastion of the company with respect to such retirement und other henefit plan is to make the specified contribanons

Thae Cownpany b vecognied the follewing amouss in the Ineoine Saemem daring the year under ‘Coninfurion 1o siafl provident and other fands" (refier note

FEl )

R, in Lace
Farticmlars I024-15 02324
Employer’s contmbmtion 1o PF and FEF 4055 68.10
Ernphoves*s comtrbution to ESIC 2148 1802 |
Total 102.07 8612 |

b} Defimed Bemelit Plan

The emnployees Gratusty Fand Scheme, which is a defined benefin plan, is mansped by the rust mainezined with LEC. The presend valse of abligabon is
determined hased on octuanal valuation usmg Projected Ungt Credit Method. which recognises cach penod of service as giving rise to additsonal uni of
emplovee benedit entstlement and measores each undt sepamately (o buikd up the nal chligation.

Rs. In lacs
Parficulurs Gratuity {Funded) Gratuity [Funded)
31-03-2025 31-03-2034
1A) Movements in present vaboe of defined benefit ohligation

Uibligations a5 ai beginming of the vear 265.07 24029
Curmesl servas gosl 4526 3852
Interest cost 25.84 24.33
Curinitmend easecredit) .
Settlemnent costeredal) - -
Curremi service cominbulion- employee 5 x
Past Service Caost . .
Flan apnendment - -
Avryuisitions - -
Remensuremesnt [of Actuarial (gnin)'Less) arising froen -
- chinge in demnographic assamption = =
= thange in financial assumgpizon 1078 186
- EEperience variance 124.21) 11%22)
- cahers - +
Benefits paid (1751} 1183.451)
Present value of defired henefit obfignisan as a1 end of the year 409,33 269.07
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B}

(8]

oy

ki

JLER

1H

Movemenss in the fir value of plan assets

Fair value of plan nsscts ot beginning of the vear

Envestment [ncome

Return om plan assets, exclsling amount recognised in net Inderest expense
Actual contrshutioms by the emplover

Actuarial gainloess oo plan assels

Fund transferred

Employe: costribaion

Hemefits paid

Fair value of plan assets 05 af end of the year

Amount recognzred in the balance cheet

Present vabue of defined henefit ohlignion as ar end of the year
Fuair valie of plan nssers as ab el of the year

Funded siatas {SurpiusYdeliciil|

Effect of halonce sheet assei limit

Llnrceapmised poEl servics opl

Met aset lishililyl recopnised in bakance sheet

Mot asserilisbilitg recopnised i bakasce sheet at beglining of the vear
Expense recognised in Stiement of Profit and Loss

Experse recognised in Oiber Comprehensive Income

Al contrgbutioss by thy emploser

Met acquisiion busmess combination

Mel asserilishility] recognised in bakance sheel on end of the year

Amounts recognized in the stalement of prafit and loss
Clarrem service cost

Inneresn casl

Loss{gain) on settlement

Pasi service cosl

Total

Aanninis. recagmised in other comprehensive income

Actuanal {gam) 7 o dis e

= change m demographic assumption

- change in financial assamption

- EREAENCE varianee

= nthers

Return om plan assets, exclsding amount recognised in nel Imerest expense
Remeisuremen (i actuanial {gain o) ansing s v asset ceibing

Toeal

Cansgory of plan sseis
Fumids managed hy Insarer

Seemibivily analvei
DB oo base assampiions
A, Drscoust Rate
L Efzet due o | 00% mencase m discouml rale
1. Effzct due to 1.00% decresse in discount rate
B. Salary Escalstion Rase
1. Effer due t |.00% merease i salary cocalation rane
1. Effzet due to 1.04% decrease in salary escalstion raie
. Withdrowsl Bae
U, Eftiet doe o 5005 inerease in withdrawal raie
1. Effizel due 1o 50% decrease i withdrawal rate
0. Maorinlity Rate
1. Edliect due o 1006 inereae in momality st
1. Effzet due bo |02 decrease i mortality rate

Risk Expusur: - Asset Valarilay

LHE D%

-b.26%
T45%

6. 5401%
=5.67%

3%
1L42%

-h05%
L04a%

15436
1080
Tl
7.36

11751}
i5he2

404933
155,62
{15361

{I53.61)

21480
60.30
[14.14)
7.36

{253.61)

1178
[24.11)

(Th

114045

MITE

K346l
45871

43581
IRe03F

HITakK
RARELS]

HI 04
I

10

6.5 1%
T

6%
b 4%

-D2T%
050

-DA3%
0%

126,08
a.01
.05

3773

119613
154.75

a4.07
i54.26
(214.51)

(214810

(11421
54.84
[RIC 3N
3173

(214510

39352
1532

G
{1%32)

(1.05)

116313

369.07

503
EL P

62
J46.TH

36506
ITET

EL L
365.20

The plan iahilities are caboulated using a discount mie szt with reference 1o bood yiekds: if plan assets underperfoom ihis vichl, this will create a deficit Mosi of

the plan el myvestments is in [xed imoome secarities with high grades and m governmen? securitis.

These are sshjert o microst mte fisk and the fund manages mterest mte risk derivatives e minimize risk 10 an accepable level. & portion of the fimds ae
invested m egaity secuntics and m albemative mvestmenis Y which have low commelabion with equity securitics.

Thee equity secunines sne expocbad TooGne @ neiam in excess ol the discoust et and contribute 10 the plan defici,

Acturiol assumptions

Adtuarial valuation as &1 the year-cml was dose in respect of e aloresad detined benelil plans based on e ollowing sssemptions:

General assamgiions

- Disoaunt rate (per annim |

« Withdrawal mie

- Rate of increénse in compensation

.Gl
2.001%
RA0%

B1
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITEINCIN: LIMI3IUPIWSPLOMG421)

Financial Statements for ibe year eoded March 21, 2025

Mobes forming part of the St

ii)  Moriality rates considered are as per the published rates in the India Assured Lives Martaliny {2002-14) Ulismale.

in)  Lemve policy; Leave balance as & the valuation date ond each subsequens year fidlosving the sabastion dane to the extent ned availed by the emploes
accamealnied ap to 3 kst Deceber 2024 is available for encashment

ivh  The discount rate should be based upen tbe market vields avazlable on Govermmnent bonds #1 ihe acceanting date with a term that matches that of 1he liabilmies.

vl The expocted raie of retum on plan assets i based on markel expeciation, at the begmning of the year, for relums over emtire b of the related obdigatson.

wip  The assumption of fisture salary inereases, considersd in sctuarinl valuation, takes necound of mflation, sepionty, promotion, sappdy and depnand aed other

relevant bcioes
wiil  Liahibry s scconne of long rerm shsences has been acmanally vabued as per Progecsad Unit Credic Method
wril) Short wrn compersaled absences have Been provided on scual hasis

Defined henefit linhilioy and emglover cosdribations:
th Expected contribagions wo post-giaployment henefit plans i nest vear s 20T A lnes R 256,53 laca
ith The weighted average duration eof the defined benefil obligation is 8 vears. The expected maturity anzhysis of undiscounted gratuty bemedits is as foflows:

i

Rs, in Locs
Peniod 3113 2025 11.03.2024
| Yeur IR0ET 129.05
2o 5 Years LR ] %158
& ko 00 Years 479 110:22
tdare Than 10 Years 44147 421.95
Tosal THOL 38 T4 60

35, Disclosare 25 per clouse 2031 and 53011 of the SERI (Lising Obligaioes and Dischosene Requirements) Regalmsons 2005 and Seciion 186 {4) of the Companies Ao,

jay  Loars bo suhsidiones iBs. in Lacs)
Afaximm
Reclwtonshi Amount eutstandings om Pereentage to the total Loans & amwm“ i ““"m:'l" “:““
£ A el E 4t aay
March M Adv im the mutare of I
P = g el bt s nmy time during | time during the vear
Mo of the compny the vear
15 4 215 224 W1 1024
Super Tanpery (LK) Lud Subsiiliary 13004 15004 EIE ¥ 3150 13004 1102
Sewiare saliety linited Subsidsany 1249 12 4% JR0% A03% 124% 1249
Super Italiz SRL Subsidiary a7.91 B7.59 2T.39% 21.28% 479 759
Pioness Feoo Subsidiary G5 1R1.57 28.10%, 44100 18157 15157
The afimresaid Loans has boea grven 1o meet the woerking capstal requirements and the same hax been ukilsed for the same purposes.
b Invesimeras refier Mode N, 3 [A)
e Ciuaranta: given
The compary has nat given any cosparate guaraniee, for secunng the eredit eifity.
di Secunty provided

The coanpary has not provided any other secarity so'for any of iis subsidiaries and associates.

36 Expenditure on Carporate Social Bespoasibility (C5R)

.

In pursuance of the provisions of the Companies Act. 20003 and CSR Pobicy of the Company # i required e spend two percent of the average pet profits for the three
immwedianlely precedmg lmancinl yesrs owands CSR actavities.

Sine the conspany hag carmed profits i peevions vears, gross ansout requined e be spent by the cospany owands CSR activities during the seéar s Be in L
13,44 a5,

The: amoust recognised as expense in the Staiement of Profit and Loss an CSR relared activities is Rs. 1520 Lacs {previeas year-Rs. | 344 Lacs) demiled &5 useler:

R, b lacs

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Pald Yl b b paid Tantal Pawl Wl i b pand Tutal
CER Expendriure 1520 - 15.20 1344 - 1344
Teal 15.20 - 15.20 1542 - 1544
Expenditure on Research and Develupment

Fis. In lacs
Partialirs 2024-15 2013-24
Bevemue Expenditure |58 272
Tistal 1.8 272

. Disclosure purswant to Ind AS 116 "Leases":

i8)  Where the compamy is Lessor
Thae comparny his ol cntered into ony Lease ATTINREMES,
th1 Where the company is Lesses

The coemprary N nol enbered inka ony Lease arrangemends,
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30, Financial Insiraments
i1 Capital Management

The Cosmpany's capital

gement i il

ded 1 create valse for sharehodders by facilsmimy the meeting of long-term and shar-lerm goals of the Company.

The Company determines 1he amoumt of capital reguired on the basis of annazl opemting plans and ang-term product and ether strmalegic investineent plans. The
funding reguirzments are med through equity aml other lang-term/shor-term bomowings. The Company's pelicy is aimed a1 combination of short-term and Jong-

terim herroawings,

The Cranpany monilons the capital structarg on the bagis of wial debt s equity mtia ond marariny prafile of the overall debr portislio of the Company,
Thee capatnl siroctan: of the company cossists ol debl which inchodis the bormowings meluding iempaary ovendraam babaos | cash and cash equsvalins
including shoet 1erm bank deposiis, aquiny comgrisng s capial, reserves and noo-contredling isersss. The gearing ratic for the year i ag under:

iHs i Lacs)
Particulars As at Maorch 31, 2025 As ot March 31, 2024
[ehe 091597 L ET N
Less: Cish and cash egquivales TILT4 13043
Met debl (A) 618323 7.5946.61
Todal equity () 1800, TH 10,137.41
Dl Bguity Bt LA IL57 LTS

lity  Cassgories of financial insmments
Calculaton of Fair Valoes
The fair values of the financial asseis and liabilities are defined as the price that would be received 1o sell an assel or paid 1o transéer a liability in am orderly
Imn=activg belween murkel participants at the measuremend date. The folkewing methisds and assampiions wene used 10 estimate the Ear values of Anancial
i lnsmenls;
1) The fair virlues of mvesiment in quosed imvestment in egaity shargs is bosed an the curmenl bid price of respective investment as al the Balance Sheet date,
b} The Far value of the long-lerm bomeswangs carrying Goatmp-rade of inferest & nol mpacted due b inlerest mle changes and will nea be signaficamily different
fronm Thais carrying amoumis a3 there = e significant change i the andier-lying credil mak of the Compiny (smee e G of inception of the leans)
) The fair valse of loans from hanks amd sther financial indlehiedness as well as ather non carrent financial labilities is estimaied by discounting fure cash
flows using mates curremily available for debi or similar terms and remaiming matsriizes,
dp Cosh asd cash eguivabeniz, irade recervables, ather financial assets, frade pavables, arad paher financial labilities have fir values that apprasimaie so cheir
camying amaungs due o their shos-tenm nature.

(e in Lacs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 Az al March 31, 2024
Carryimpg valse | Fair value Carrving yalue Fuir value

Finnmeial Aseets
Financial assels measared 2t fxir value
Investments messured at
I Falr wabue thaough atber compeehensive meats TLS2 333.67
1. Fasr value through profit and loss .52 .52
Finnncial assers menstared a1 nmantized cost
Teade Feceivables 585040 SAETIH
Cash and cash egaivalents T3z 23043
Hank halances ather than cash aml cash equivalents 53403 .13
Other fnanelal asseis K23.65 66727
Tistal THA1 53 o144 158711 4,19
Financial Linbilities
Finoneial llabilsics mensured at smontized cost
Barrawings 691597 TEI60M
Trade paynhles 4461037 332333
Cther fnancial labilisies 1701 94 V5115
Teal 1331828 . 12.111.52

L) Ineomie, cxpensss, pains o lsses on financial instmiments (Re i Lage)
Particalars 12425 EFERT]
Financial ssseis measured a1 amartizel cosi
Allowances Tor doubiful receivabies [10.62) (10.15)
Financial assets measancd 21 fair value through Profit and Loss [{ER.1} [T}
Financial asseis d &t Eair value thregh Ceher Comprebensive Income - -

Fair value measurements recogmized in the balmee sheet:

The fislleaving tahle provides an analysis of financinl mstrumenis that are measured sshsequent w initial
based an the degree to which the fir svaboe is observable,

-Level | fair value measuremenss are thase derived from quoted prices (umadjasted) m aciive markets for identicnl assets or liabildies

-Lavel 2 lair vadue wesurements ar tiose derived from inpans oter than gooted prices meluded wiathm Level 1t are observalsls for the asses or Dabiiny,
either directly (1.2, &5 prwcesh or indireatly (e derived from prces)

-Level 3 For value measurentents are thasi dirived from vatuntion sechmigues thal inglude mpats lir the asseor fabilite thal are nist based an observable

ation at foir vabue limio Levels | 1o 3

L |

vk Finareas) nsk maragement abgecrives:

The Cosmpany’s principal fnarcial Bshilitses comprise of Toan fom banks and Gnancial institutions, and trade poyables. The main purpose of these linancial
laatibiees b 10 saise Fnonce for e Company’s apermions. The Company bas varioes fnancel jesets swch s wade recetvabbes, cash and shar weem doposies,
The main risks amising from Company’s Gnancial instrumenls sne lorcign currency risk, creds risk, market risk. interest rale rigk amd Yiguidity risk. The Beard ol
Dt review amd agree policies B mansging cach of these risks

Ly Crodst nsk:

Credit risk & the risk of financial loss 1o the Company 1f'a custemer or counterpary ta a financasl instrusent foils g meet its contractual ohligstions. and arises
prmcipally from the Conypany™s trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents anid other bank balances. The maxinmm expesure to credit risk in case af
all the firamcial matnaments covered bl 18 rostncted b Ihair redpechive carrying amoeanl.
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITEDRMCIN: LIBISTUMYS4PLC0421)

Nates formuing part of the Stondalence Financial St o the vear cnded March 31, 2123

Trnde Recervahle

Custonrwer crodit s managed by vach business unil subjedt 1o the Company's established polscies, procedures and comired relaling bo costomer credi nsk
masmgement. Trade recervibles are non-interest bearing and are generally on %0 doys credis leem. Oredif limies ane established for all custosens bagsed an
The Coempany memsures the expecied credsl boss ol irasde recervables based oo hstorical rend, inglustry practices and the busméss enviromment o which the
ey epefares, Losd rice are bassd on actasl cradin loss expetiene and past wenids

Expocted credil liss assesimend fr customens:
The compary is making provissans an trade receivables based on Expecied Creds Loss (ECL) maded. The reconcilintion of ECL is as folbows:

(Rs. in Lacs)
Paricubirs 1034-15 2013-14
Impairment loss as per ECL recopnised {reversed ) HrE2 LS
Additional Provision write aff 13013 107,64
Al debated o Prodit and Loss I5IL1S 11779

Other financial assets

The Company maintains exposurg in cash and cash squavalents, wom deposits with banks and derivative contracts,

The Company beld cash and cash squivalents of Rs. in Lacs 732.74 Locs at March 3§, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Bs. in Lacs 235943 Lacs) Cash and
cash eguivalests are held with reputshle and credit-worthy banks.

Individual risk fimits are set for each connber-party based v Gnancial position, credii mimg and past experience. Credit limits and concentration of exposanes
ore actively monitored by the Management of the Company.

Cither than trade and oher recervables. the Company bas ne other fimncial assets that are past due but not impaired

(b Pbasket risk:
Market Risk s the risk that the fxir value or Anure cash flows of a financial instrunsemt wall fluciuate because of changes in market prces. Market msk comprises
\bree Dvpeed ol risk: currency risk, imterest e sk and price risk.

i1y Feseign currency risk

The Company is expased 8o currency risk an account ol its aperating mmd fmmmeing sctivities. The functizne] curreney of the Company is Indinn Rupes.
Campany's exposure is mainly denomanaied m USD, GHP and Eure. The exchange mtes have changed sub inlly in receni perinds and may cantinee 1o
fluctozie suhstamtially in the future. The Company bas put in place a Financial Risk Management Policy i 1demtify the most effective and efficient ways of
maneging the currency risks. The Compazy uges derivative instruments {maisly foreign exchange forwand cootracts] 1o mabgsie the sk ol changes in faneign
cirreniy exchampe raic,

The Company do nat wse derivative financaal insinements for imding or speculative panposes

(L1} Tederest mabe risk:

Interest rase risk is measured by using the cash flow sensigvity for changes in varinhle mierest raes. Any mevement i the reference rases coubd have an impact
oo the Company's cash flows as well as cosis. The Canspany also uses a mix of mierest mie sensitive financial mstraments o manage the ligeidsty and find
requeremnents fior its day o day opemtions ke short-term Joans.

Interest rase sensitivity anakysis:

At March 31, 2025 mterest hearing fmancial liabality §=ocared loan from banks) sood ot Bs.n Lacs 891597 Lacs, was subject to variable inberest rates.
s docnsss: ol SO basis pomis in ineeness s al the balane: shoe dane woukd resull m decreaseineroase in prodic boforg iy of Be in Lace 34,58 Lacs
The sk extimiztes provided assume a parallel shift of 50 basis points imlerest mie. This caloalatson akse assumes ket the change occurs at the balance sheet date
and has been calculnied based oo risk exposures vatstanding as at that date. The poriod eml balances are not necessarily nepresentative of the average debi
outssandimg during the perod.

Fasr value ol financial instraments:

All financial assets zre mitially recognized at fir value of paid. Subsequemly, fi inl assets are camed &l fair valee or amorized cost less
impaimment. Where non - derivative fimancial assets are camried 21 Bir value, gains and losses on re- measuremens are recognired directly in squety undess the
financzal ass:ts have been designated as being held at far value through prodis or loss, in which case the gains and losses are recognmeed directly m the
sramidinl v stavemment of prodit snd ks, Finincial assons s desiprated as being behd at fiie valoc through prodic or loss when 1018 nocesary 1o peducs
msasgrement inconsstency B relaed agsets and labilines, Al finaneial liokilies other than dervatives are initially recogmized ar e vabae of considersion
received net af transacisan eosis & appropriote (inital cost) sl subsequently camied a1 amontized cest

(LT} Liquidizy risk:

The Crompany fdlows o Conservative poliey of ensuring sufficiens lquedity a0 sll nees throwgh o soaegy of profitable groweh, efficient lguiditg ot all timses
through 2 strategy of profitable growth, efficient working capital management as well as prudest capital expenditure. The Company bas a overdraf facility with
hanks o suppost any iemporary fumdeg requirements.

The Cempany believes thot cimens cash and cash equivalents, tied up barmowing lines and cash flow that is generaced from aperations o saffichent b meet
resjuirements. Accordingly, lyuidsy risk is perceived 1o he low,

Liquidity tahle

Lisquediry tables drawn ip based on the cash fows of fineneiol Habilives basad om the carles dove an which the Campany can be reqiened o pay 1s dischsed ag
Mo i, 49,

(V) Db prdes nisk:
The Company is mat exposed to any signafican! egaily price risks snsing from equity investmenizs, 2 om 3 [st March 2005, Equity investmenis are hebd for
srrategic rather than tradmy parposes. The Cempany does mol actively mnle thise investmenls,

(VI Eguity price sensilivity anabysis:
There 5 no expasare T eguity price risks as at the repoeting dete or ns ar the previous reporfing dase
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITEMCIN: LIBISUPI9S4PLCIO0421)

Motes forming part of the 5

Financial Statensents for the vear ended March 21, 2022

M1, Disclosure parseant o lnd AS 27 "Scparate Flaancial Statements"

4l

41

43

Investmends m folkwang subsilznes and associales s accounied a0 cos

S Mame of Sabsldiary company | Ax ab Narch £, 2034 Anab hlarch 3, 034
Mo Associaie Company Efentive Effeotive Effective Effetive
Primcipal Plisce
O Bl Frapertan al pruparinn ul prugartive uf grupariam ul

wemirship witing pewir aunershap wirting power

i {2 Intewes ) Imerest 1% Db s b
1A} Wholly Owned Subsidiaries (Foreigni
i Super Taneery (UK ) Lid [ LELEAI R TlH O AN O D1
. Buper lakis SKL Traly THHR D TR CHIS 100 ORI,
iti. Pionoer Invesiment Feoo UAE 100D FETEE 100 AHF 10000
(BE Subsidasmes {Inde}
i Aarifi Tanmers Limited Indiz R152% R2352% 82.51% E2.52%
it Super Corpomation Limited Inilis S2.(H1%, 52 0H F2 AN £2.001%
il Seume Satery Lisiad Indss 63 20% 63 20% 63 29% 3. 1%
iv. Hx Landon Fashs Indix TR 10O 1L DR D1

Thaere is ne amoumt doe and outstanding o be cradined fo lvesior Educalson & Protecizon Fusd a3 ar March 31, 2025,

Disclnsure purssant to Ind A5 37 " Provisioss, Cantingent Llahilicles and Cantingent assets™:
Thee compay had recognased comtimpent labalfies as disclosad in Mot 33 above ol ag soch mo provison 18 requirsd o be made. Mo provsion was oulstanding as »

thee: hirgineniig snd at the e of the vear,

Disclosire purssant ta lnd A TS “Nen-current assels held Fuor sali aml discomtinned operations™;
There are no such asset held far sale and discontineed operations an 3| March 2025,

Tax Expenses
&) Amwoumis recopmized in profit and loss iPs in Lacs)
Pariculus H24-25 202324
Curreanl L sxpense
Curremi vear KL 190001k
Changes in estimates relniing o pesor years 3607 2103
136417 210
Dhefiered tax expense 166 5536
Uhiginntson and reversal of temporary differences - -
Revognition of previously unsecognized tax losses - -
1ot 5536
Tox expense recognized in the incame stalenven Y373 Pl
thl  Amwums recogmized in other comprebensive income iRs. in Lacsj
Paticulas 102425 2123-24
Tems that will mat be rechssified 10 prafil or loss
= Bemensurements of the defined berefit plans 1413 15
Tz Expensei Benefitg (304 (450
Mt of Tax 1021 1192
{eh (1) Uosed tax bosses for which ne defierred tax asset s recognised in the Balapee Sheet nIL
1] Unrecognised deduciible iemporary differences dor which no deferred tx assei is recognised in Balance Sheet MIL
I Conspoeossils of deferred tax dasseish and labilines rv.‘.k'l.wl'llw 11 Hakamce Shect aml Slﬂltl.l'r?.'lul af Profif ar Loss Ke In lacs
Particulars Balance Sheet as 21 Staterment of Profit & Loss
51-03-2025 31032024 H013-2023 H24-28 02324
Difference botweon book balanee and tax balance of fixed
nagatd B45.33 EBd. 25 72184 (38805 16141
iy EPFOG, TOLS and caher isems 167,39 1 1369 (31,30 0l ®i
Oithers [1%6.04 ) {Z7TEA6) {1 Th.E1 {16327)
Met Deferred Tax (asset) linbdliy HIR.10 RIS 75155 .03 (1
Deferred Tax expensei{memneh i 595
= Rocognsad m Satemenl of Profit & Loss 2.0 5536
= Recognissd in Other Compeehensive Income 104 4.58
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITEINCTN: L1913 UP1984PLCIBG421)
Mates forndng Eart of the Stamdalon: Financkal Statensats for the year ended Mapch 11, 2022

fe} Recomcilmtion of deferred Tax | Assei) Linbility {®s. m Lacs)
Pasticulars H24-285 2025-24
Opeiting Balances LINE T51.55
Tax lipcome Vexpense daring the peniod recopnised in:
- Stmtement of Profic and Lass in Profdid or Loss section o 5.0
- St et of Prodivsnd Loss ander G0 section 104 454
Closing Balances LIERT BL1.50
45, b | =1 ol the subshiary ¥ arl related detaibad inlormation wall be made avaalable o the invesmes, of the comgdmny snd subsiddry comjmmes,

secking such indprmmion, The finameial smements of the subsidiany companies are alao kept ar Registered Office of the comguny and that of subsidiary companics

fior inspection of mvestars of the company and subsidiary companies.

. Disclosure of related parties/frelated party trarsactionsbafances p

{A} Marne of Related Parties and natures of reationshp
i, Related partess cwar which control asist |Subsidarien}
2] Supsr Tannary (UK.} Lid.
b Super Itafa SRL
£l Aarifi Taroers Lid
d] Supss Corparation Limaed

i, Joint Ventures

il Key Managament Parsonne| [KMP) & Ralathas:

2] M. Ifsikhengd Amin —Managrg Director

bl Bdr, Ikl Abragn = Director

£l Mr. Vegand Amin- Non Executive and Mon Indeperdent Director
d] Br, Iimran Sdigul = ‘Whale time Directar

] Mr. Arshizd Bhan - Whole time Director

11 e, Mahd rean - Whis time Decter

Bl Mr. B K. Awasthi - Company Secrefary

to Ind A5 24 "Related Party Disclosures™
e} Safety Secure Limited
I Pioneer investment Eaco
B} MK Londan Fasheons Pt bd
RiL

hj BAr. ¥ 5 Kafiyar - Mon Executive Independens Director
i Mir. Mubaskind Amin [Som ol M lghel Ahsan)

i} M. Tanyeeral Aman (Son of Mr. Htikharul Amin}

k} Mir. KRl Sepeed (Brother of M. Snres Sididigui)

I} Mir. Urnasul Amin [Som of M Igbal Ahsan)

m} M Bhredd Farae & (San af B, Mekbarul &min)
nj M= Farha Fatima {Relatree of K|

I Others: Enterprise over which KMF or refatives of KMP ane able to exerdse significant influsnce:
dp ndusarisd infrastructus Serdices (I} Lag

&) Amir Tanmery L
bl Banthar Incustrial Pollaticn Control Compary
€] Amin Calanizers B Deviapers Lid

18] {i] Disclesarng of refated party |

e} Howini Frifs LLF

v churing thi yasr [in cedrary cours of Business at arm langth price) Summary:

Transaciions Subsidiares Assooates Cfver related parties EMF and Fedatives
B it for the year erded  As il S for thee vear ended  As a1/ Ter the year endid A at f for the year erdled
31.03.25 31.03.24 31.03.25 31.03.24 310325 31.03.24 31.03.25 31.03.28
Purchases of material ¢ finished goods/Foed asset 210 13.99 - - /7.0 1EL -
Sale of materals { fimshed goads. 511.98 17336 16087 13465
Services {Jah Wark] = - E - - (el ] - -
Donation 10LEE 13.:
Rent recesverdl 3 v e = 0,2 on = =
brterest Received T.82 .28
Bt pginf 160 60 - - - - -
Bemuneration . . ' - 143.76 120,79
Regeivabies Advance (Het| 526.50 39912 - - 6,10 11307 - E
Fayables |Trade payable & other lizndities] 14,97 13.29 - - 113 11851 19.27 1554
Loans and Advances 2082 41169 - - - - - -
frrimagmaris reder Mote Bo. 3
{B1 (i) Detail of related party transactions during the year {in ordinary course af business at arm length pnes|
marne af relatad party & Transactions Subsidiarss ARROCRTRE Crtiier ralated parties KMF and Refatives
A at [ for the year erded  As ot for the pesr ended  As 28 for the year ended s at [ for the year ended
31.03.25 31.03.24 31.03.25 31.03.24 310335 A1.03.74 31.03.25 31.03.24
Purchases of materialks / finished Fosed assot
Arrirs Tannary Lid - - - - 67.88 268 B - -
Bawvers Frifls LLP 20.03 1238
Super Corparation Lmaed 22,10 13.99 - - - - - -
210 13.5% 87.90 28134
ake of materials / Frshed goods
&min Tannary Lbd, . 108.70 1n3s
HX Londan Fashion Private Limited mra? E
Seourg Salaty Lenited ;23
Super Italia SRL 17428 17336 - - - - -
Barvirs Frilfls LLP 52.17 2438
511.94 173.36 = - 160.87 13466 - -
Sarvices aualled {Jab Work]
Armir Tannery Lid - - - - (e - -
Bovirs Frifls LLP
= E E = = o = 5
Camimissian paid
Bdr, Iftikana Amin 200 .00
Bdr. Inbal AFan 2.00 .00
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Remuresation

Wr, IPtikhanl Arin - - - = - - 4,00 .00
Wir. Igbal Ahsan 24.00 2400
Adr, Imran Siddigque - - - E - - .08 T.08
Widr. Arshad Khan " 4.33 438
Wir, Mdahd Iman - - - E - - 194 1M
Ikir. Mubashirul &min 26.83 1235
bdr, Ahmad Faraz Amin - = E E = - 571 573
Idr. Tamesenad Amin E 15.18 1518
bir, khalid Sayeed - - - - - - Lag LTE
wir. Umairul Amin 2133 1355
Farah Fatima = £ - . S = Gl =
M. R K Awasthi " 3.00 121

R - - - - - 14376 120,79

Donatian
Anin Welkare Trus - - - - 1056 13.51 - -

1065 13.51

Rend regeived
Bowini Frills LLP . or2 0.72

= = - - 072 .32 = =

Rena pald
Asifi Tanners limited 360 350 - - - - - -

380 260

Interest Beceived
Pigneer Investment FZC0 792 ] = - = = - =

Taz E ]

0 - Recenables/Advance [t

Super Corporataon Lid, - 023 - - - - - -
Super Tannery UK Lid Sh AL Shah

Super Halis SRL 17887 H1.30 - - - - - <
Aarifi Tanners Ltd. . 081 . .
Secure safety Limited LB 033 - - - - - -
H¥ Loredan Fashion Private Limited 3053

#nin Tarmery Lid - - - - 3551 B9.16 - -
Beraini Frills LLP Ei50 2331 .

S26.59 ErE N = s 410 11307 ¥ -

W) Pa racks payable & other Babilii

Bewini Frills LL? = = = - = c] =
Amin Tarmery Lid 118.83 .
Armin Welfare Trusl - - - 3 113 - -
Azrifi Tanners Lud. L47 113

Secure safety Lenited - 1206 - - - - -
Super Corporabon Lid. 1020 . .
Hir. Wtkharul Amin - - - - - - 400 1490
Mr. lgbiad Ahsan 4.00 117
M. Irmrars Siddigiss - - - - - - 138 1.38
MAr. Arshad Khan . . E--] .88
Hir. Bdusbrashingd Amin - - - - - - 113 1544
KAr. Ahmad Faraz Amin 112 L1&
Mir. Tanvesrul Arin - = = 3 s - TEE a1
Kr. Enalid Sayeed . . 033 028
Hir. Ui Amin - - - - - - 03 1.23
FAr. R K Bt 045 .43

1477 5] = - 113 11883 15,37 ¥9.98

[al} Loars and Bdvances
Super Halia SRL §791 §7.59 - - - - - -
Sesure salety Limited 1749 17.49
Super Tanmery UK 13004 13004 - - - - - -
Plonoer Investment FZO0 @48 18157 .

Aznin Welfare Trus - - - - - - - -
Igbal Aksan

e #1169 = - - - - B

[B] Mo pmowl has been wiitten offback or provided & doubihal debits duning the year in respect of relsted parties
[E] Koy Manragerial Parsonnel are entitled ta post-eenplaymant benefits and other iag term emgloyes barefils racagniced & per nd AS 19 - "Bmployes Senefts’ in the financal
statemsents, As these employee benefis are bamp sum amaunts provided on the base of actuanal valuation, the ssme & not included above,

47 R ta Whale Time Directors
Farticulars | | 2024-75 02374
21 Short Term Cmployee Benefis (Salaryg) GETE [N ]
b Comanbssion o Dirschon 400 &0
[z} Cordribution to defined contmbution plan [FF) K 067
Tartal aTA0 6740
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A8. [a| Feseige Currency Exposure hedged snd un-hedged as ot the balence sheet date iy as under;

{Fernign Currency smount in Lics|

AR usD ELRD GAP
310335 31034 | 310375 310324 EFEFCIN IETNEFT]
Debbory mn a1 12 JEFL] FET] gy
Lreditors G 154 1% Eaa - s
Dithuy Pargabiss ET) Y o4 aca an an?
Advances Aol EiET oo8 a42 EiTr] ood
Cath B Bark Balarcs: oot 017 o2 ana
Letter of Credit 137 .76 o
|} Dmrrwiive didrasent O dng {foremnd Contract (er hedpeg) iFareipn Currency amount in Laca)
FARTICULARS L0/ INR ELIRO/ INR GEP / INR
w2425 | 100324 034615 | 202334 | w45 | 203334
Against esporis 050 | 555 200 | 553 5.00 | 538

49, Disclosuns purssant 1o Ind AS 1 “Precestation of Frantial Stateswents”,

|8l Current liakibts e borrowings expected to be recovered withen twelve months s after iwelve manths froen the reporting date:

Particudars Az at March 31, 2025 S wl Warck 31, 2034
Wichas Adtar Total Withis Aftar Total
twelve tweloe CwtE Tweetve
months mankhs marihs manths
Horrowings [TTENTY H & bEL AL TALIa - EALSET]
Trade and cther paysbles 461017 - A.61037 L12803 - 33833
Ot francial Rabii 1,791 54 - 5,701.94 A57.95 - AL 15
|l Currant assets expected to be serded within teo b months and afer tweise montes from the reporting date:
Particdars Az gt March 31, 2025 Az mt March 31, 2024
Within adter Total Withim Wfter Total
barelus Py Fapbag Pwalve
ki rasnLhn sethi i
Irwahoe b 5394135 5,384.35 555633 555539
Trade Rece ot 555149 5,551.49 598723 3,9B7.28
Dty Financiad Assets 22355 " BZI1GES G727 " BBET.27
Dy Currend fssets L1AT i = I.I‘:".E 1.5'_?‘!-0‘ = 1,544 80

50,

! ¥
Adcibonal Repulatery Informateon purszant b Clesme BLod General Instructons for preperstion of Balance Sheet g2 paen in Part | of Dreision || of Schedule I8 bo the Comperies Aok,

2013, pre ghoen Bereascion 1o the gxton] relive sod othar than theas given sashane inany athar o b the Fnancial Statersanti

Il Title deeds of immenbie Progerty not held in ame of sthe Compamy.

Meeads o immavahie progeties held in sae name of drecioes of the comeany -

‘Whether titls
deachoideraa
promziar St
Duierigtian ol Tithe o hekd | or or ralativa® | Property hakd
R e et bowing bl
Redrnt g Heem in the Balance sheet ered [ TR L v i ]| ofpearnaiin® | sduc whith A
vale Ve rvdoven of B Coem iy
B i gy | Adeectorer diba
angikagis ol
pramatesdieec
o
Laid b 1363, Dirsit
Peogerty, Plant ard [ Larad Sreph o NBanshes urnaa 3471200 Fig [vegaiul nd | 14.0m 207
Lang Ko, 1382 Direrine
Handter Urnsa 9. a50.00 [ [Megarul Amind | 1408 2003
Land Ko, 1417 Divecins
Rarster Urnaa | 10545100 e [Veqanul Armde) | 14082000 | py m gt o e i ps By
Compary = dueio ceenight
Lans Ko, 1416 SEGETIMON st d0a e in The
a1 Direcins e of deecior. Howsver ihe
Hanther Urnan 6 406 00 [ [Mrgarul A | 05010 2002 process of cegisteniag e e
sty m lhe name al comgaryg
Land Ko, 1415 & underasy at Se gime of
e A Trvaiation of acounts
Barhe Unnad | 205, E2000 s (venanl &mir | o301 a0
Land Ko, 1364
B 1365 Deetins
Barthes Linnaa | dzas0.00 tie IVenamal Amind | 26003 2004
Land hu. 1366 Drecine
Barher Uenan | 10252000 s veganl &mird | 1a.m 2004
|by Eair Walue of Inyestorent Property
The Compary do not have any Investmant property.
It Renabtion of Progerty, Plant & Equipment and intanpibds Auedy
T Coxn vy Fuag fecil lued arrg ol Ba Property, Plant & F ared | kel i, dhuring tha yusr,

I} Depds. o Benami Eroperty fedd

Thee coompay oo net hade any Banasn Progsrty, wheare any proceading his been inillated or panding sginst thie compgany Tor Boliling sy Banami pragerty wndar thie Banssi

Transactiore [Prohikeon) &, 1923 {45 of LOEE) and thi rubs mads thariaimdar.
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

(el Barrcwings from banks or financial inestitutions on the basis of securay of ourent assets
The Company has 3 Working Capital limit of Ba 10,180 Lacs from Corsorteam of S8 comprising of Fund-based limits of fx 8 390 Lacy snd non-furd-based limats of Bs 1850 150
For the said Facibny, the Company has submitted S1ock and debtors statement to the tank an monthly basis as alse the Quarterdy taformation Statements. The diference
bedween value as per books of accounts and as per quarterly statements submitted with lenders are as under:

IR, In Ligs)
Wakie a5 per Walise a5 per quartesly Dilfererce Begsan for Difference
Clusrter ending Books of Awounts statements submiited
with lendurs
fune 0, MOk 11,218.54 11.022.89 195,65 | The differerces are there,
Septembssr 30, 2024 11,335.53 11,304.70 13083 | because The statements
Discembser 31, 2024 10,804, 64 10,567,949 232,65 [fled with the lenders are
Iarch 31, 2025 10,335.84 10,890.04 S5.80 | basad on Fnaniial
Jung 30, 2023 11,590.00 11,745,683 {155.83)| statements prepared on
September A0, 2023 11,172.92 11.787.37 |614.45)| proviskanal Besn
Decembser 31, 2023 12,234.595 12,226.62 8.33
March 31, 74 13.511.64 14,117.52 |E05.88)

i bl Defaulter
The Company has nat been dedared 2= 3 willful defaulter by any lendesr who has powers to declare a company 22 a willful defaultsr at 2y time during the financial year or after
the end of repanting periad but belors the dare whar the Tinancial stalements are approved,

(&l Befationship with Struck off Comparees
The company has no transactiors with companies struck off under section 248 of the Comparses Ack, 2015 ar s=ction 560 of Companies St 1956

(h} Registration of tharpes ar sstighactaon Thereo! with Registrar af Companiss
Thern is no charges or satisfaction thereod vt to be registensd with Rag af Companias beyond the statiory pericd as on the date of Balance Shaet sacegt the following:
Dascripion of Charge i in s Rgasan

Charge in Favour of 584 Al The Compery i3 following up with relevant bankers for the purpose of fileg of sstisfaction of cherge.
Charge In Favour of UCD bank in respect of wehicle 20,00

|an

Chisrge in Favair of GO0 bank in mspect al Sala 5,25

Loan

Chage in Fayour of 584 500

Charge in Favaur of 5B A0

(1 Comeliance with number of layers of companies
Thare is no non-cornplisnce of peovisions regarding the number of layers presorbed under clause {87 of sechon 2 of the At read with Comparses {ResSricton on numiber of
Layarsp Rubes, F117

{1 The Campany has not granted any lcans or sdvsnces in the neture loans either repaysbile on demand or withoul specifying any terms ar penod of repeyment

ikl The Company has not recesed any funds from any personis| o entityfes], ncluding foreign entibes (Funding Party| with the understanding |whether recorded in writing or
caharwise| that the Company shat,
I, Directiy or sdirecthy bend or Frvest in other persans or entSies identdied in oy manner whatsoeves by or an behall of the Funding Party [URimate beneficaries), of

Il. Providke any guarantes, security or the ke to ar an behalf of the Ulbmate Beredidaries.

(Il Mndiclozed income:
The Campany does nok have any trandactions which is not recorded in the books of scoounts bl has been surendered or disclosed a3 income durmg the year in thi fax
assessmants under the income Tax Act, 1961 | such as, search or sureeyar ary othar relavant prosisions of the income Tax Ad;, 1961}

(m) Detais of Crepio Currengy ar Virul Currency
Tha Company has not waded or investad in Crypta currency or Virtual Currancy dusing the yaar.

{n} Compliance wih approved Scheme|s) af Arangements
During the year, no Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in berms of sectiors 220 1o 237 of the Companies &ct, 2003

(o} Eatlos
Particulars
Yoar drded March 31, 3005 Year ended March 31, 2034 | Variance and Reason
Humaratar Ratio Mumserator Ratio Warianoe Aeason
Oenommator Oenominator
Rs, b Lats B, W Lats
tal Current Rato fintimes] | 14,204.54 18,740.30
Currert assets / Current habilities 13,814.60 103 12, B68.92 115 | -10.890% H.A
(b} Chabt-Eopuilty Rata i i) 6,915.97 7,B36.04
Togal Debit | Sharehaldir's Equity 10,B04.78 Qe 10,127.41 007 -1 ME i
[} Dokt Bervice Conerage Ratio {im tirrees] 1.R68.96 1.677.35
Earnings availsble for Debt service | Debt senice 1,344.53 133 143746 117 | 18.71% M.
{d} Beturn on Equity Ratio {in %] 26.16 590.72
[Met Prodits after taues — Preference Dividend
(i any]] f Average Sarehaldes Eguity
10, A58, G L 985308 G| 1570 H.a
(@] Inyentary tuingeer ratia i fireses] 20,404,032 22,6R0,71
Sales) Awersgs Inventary 5,475,37 519 5,756.19 3193 | 3155% Mater ol
(N Trade Recerables burnover rato {in tires] E__B,EI}]]I._I}\'__E = gglﬁ_&g?__i
Mees Credit Salesf Average Accounts Hecermble
5,769.39 452 5,663,17 A01| 22EE% N
gl Trade payables turrover ratic {in times] 18,377.95 18,856,623
Mzt Credit Purchases) Average Trade Payahles LS
3,966.85 463 3,434,53 421 1007 N
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| ) Mt crepital tusesiver ratio |im timies) 8400 07 11.689.71

et Sales/ Wirking Capial 1,084 41 26.14% 1,545 08 ILES | 12a.806% Mege: o2
i} beet profit ratic [y %} THa 16 S5071

et Prodity Met Sake %‘m{l! 2.5EH 116971 3 50K, L79% LA,
|1} Bt on capital employed (ROCE) [im H§ 1489 3% 138855

Earming bafore imterest and tases/ Capital

Employed 17 6t 56 1L.77% 11, 737,58 1083 R.B3R LA
|k} ety o irviesEmang [ ey OES 303

Inceeme generatad Trom wmasad

furds f&werage rwested funds in breasury

IMEsImenls SEY R -0 55 a1 | -116.13% Mets: 63

ol Increase in revengs from pperation has resulied in improvemant in Inventory Turnover Babo
o2 Increase in resens fram operation has resutted inimprovament in Net Capital Turnover Ratle
ol Dimunition in walue of kweztment has resulted in decline in Retum on investment

51 Figures of the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged whereves required inarder 1o make them comparable with those of current year. Figures have been rounded off to
The nestest fupess in ey,

A5 per aur siteched report af even date For and on beball of the Board
For Kapoor Tandon & Co

Chartered Accountards
Firm Registration Mo, BO0952C

Mchd. mran Ifetichanl Amin
Cirector [Firsnce) & CFO Managing Director
DHvyank Migam DHNCODO3TaZT DINDO03T424
Partner
P, N 438443
Place: Kanpur
Date: 20 {5 W25 R K Awasthi
Company Secretary
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Kapoor Tandon & Co. b Branch
Feanpun — 208007

D= 104, 1% Floor, Himalava House,
25 dzsturoa Gandh Maig,
Mew De ki 110007

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To
The Members of Super Tannery Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Super Tannery Limited (the "Helding Company™) and its subsidiaries
{Holding Company and iis subsidiaries together referrad to as “the Group”) and its associates, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as
atMarch 31, 2025, and the consolidated statement of profit and toss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes 1o the consolidated financial statements, Including &
summary of gsignificant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated financial statements”™).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the consideration of reports of other
auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as were audited by the other auditors, as referred to below in other matters
paragraph, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of
the Group as at March 31, 2025, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our respongibilities under
those SAs are furlher described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
ara independent of the Group and its associate companies in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Act. We believe that the audit evidenca we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period, These matters were addressed in the context of cur audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors® Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Holding Company's annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report theraon,

Cur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion theraan,

In connection with our audit of the consolidaied financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in deing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistant with the consolidated financial statemeants or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materally misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done! audit reports of other
auditors, wa conclude that there is a matenal misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that facl.

We hawve nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance forthe Consolidated

Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profil and othar
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cagh flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responzible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implemantation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and compleleness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fravd or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In prepanng the consolidated financial statemsnts, the respective managemeant and Board of Directors of the companias included in the Group
are responsible for assessing the ability of each company o continue as a going concern, disclozsing, as applicable, matters related to going
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concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless managemant either intends to liquidate the Company or 1o cease operations, or
has no realisiic alternative butto do so.

The respective Board of Diractors of the companias included in the Group Is responsible for overseeing the financial raporting process of each
company.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an acditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of

assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a materal misstalement when it exists,

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial staterments.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also.

= [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
parform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and oblain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of infernsl control,

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under saction 143(3)1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and such companies
incorporated in India which are ifs subsidiary companies have adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in
place and the oparating effectivenass of such controls,

*  Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management,

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concemn basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial
staternents and, basad on the audit evidence obtained, whather a matenal uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, o
medify our opinion. Our conclusions are basad on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's raport. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group (Company and its subsidiaries) as well as its associates to cease to continue as a going concern.

+  Ewvaluate the overall presantation, structure and content of the consolidated financial staterments, including the disciosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statemeants represent the underlying transactions and events in & manner that achieves fair presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of financial information of such entities included in the consofidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the
other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carrded out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion. Qur responsibilities in this regard are further described in para (a) of the section fitled 'Other Matters' in this audit report,

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the other auditors referred to in sub-
paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statemeants.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other enfities included in the consolidated financial
statermants of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies inintemal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a staterment that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
Independence, and where applicable, related safequards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current pariod and are therefore the key audit matters,

We describe these matters in our auditors’ report uniess law or reguiation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determing that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial information of a subsidiary included in the congolidated financial results, which reflect, before consolidation
elimination total assets ,of Rs. 71.60 Lacs as at March 31, 2025, and total revenue of Rs. 0.90 Lacs and Rs. 3.6 Lacs, total net profit after
tax of Rs, (-)1.79 Lacs and Rs, 0.61 Lacs, tolal comprehansive income of Rs. (-)1.79 Lacs and Rs, 0,61 Lacs for the guarter ended March
31, 2025 and for the yearended March 31, 2025 respectively, and net cash outflow of Rs. 1.72 Lacs for the yvear ended March 31, 2025 as
considered in the statemeant, Thesa financial statements have bean avdited by other auditors whose reports have bean furnished to us by
the Holding Company’s management and our apinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disciosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it
relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the audit reports of other auditors.

(b We did not audit the financial staternents/financial information of four subsidiares(including one step down subsidiary), whoss
Financial Statements before consofidation elimination reflect total assets of Rs. 709.23 Lacs as at March 31, 2025, total revenue of Rs.
70.949 Lacs and Rs 245,79 Lacs, total net profit after tax of Rs.8.57 Lacs and Rs, {-)70,70 Lacs, Iolal comprehensive income of Rs, 9.57
Lacs and Rs. (=) 70.70 Lacs for the quarter ended March 31, 2025 and for the year ended March 31, 2025 respectively, and net cash
outflowinet) of s, 29.84 Lacs for the year ended March 31, 2025, as considerad in the statement. These unaudited financial statermeants
have been furished to us by the Holding Company’s Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, inso farasit

(b
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ralates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidianes and our report in terms of sub-section {3) of Section 143
of the Act in 5o far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidianes, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements, In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us by the Helding Company’s Managemant, these financial statements are not
material to the Group,

Cur opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified
in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial
statemantsfinancial information certified by the Holding Company’s Management,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Az required by Section 143{3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial
statements of such subsidiaries as were audited by other auditors, as noted in the 'Other Matters” paragraph, we repor, to the extent
applicable, that:

al
b)

el

d)
&)

gl

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary far the

purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating lo preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial

statements have been kept 5o faras it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated balance sheel, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the

consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,

In our opinion, the aforesaid consclidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of tha written representations received from the direclors of the Holding Company as of March 31, 2025 taken on

record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies

incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from
being appointed as a directorinterms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect o the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference 1o financial statements of the Holding Company and its

subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

“Annexure A

As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit and on consideration of the report of the statutory auditors of such

subsidiaries and associales incorporated in India not audited by s, the remuneration paid during the current yaar by hotding

company, its subsidiaries / associates incorporated in India is in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under

Section 197 of the Act

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and

Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations giventous and basedon th e

consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidianes, as noted in the 'Other

Matlers’ paragraph;

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending ltigations as at March 31, 2025 on the consolidated

financial pasition of the Group, Refer Note 32 to the consalidated financial statements,

ii. The Group companies incorporated in India did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-termn contracts including

darivative contracts,

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its

subsidiary companies incorporatad in India during the year ended March 31, 2025,

iv. {a) TheManagements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and associate companies which are companias incorporated | n
India whose financial statements have baen audited under the Act have representad to us and the other auditors of such
subsidiaries and associate companies respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material
aither individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (gither from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaries and associate companies to or in any othar
person{s) or entity(ies), including forgign entities (“Intermedianes”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, diractly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any mannar
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associate companias
{“Utimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficianas. ;

{b) The Managements of Holding Company and its subsidiaries and associate companies which are companies incorporated in
India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have representad to us and the other auditors of such
subsidiaries and associate companies respactivaly that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company or any of such subsidiaries from any personis) or
antity(ies), including foreign entities {"Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whethar recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company or any of such subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associate companies shall, directly or indirecthy, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarias.

{c) Basedonthe audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and appropniate in the circumstances, performed by us and
thosa performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries and associate companies which are companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor's notice that has caused us orthe
other auditors 1o believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e) as provided under (a) and (b) above
contain any material misstatement.

v. (&) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Holding Company during the year is in accordance
with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable. Mo dividend is paid by s subsidiary companies and associate companies
incorporated in India.
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(b} As stated in Mote 12 (H) to the consolidated financial statemeants, the Board of Directors of the holding company have
proposead final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeating. The
amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicabla,

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of
accounts for the financial year endad March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has bean preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention.

For Kapoor Tandon & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.000352C

{Divyank Nigam)

Partner
Place; Kanpur M. Mo, 438443
Date: 29.05.2025 UDIN: 25438443BMIODZT 706
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Annexure A to the Auditors' Report

{Referred to in paragragh 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement section’ of our report of even date on the consolidated
financial statemants of Super Tannery Limited (lhe Holding Company) for the financial year ended March 31, 2025}

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")
Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Super Tannery Limited (“the Holding Company”) as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company
and such companias incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 which are its subsidiary companies, as of that date,

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies incorporatad in India which are its subsidiary companies have, in all matenal respects,
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as al March 31, 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by
such companies considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Contrals Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Charered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note”).

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Direclors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with referance to consolidated financial statements based on the criteria
established by the respective companies considering the essential components of intermal control stated in the Guidance Mote. These
responsibilities include the design, implamentation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrals that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
W conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Mote raguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectivaly in all material respects.

Qur audit invalves parforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with refarence to
consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
staterments included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the
risk that &8 material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of the intemal controls based on the
assessed risk, The proceduras selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assassmeant of the nsks of material misstatement of the
consclidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the relevant subsidiary companies
incorporated in India in terms of their reports referred Lo in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's Internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financlal slatements s a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepled accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that | 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assals of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necassary o parmit
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preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatemants due to error or fraud may occur and not be detacted. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future peniods are subject to
the rizk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statemants may become inadequate because of changas in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters

Qur aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with
referance to consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to subsidiaries companies incorporated in India, is based on the correspanding
reports of the auditors of such companies. Quropinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For Kapoor Tandon & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.000952C

{Divyank MNigam)
Partner
Place: Kanpur M. No. 438443
Date: 29.05.2025 UDIN: LUDIN: 25438443BMIODZTTO6
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Corsolidated Balance Shoet at at March 31, 2025

Particulars Note As a1 March 31, 2025 A5 at March 31, 2024
Mo, s in Lags s, in Lats Rs. in Lacs 5. in Lacs
ASSETS .00
Mor-curramt agsats
[al Property, Plart and Eqispment 2 {a) 915217 7, 760,35
[bf  Capitsl wark-in-prograss 2 e 207245 132950
e} Goodwill 2|k} 44,84 4370
[dy Other Inmngitle assets 2[c) 9,03 532
&} Fnancial Assats
[l Irvestments 3 47.29 4514
[i) Loans 4 438 36 18565 338,02 28616
il Other Financial Assets 5 54.93 44.05
Current Assets
[a] Invertaries B 5 EES.08 5.663.40
b} Fnancial Assats
Ii} Trade recelvabdes F 498855 5,905.21
(i) Cash and cash equivalents B Tir4 304,90
Bank Balances ather than (il
|#ij above ] R4£.59 FERE
() Oither Fimancial Asets 10 ar.E T.283.66 682.93 7.596.17
el Current Tax Assets [Met) - -
|d} Qther current assets 11 1,713.32 1,842,032
TOTAL ASSETS 216,288 13 24,674.58
EQUATY AND LIABILITIES
EQLATY
[a] - Equity Share Capital 12 16773 107973
[ap  Other Equity i3 9,266.43 H,643.30
Eguity attributable ta the owners of the company 10,345.1% 472303
Nan Contralling Intarest 52.20 54.57
TOTAL EQUATY 10,398.35 9. 777.55
LIABILITIES
Keor current llabilitles
&)  Fmancial llabilities
[i} Borrowings 14 23387 8480
(o) Deferred tax liabdities (net) 15 A1%8.10 £12.58
[e}  @hsr non-parrent liabilnies 18 TETT T14.37
Current liahilities
(2] Financial kabilites
I} Borrowings 7 6,657.28 T.751.24
{iiy  Trade payables 18
{a) Total Outstanding Dues to microe and small enterpeses 22602 GE. a8
{b) Total Outstanding Due to partses other than micro and small enterprises 4,397 49 303806
i} Diher financial Kabilties 19 LAOT.E2 13,1280 85549 12,353.37
[bp  Dther current iabilties 0 651.06 TO9A47
[} Provisons ki | 2T0.6F X22.64
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 26, 188.13 ﬁ
Significant Acoounting Paolicies 1
See accompanying nates to the corsclidated finandal statements
A5 per ur attached repot of even date For ard on B=halt of the Beard
For Kapoor Tandon & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registratian Mg, 0009520
Wohd. bmran Htikharul Anvm
Director (Finance] & CFOD Managing [Mrectar
Tl ANNIETRET D3N 37424
Dlivyank Mgam
Fariner
M. Bloc 438443
KK, Awasihi
Flace: Eangur Company Secratary
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

Consolidated Statemant of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars Hote Mo 2024-25 2033-24
Rs. in Lacs Bs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
INCOIME:
Reverue froen Operations
fa)  Sales ) income from cperations 22{a) 27.029.05 21 80098
{bl Other Operating Revenue 22(k] 148381 1,083
Tatal Revenus from aperations 2851285 37,880.27
Qther ncame 13 T12.85 218.59
Total Income 28,725.71 T 13,098.86
————
EXPENSE:
Ceat af materists consumed 24 17552 %4 13671358
Purchase of stock-in-trade 25 1,265.85 911,18
Changes & inventaries of finished goods,
wark-m-progress sad slock-in-trade 26 -278.01 291,50
Employes Benefis Experses F¥ 1,385.02 1,16x.00
Finance costs | S31.78 4B3.11
Depreciation and Amartizazion Expenses T43.7R R824
Other Experdes Fa) 6,541.58 507921
Total Expenses X7,720.54 212,259.49
—_—
Profit before Exceptianal iterms and Tax 1,003.17 B32.37
Exceptional tems - -
Profit hofore Tas 1,003.17 B32.37
Tax eapanse;
L. Currenl Tax F00.00 190.00
1. Deferred Tax 166 6535
3. Tax adpustment relating to earier years 36.11 0494
I3ETT 166,29
Profit for the period &60.40 573.08
Profit/[Loss) transfer to Minonty Interest |£32) [12.08)
&66.T2 58513
Qther comprehensive income
fip  lems thal will not be rectassified 1 profit or less
Re-measuremanis of the defired benefit plans 14.15 1651
i} Income tax retated toitems that will net be reclassified 1o profit or loss |4.14) 1021 4.52} 1153
Total comprehensive intame for the period &676,93 597,04
Earnéngs per equity share 0
{Face Valug per Share As. 1/-)
L Basic k62 .54
2. Dluted 62 .54
Sagnificant Accourting Polickes 1
Ses aocompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
A5 per our attached repart of even date For and an bekalt of the Board
For Kapoor Tandon & Co
Chartered Accausntants
Firm Registration No, 0000530
tohd. imran Iftikharal Amin
Director (Finance| & CFO Munaging [Hrector
Dhgank Nigam DR DRI 762 T DEN:DD03 74048
Partnes
M. No. 438443
Placa: Kanpar R. K- Awarsthi
Diate: F (1520125 Company Secretary
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Chamges in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

A, Equity Share Capital

Particulars R in Lags
Batance as at March 31, 2023 1,004.73
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prier pericd arrers -
Restated balance as &t April 01, 2023 1.079.73
Chamges in equity during the yeas -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 107373
Changes in Equity Share Capital due topriee perind arroes c
Restated balance as &t April 01, 2024 1,079.73
Changes in equity during the year -
Balance as at March 11, 2035 1,079.7%
. Other Equity Rs. in Lacs
Particulars. RBeserve & Surplus Tatal

Capital Securities General | Brtained Other

Rageree Framium Ragerse Eamings Equany
Batarce as at April 01, 2023 2959 27018 4,455.23 3.345.25 B,100.25
Profs for the year - - - 58512 BE5.12
Dividand Paid |53.95) [CER-CH
Crther Comprefersiue Incama . 11.92 11.52
Balarsci as At March 31, 2004 29,58 27018 £,401,24 3094339 8,543 30
Profit-for the year - - GEET2 BHE.T2
Dividend Paxd |53.99) (5399,
Adjustevent en Accound of Conselidatinon 019 19
nhar CompriFersi IRComa 10,21 1021
Enlarce a5 at March 81, TS 2859 27018 4,347 24 461541 9,266,427
Significant Accounting Polickes 1
Sap piitmpamying noles Lo the consalidated Tinancial staterments
A5 per aur attached report of gven dato Far and on hehalf of the Board
Far Rapoor Tanden & Co
Chartered Accountants
Hrm Registration No, DOOY52C

tdahd. Imran Tiskharul Amin
Director [Finance) & CFO Managing Director

Dhegank Nigam DN 7RI T DINDDO3 1424
Partner
W, o, 438443
Placa: Kanpur B, K. dwasthd
Date: 29.05.2025 Company Secretarny
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

Consalidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars Hote H124-25 2023-24
Ko. 5. im Lacs s in Lacs
A CASH FLOW FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES
Mt Prafit bedone tax 1,003.17 830,37
Adjustments far ;
Depreciation/ Amortisation T43.78 G814
{Prafit)fLass an Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments (25.44) 108
Interest ncome (B2.2E) (2E.B6)
Firance Cast 53178 41284
eapeched credy loss 1081 10015
Deferral of moame on gavernment grant (g 51y [145.83)
Remeasuroment of net defined benedit plans 14.14 1E50
Accration in Investment and Share of prafig fram firm [FE:1 {3.03)
Derivataoes of MT Pravision 271 648
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,135.43 1,811.02
Adjustment for {increase] fdecrease in operating assets
{Ircrease) Docrease in trade recewables 1, 19646 41,193.22
{Ircreasa)y Decraase in Inventarias 98 32 528.27
{Imcreasely’ Decreass in oiher nan current kans / assels {0 3a) naz
flrcreasel Decreass in cther nan current linsncal sdsets (10ET J0u04a)
{Increasely Decrease in other current finanoal assets [234.85) (271,15}
{Ircrease)y Docrease in other ourrent assets 24870 (53247
incraagey [Decresse) in non current labilities T390 11254
Increass) |Decresse] in trade payables T2T47 9167
increase) [Deorexde) in other inoncial labilities 54658 21552
Increase) |[Decrease) in cther current liabikgies (hE.21) 103494
Increasey) {Deoreass) in Provisions EXE] 1.53
Cash generated fram operations 4,731.58 &72.97
Incame Laxes refunded £ (paid], et (133.05) (15297
Net cash generated from operating activities 4,590.53 T20.00
B, CASH FLOW FROM INVESTENG ACTRATIES
Purchase of Property Plant & Equipments. |2.832 00y |1.1EE 45)
Purchasa of gthar intangibla assets 42y 14.05)
Procesds fram sale of PPE 1345 5.5
Adjustrment on consalidation 114 6,89
Interest recesed B2.G 2886
Other bank balances {Margin Menoy & others| 5854 26050
Rt cash |used In} f gamerated from iresting activities (2,580.03) {1,389.59)
€. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIITIES
Repayment of king-term loans (Net) 14507 %497
Proceedsfrepaymenth fromfal working capital lsans 1053 96) 9365
Finance casis paid [531.78) (&1 84}
Dhidend Paid {53.94) (53.99)
Meet cash used in financing activities {1,490.66) 552.79
INCREASE J/ [DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS £2784 [11E.80
Cash and cash equialents ar the beginning of the year 304,50 471,70
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end al the year TELTA 304,90
[rfer Mote Mo, & Tor break-upl
Sagnificant Accounting Policies 1
Sew aocompanying nates o the corsclidated financial statements
Az per our pttached repor ol even date Faor ard or behall of the Board
Far Kapoor Tandon & Ca
Chartered Accourtants
Firm Registratian Mo, 0008520
Mohd. imran [ftikharuf Aman
Dirgctor (Finance] & CFO Mamaging [Hreoter
DIRD003 62T CHR:D003 7424

Diryank Nigom
Partner
B, No. 435243

Place: Kanpur
Date: 29,06, 2025

R, K. fuwiasthi
Company Secretary

1M



SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

Super Tannery Limited
Motes forming part of consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 1:

A. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Super Tannery Limited (the company/parent
company} and its subsidiaries (collectively, "the Group™) for the year ended March 31, 2025. Group is primarily
engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of Leather and Leather Goods.

The Company is a public limited company having its registered office situated at 187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur —
208010 (UP). The Company's equity shares are listed at the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on May 29,2025,

B. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1:

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act. In addition, the guidance
notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) are also applied except
where compliance with other statutory promulgations require a different treatment.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value amount:

i} Certainfinancial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments),

i) Defined benefit plans - plan assels

Historical costis generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods or services.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technigue.

Consolidation procedure

(i)  The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Company and
its subsidiaries. For this purpose, an entity which is, directly or indirectly, controlled by the Parent
Company is treated as subsidiary. The Parent Company together with its subsidiaries constitute the
Group. Control exists when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, has power over the investee, is
exposed to variable returns from its invalvement with the investee and has the ability to use its power to
affectits returns.

(iiy Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, loses control of the
subsidiary. Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed off during the year are included in
the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss from the date the Parent Company, directly or indirectly,
gains control until the date when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, ceases to control the
subsidiary.

(i) The consolidated financial statements of the Group combines financial statements of the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries line-by-line by adding together the like items of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. All intra-group assets, liabilities, income, expenses and except unrealised profits/losses
on intra-group transactions are eliminated on consolidation. The accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been harmonized, lo the extent possible, to ensure the consistency with the policies adopted by the
Parent Company. The consolidated financial statements have been presented to the extent possible, in
the same manner as Parent Company's standalone financial staterments.

{iv) Mon-controlling interest represents that part of the total comprehensive income and net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests which are not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Parent Company.

(v}  Incase of foreign subsidiaries, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the
year. All assets (except fixed assets and share capital) and liabilities are converted at the rates prevailing
at the end of the year. Exchange differences arising on consolidation is recognized in the Statement of
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

Profit and Loss. Investments in 100% foreign subsidiaries have been eliminated with the corresponding
Share Capital and Share Premium, if any, of the subsidiary company.

{vi) Incase of associates, where the company directly or indirectly through subsidiaries holds more than 20%
of equity (i.e. where the Group has significant influence), investments are accounted for using equity
method except where the associate operates under severe long-term restrictions that significantly impair
its ability to transfer funds to the parent Company.

{vii) The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiary/associates, over the net assets of the
subsidiary/associates is recognized in the consolidated financial statements as goodwill or capital
reserve, as the case may be.

{viii) Aninvestmentin associate is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group's
share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of associate.

(ix) Asfaras possible, the consaolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies
for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as
the Company’s separate financial statements.

4, Operating Cycle for current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification.

An assetis classified as current when itis:

a) expected tobe realised orintended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle,

b)  held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to seftle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All ather assets are classified as non-current,

Aliability is classified as current when:

a) itisexpectedto be setiled in the normal operating cycle,

b} itisheld primarily for the purpose of trading,

c} itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) there is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle of the Company, that is, the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their

realisation in cash or cash equivalentis 12 months.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

5. Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its functional currency. Figures have been
rounded off to the nearest rupeesin lacs.

6. Critical estimate and Judgements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements,
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Tha areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
Employee benefits (estimation of defined benefit obligation)
Post-employment benefits represent obligations that will be settled in the future and require assumptions to
project benefit obligations. Post-employment benefit accounting is intended to reflect the recognition of
future benefit costs over the employee's approximate service period, based on the terms of the plans and
the investment and funding decisions made. The accounting requires the Company to make assumptions
regarding variables such as discount rate and salary growth rate. Changes in these key assumptions can
have a significant impact on the defined benefit obligations.
Estimation of expected useful lives of property, plant and equipment
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at each reporting date,
based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and
economic obsolescence that may change the utility of property, plant and equipment.
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Contingencies

Legal proceedings covering a range of matters are pending against the Company. Due to the uncertainty
inherent in such matters, it is often difficult to predict the final outcome. The cases and claims against the
Company often raise difficult and complex factual and legal issues that are subject to many uncertainties
and complexities, including but not limited to the facts and circumstances of each particular case/claim, the
jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law. In the normal course of business, the Company consults
with legal counsel and other experts on matters related to litigations. The Company accrues a liability when
it is determined that an adverse oulcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. In the event an adverse outcome is possible or an estimate is not determinable, the matter is
disclosed.

Valuation of deferred tax assets

Deferred income tax expense is calculated based on the differences between the carrying value of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases that are considered temporary
in nature. Valuation of deferred tax assels is dependent on management's assessmenl of fulure
recoverability of the deferred benefit. Expected recoverability may result from expected taxable income in
the future, planned transactions or planned oplimising measures. Economic conditions may change and
lead to a different conclusion regarding recoverability.

Fairvalue measurements

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be
measured based on guoled prices in active markets, their fair values are measured using valuation
techniques, including market multiples model (Market Approach) and Capitalisation method (Income
Approach) which involve various judgements and assumptions.

impairment of Property, plant and equipment, Right-of-use assets, intangible assets (other than goodwill)
and Capital work-in-progress

The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on future cash flows after
considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rates
and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions, The estimated cash flows are developed using
internal forecasts. The cash flows are discounted using a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value,

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets,

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period; they are recognised in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Fif Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which
represent the carrying value of property, plant and equipment recognised at 1st April 2016 measured as perthe
previous GAAP. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to
bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and
adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the iterm will flow to the entity
and the cost can be measured reliably.
Assets are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
forintended use.
Expenses incurred relating to project, including borrowing cost and net of income earned during the project
development stage prior to its intended use, are considered as pre - operative expenses and disclosed under
Capital Work - in - Progress.
Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the Company intends to use these
during more than a period of 12 months.

8. Investment property
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
Company, is classified as investment property. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of
recoverable taxes, frade discount and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
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10.

1.

For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represent the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment recognised at 1st April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP. Such cost includes purchase
price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its
intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate
variations attributable to the assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment or any significant part initially recognised of such item of property
plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the
assetis derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated
residual value. Depreciation has been provided on such cost of assets less their residual values on straight line
method on the basis of estimated useful life of assets as prescribed in Schedule |l of the Act. However, in case
of foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS) the depreciation (including on Investment property) or
amortisation is accounted for in accordance with the relevant statute / applicable accounting standard of the
country.

Freehold land is not depreciated/amortised.

Assets held under financial leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
Depreciation is calculated on a pro rata basis except thal, assets costing upto Rs. 5,000 each are fully
depreciated in the year of purchase.

The estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less
accumulated amortisation/depletion and impairment loss, if any. Such costincludes purchase price, borrowing
costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, net
charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to
the intangible assets,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separale asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity
and the cost can be measured reliably.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss whenthe asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets being computer software is amortised on straight line method over the period of five years.
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangibles assets recognised as on
April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of
transition date.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of
each reparting period and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
assel's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating
unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use,

Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds recoverable amount.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
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12.

13.

indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased.

If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

Leases

Company as aLessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a define period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified assets, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contact involves the use of an identified asset (i) the
Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease
and (i) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

As a lessee, The Company recognises a right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset orthe site on which itis located, less any lease incentives received.

The right of use assel is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right of use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated
useful lives of right of use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In
addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rale cannot be readily
determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the
Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rale specific lo the lease or
the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments, including in-
substance fixed payments and lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option;

The lease liability is measured at amartised cost using the effective interest method.

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The
Company applied a single discount rate to a porifolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date.

Company as a Lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. Where the Company is a lessor under an operating lease, the asset is
capitalised within property, plant and equipment and depreciated over its useful economic life. Payments
received under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. The basis of determining the cost for
various categories of inventory are as follows:

(a) Raw materials, Chemicals, Components, stores & spares and Stock in Trade — Cost includes cost of
purchase (Met of recoverable taxes) and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on FIFO basis.

(b) Stock in process and finished goods- Direct cost plus appropriate share of overheads.

(c) Saleable Scrap/Waste/By products - Al estimated realisable value.

{d) Inter group goods transfer —transfer price

(e) Import Entitlement/ Licences — At estimated realisable/Utilisation value

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated cosls necessary to make the sale.
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14,

15,

16.

Foreign Currencies

a) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency’). The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupee (INR/Rupees), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency,

b) Transaction and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded on initial recognition at the exchange rate prevailing on
the date of the transaction.
Any gains or losses arising due to differences in exchange rates at the time of translation or settlement are
accounted for in the Statement of Profit & Loss either under the head foreign exchange fluctuation or
interest cost, as the case may be, except those relating to long-term foreign currency monetary items.
Investment in overseas Wholly Owned Subsidiaries are carried in Balance Sheet at the rates prevailing
on the dates of transaction.

Fair Value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on

the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset ot liability, or

. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market which can be accessed by the
Company for the asset or liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use

when pricing the assel or liability, assuming that market participants actin their economic bestinterest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are apprepriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient

data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the

use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets orliabilities

. Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpul thatl is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

. Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurementis unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company

determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation

(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial assets.
Based on the business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset, the Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit and loss.
Debt instruments at amortised cost
Debt instruments such as trade and other receivables, security deposits and loans given are measured at the
amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and
Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
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principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profitorloss.

Debt instruments at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

A'debtinstrument' is classified as at the FWTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and
The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FWVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date

at fairvalue. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Debt instruments at Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
FWTPL is a residual category for debt instruments excluding investments in subsidiary and associate
companies. Any debt instrument, which does nol meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized costor as
FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.
After initial measurement, any fair value changes including any interest income, foreign exchange gain and
losses, impairment losses and other net gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Equity investments
All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading are classified as at FWVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the company decides to classify the same
either as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the Profit or loss.
De-recognition
Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
pr1 marily derewgnlsed (i.e. removed from the Company's Balance Sheet) when
The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’
arrangement; and either:
The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
On de-recognition, any gains or losses on all debt instruments (other than debt instruments measured at
FWOCI) and equity instruments {measured at FWTPL) are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Gains and losses in respect of debt instrurments measured at FVOCI and that are accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition. Gains or losses on equity instruments measured at FVOCI that
are recognised and accumulated in OC| are not reclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss

on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, rade receivables and bank balance.,

b)  Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income,

In case of other assets (listed as a) above), the company determines if there has been a significant increase in

credit risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased

significantly, an amount equal to 12-month ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance. However, if

credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognized as loss

allowance.

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
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payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FWVTPL,
fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk is recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are
not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities classified and measured at amortised cost such as loans and borrowings are initially
recognized at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cosl using the Effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amaortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the staternent of profit
and |oss.

Derecognition

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage the commodity price risk and exposure on
account of fluctuation in interest rate and foreign exchange rates. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
measured at fair value with changes being recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Derivatives are carried
as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken through profit and loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any differences between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in Profit or loss over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the drawdown oceurs.

The borrowings are removed from the Balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid including any noncash asset
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit orloss as other gains/{losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settiement of
the liability of at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a
long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes
payable on demand on the reporting date, the enlity does nol classify the liability as current, if the lender
agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statement for issue, not to demand
payment as a consequence of the breach.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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Borrowing cost also inciudes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing
costs.

Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of
activities relating to construction/development of the qualifying asset upto the date of capitalisation of such
assetis added to the cost of the assets.

Interest income eamed on temporary investment of specific borrowing pending expenditure on gualifying
assetis deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the standalone balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company, or the counterparty.

Claims
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts are disclosed after a careful evaluation of the facts
and legal aspects of the matter involved.

Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Capital Commitments

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance
sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by future events not
wholly within the control of the Company, or present obligations where it is not prabable that an outflow of
resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed when the inflow of economic benefits is probable.
However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent
asset, butitis recognised as an asset.

Government Grant

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attached conditions will be complied with.

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses incurred in previous
period(s). Such a grantis recognised in profit or loss of the period inwhich it becomes receivable.

Government grants shall be recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants related to assets are presented in the balance sheet as deferred income and is recognised
in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related assets or other relevant basis.
Government grants by way of financial assistance on the basis of certain qualifying criteria are recognised as
they become receivable,

In the unlikely event that a grant previously recognised is ultimately not received, it is treated as a change in
estimate and the amount cumulatively recognised is expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue Recognition

Sale of Goods and services

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when (a) control is transferred to the
customer, which is mainly upon delivery in case of domestic sales and on issuance of Shipping Bill in case of
exportsales.
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods supplied and
services rendered, net of returns, rebates and discounts to customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, such as Goods &
Services Tax (GST).

Interestincome

Interest income is accrued on using on a time basis by the effective interest rate with reference to the principal
outstanding.

Dividend Income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been
established.

ExportIncentives

Export Incentives are recognised when certainty of receipt is established.

Insurance Claim

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted [ expected to be admitted and to the extent
that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and itis reasonable to expect ultimate collection.

Other Income

Other income is accounted for on accrual basis except where the receipt of income is uncertain ans in such
casesitis accounted for on receipt basis.

Employee benefits

The Company makes contributions to both defined benefit and defined contribution schemes which are mainly
administered through/by duly constituted and approved Trusts and the Government.

Defined Contribution Scheme

In case of pravident fund administered through Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, the Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

In case of members of constituted and approved trusts, the Company recognises contribution payable to such
trusts as an expense including any shortfall in interest between the amount of interest realised by the
investment and the interest payable to members at the rate declared by the Government of India.

The Company's contributions paid / payable during the year to provident fund administered through Approved
Trust, Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, Superannuation Fund and Employees' State Insurance
Corporation are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as an expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to contributions.

Defined Benefit Scheme

Gratuity: Cost of providing the Benefit is determined on an actuarial basis at the end of the year and charged to
Statement of Profit and Loss. The cost of providing these benefits is determined by independent actuary using
the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and |losses and the effect of the asset ceiling, (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and return on plan assels), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Itis included in retained earnings in the statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Leave encashmenl: Accrued Leaves are encashed annually at the end of the calendar year and not
accumulated. Provision for the same is done on the basis of leaves accrued as at the end of the reporting
period.

Research and Development Expenditure
Expenditure on research of revenue nature is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss and that of capital nature
is capitalized as fixed assets.

Taxes on Income

Current tax is the amount of tax payable determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and provisions
ofthe Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance
sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using
the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses
and allowances to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be utilised. Deferred tax assets
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and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax rates. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off
set, and presented as net.

Current and deferred taxes relating to items directly recognised in reserves are recognised in reserves and not
in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits inthe
form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that
the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an deferred tax asset in the
Balance Sheet when itis probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

Dividend Distribution
Dividends paid (including income tax thereon) is recognised in the period in which the interim dividends are
approved by the Board of Directors, or in respect of the final dividend when approved by shareholders.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows statement is prepared as per the Indirect Method specified in Ind AS 7 on Cash Flows. Cash and
cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in statement of cash flows exclude item which are not
available for general use on the date of balance sheet.

Earnings pershare

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of
extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted eamings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax {including the post-tax effect of
extraordinary itemns, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of
any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity
shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the
net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be
converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e.
average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares
are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in consistent manner with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the Company.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendmenits to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31,
2025, MCA has notified amendments to Ind AS ~ 117 Insurance Contracts. Ind AS 116 — Leases, relating to
sale and leaseback transactions and conseguential amendments to other standards which are not material,
applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024, The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and
based onits evaluation has determined that it does not have any significant impact in its financial statements.

On 7 May 2025, MCA issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2025, which
made certain amendments to Ind AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, effective from 1
April 2025, These amendments define currency exchangeability, provide guidance on estimating spot
exchange rates when a currency is not exchangeable and include related disclosure requirements. The
Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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SUPER TANMERY LIMITED
Noted forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{a} Property, plant and equipment [Rs. In lacs)
Electric
Land Factory Plant & 1 Office | Furniture & Capital
Particulars Freehold building | Machinery Installation | Computer e P R, Vehicle Taotal WP
& Fittings

Gross carrying value
As at March 31, 2023 152.27 2,697.63 T.211.24 232.42 54.00 79.36 193.99 G38.01 ) 11,258.92| 1,125.44
Additions 30,00 152.59 6258.05 9.01 B 6.11 35.14 a0.51 963.35 204,06
IndAs Adjustmants 276,17 - - - 27617
Adjustment/{Deletions) . 183,34) {76.66) (160,00}
As at March 31, 2024 182.27 2,850.22 E.032.12 241.43 B2.94 85.47 23213 651.B6 | 12.3338.44| 1,329.50
Additions 2322 41.15 1,701.75 54.75 BT 2088 41.29 235.18 2,133.01 14995
Ind#és Adjustmants - a7.08 - Br.08
Adjustmaent/(Deletions) (73.28} . |23.10) . : 161.06) -157.44
As at March 31, 2025 138.21 2,891.37 9,797.85 296.18 7173 106.35 273.42 E259E | 1440109 | 207945
Accumulated
Depreciation/ Amortisation
As at March 31, 2023 393.60 | 2,839.85 115.40 41.00 44.89 129.83 41140 3,579.58
Degreciation for the year 71.29 45228 7.68 159 471 19.57 45.42 BO6.55
Indis Adjustments 7319 - - 73.19
Adjustmant/{Deletions) - |10.948) - - - - 170.65) (B1.63)
As at March 31, 2024 46489 |  3,354.35 123.09 42.58 57.60 149.40 38617 457809
Degpreciation for the year 7183 53E.46 0.49 2.18 1030 20.58 51.02 T03.B6
Indis Adjustments 39.34 - - 39.34
Adjustment/iDeletions) - 117.94a) - - - - 154.41) [72.37]
As at March 31, 2025 536.72 3,914.19 132,58 44.77 67.90 169,98 38278 52489
Net Carrying amount
Aa at March 31, 2023 152.27 2,304.03 4,371.38 117.02 13.00 30.47 54.16 226.61 727894 | 1,125.44
As at March 31, 2024 182.27 2,385.33 &,677.77 118.34 20.35 27.87 82.73 265.69 7,760.35 | 1,329.50
As at March 31, 2025 138.21 2,354.65 5,883.66 163.60 26.96 38.45 103.44 443.20 |  9,152.17 | 2,079.45
[b) Goodwill - Goodwill on Consolidation

(A5 In lacs)

Particulars

Carrying value
As at March 31, 2024 43.70
Addition during the year 1.14
As at March 31, 2025 4,54
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(] Other Intangible assets

Particulars Computer | \ebsite |Trademark| TOTAL
Software
{Rs. In lacs] | (s, In bacs] | (Rs. In lacs) | (RS, In lacs]

Gross carrying value
As at March 31, 2023 592 041 257 850
Additons 3.7 337
Adjustrment/| Deletions)
Deletions - -
As at March 31, 2024 9.19 0.41 .57 .17
Additions 040 0.40
Aadjustrment)| Deletions)
Dizletions -
As at March 31, 2025 9.59 041 2.57 12.57
Accumulated Depreciation -
As at March 31, 2023 097 040 0.59 2.36
Depreciation for the year .55 .58
Adjustrment/| Deletions} -
As at March 31, 2024 156 .40 0.99 2.95
Depreciation for the year 0.59
Adjustment/[ekations) -
As at March 31, 2025 1.56 040 0.99 3.54
Met Carrying amount
As at March 31, 2023 4.95 .01 1.58 6.54
As at March 31, 2024 7.63 0.0L 1.58 9.22
As at March 31, 2025 B.03 0.01 1.58 9.03

{d} Assets given as security for barrowings
(i} All the items of Property, Plant and Equipmaent of the Company have been given to lenders as security for various borrowing facilities

(i} The management has carried out an exercise of identifying the asset that may have been impaired, during the year, in respect of each cash generating unit. On
the basis of review carried out by the management, there was no iImpairment loss on fiked assets during the year,

(] Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP)

Rz, In lacs)
(@) Ageing schedula for Capital-work-in pro As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2029
Particulars Amaunt In CWIP far a period of Tatal Amaunt in CWIF for a pericd of Tatal
Legsthan1 | 1-Zvears | -3years | More than 3 Lessthan 1 | 1-3 wears - 3years More than 3
Wear WEE Waar WEars
(i} Progects im progress 1.373.09 59109 115.26 - 2,079.44 20T 383 45 626,72 115.26 1,328.50
(1] Progects termporarily suspanded
Tatal 1373.09 50109 11526 - 2,073.44 207 38345 62672 11526 1,320.50
(L) CWIP, whose completion i oerdue or has enceeded TS cost comgared to its original plan: HIL ML
{f} Intangible assets under development [Intangible CWIP) HIL NIL
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

Notes forming part of the C lidated Financial Staverments for the year anded March 31, 2025

3 Financial Assers: Investments - Mon Current

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Rs. in Lacs R in Lacs
Equity Shares Unguated
A, OTHERS
iy SUPERHDUSE OVERSEAS LEMITED
5,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid 050 0,50
(i) AL-BARR FINARCE HOUSE LIMITED
30,000 Equity Shases of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid .00 2.00
[ili] SVIT PRONEXT MACHIMES PRIVATE LIMITED
8,500 Equity Shares of Rs. 104/~ each fully paid 1.38 108
[lv) INDUSTRIAL INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES {INDIA) LIMITED
25,200 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/ each fully paid 04 2.47
(vl KAMNPUR UNMAD LEATHER CLUSTER DEVELOFMENT OO, LTD:
75,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ each fully paid 7.50 7.50
[wi] JAlAL TANNERY EFFLUENT TREATRENT ASSOCIATION
26,200 (Nil) Equity Shares of As. 10/- each fully paid 162 2462
Total - A 16.04 16.17
_—
Equity Shares Quoted
B. [iy Superhouse Limited
5,200 Eguity Shares of Rs. 104~ sach fully paid 052 052
Total - B .52 0,52
Inwestment In Fartnership Flom
C  Bowini Frills LLP
15% in the capital of the LLP 075 .75
Share of Resenves and Surplus of the LLF 29,594 30,70
Total - C 30.73 31.45
Total (A+B+C) 47.29 48.14
Agpregate Book Value of Guoted Investrments 0.52 .52
Market Valie of Quolad Investmants 7.32 10.21
fEEregate Book Value of Unquoted Investments 16,04 16.17
Details of Part Capital and Profit Sharing Ratio in LLP Rs. In Lacs
Capital as on Capital as on
Name of Partners Profit Sharing Ratio 31.03.2025 31.03. 2024
1 Mr. Shahbhaz Khan 55% 2.75 275
2 Super Tannery Lirnited 15% 0,75 0,75
3 M Iftikharul Amin 153 0.75 0.5
4 M. Igbal Aksan 15% 075 0.75
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Motes forming part of the liclated Financial %

for the year ended March 31, 2025

4 _Financial Assets: Loans - Non Currant

Pasticulars As a1 March 31, 2025 As Bt March 31, 2034
R, in Lacs Ri in Lacx
Unsecured Considered Good
Loans & Acvances 33838 338,07
Tatal 33836 338.02
5 Dthar Finamnciad Aszats- Non Currant
Paticutars As '3t March 31, 2025 A3 at March 31, 2024
s, in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Unsecured Considered Good
Sarurity Deposits 54,43 44,06
Tatal 54.93 44,06
[ ries [At cost or net realisable value whichever is lower)
Farticilars Az @t harch 31, 20325 A at March 31, 2034
Rs. in Lats As. im Lace
Faw Materials H56.17 1,283 68
Wark in Pragress 1,957 4% 2,118.48
Finished Gooits 1.259.95 85545
Chermical, Compenents, Slared and spares 143311 138153
Waste & Scrap 1936 X486
Tatal 5, 565.08 5,663.40
(&) AN the Inventories have been biypothecated a8 security Tor various working facities from banks.
7 Finaneial Assets - Current: Trade Receivable
Particulars e at March 31, 1025 Az at March 31, 2024
Fs. inLacs Hs. in Lacs Hs.im Lacs Rs in Lacs
fal Secured Considerad Good - -
by Ursecured Considered Good 4,988 .55 5090521
[e) Ursecured which have signaficant increase m oredit risk - -
[d}) Ursecured credit imaairod 13358 12276
5127.13 608757
Less: bnpairient loss allowanoe [ECL) 13358 122,76
Tatal 4,088.55 5,006,211
[al A% the Trade Receivables have Deen hypothecated as security for various working Tacilitses fram banks,
Trade Beceivable ageing Schedule: Bs. In Lacs
Dutstanding from due date/date of transacton Total
Particulars Mot Dus Litgs than B maniks 1 year - 2 y#ar - More than
B manths - 1 year & year 3 year 3 years
s at March 31, 2025
Undisputed Trade Receivables
|} Corsidered Good 203577 13343 1,514,501 15103 - 1354 4,988.55
i} Which hawe significant increass
i credit risk X
(i) Credit impaired IBET 7353 5.28 17.50 13358
Disputed Trade Recehvables
li} Corsidered Gaod -
[it) Which bave significant mcraate
in credit risk
iy Cradis Impaired -
Tatal 3,035.77 270,10 1,588.33 196,89 = 3104 5,122,13
s at March 31, 2024
Undisputed Trade Receivables
|i) Corsidered Good 1,953.55 2.E70.51 T30.52 143,15 - 192 9% 5,905.21
i} Which hawe significant increass
i credit risk
[t} Credit impaired EO.#L 20050 12.18 1837 122.76
Disputed Trade Recetvablas
li} Corsidered Good
[it) Which have significant mcraase
in credit risk
[iily Cradit impaired
Tatal 1,953.55 2,93%.31 T51.427 161.33 - 22236 6,037,597
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8 Financial Asiets - Currant: Cagh and Cash Bquivalants

Particulars

A3 at March 31, 2025

A5 at March 31, 3024

Rs, imLacs Rz in Lacs
Balarwes with barks
O CUFTENT acoounts Lr0EL 221463
o EEFC acoaurits 12139 B%.04
on fixed doposit 554
Chagquies and Draft an Hand/Remittanca in Transi 13033 473
Cash o hand 1181 746
Total 73174 3045
9 Financial Assets - Current: Bank Balances ather than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars s gt March 31, 2025 A% gt March 33, 2024
B, in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Margin money depasits [FL R B51.48
|restmicted, held as lien against bank guarartessfLCs)
Earmaried balances with banks - unclaimsed Dividend 1611 1165
Taokal 703.13

10 Other Current Fimancial Assets

—_—aeem

Particulars Az at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Bs. in Lacs Hs. in Lacs
Ursecured considered goad
Expart Incemive Recanabla 403.34 363 41
Balarce with Gowl/Revenue autharily 51444 31952
Total 91778 68293
11 Other Current Assets
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
R, In Lacs A& Ini Lacs
Ursacured considerad grad
Aedvances to Trade Creditors GR5.24 1,432 46
Mdvance recoverabde in cash or kind ar for value to be received GAEE2 34985
Prepaid sxpenses 6530 GoG7
Imerest receivable from WS 1396
Total 1,711.32 1.842.02
—
12 Eguity Share Capital
Partioulars A at March 33, 3025 A5 at March 31, 2024
Mo al Mo, ol
Fhares s, in Lacs Sharas Re. i Lacs
Buthorised
Equety Shares af Rs. 1/-each 1100600, 0D 1100000 11, Gk (K10 1. 10000
Issued
Equaty Shares of 85 1/-each 10,78.73,360 107573 10,79,73, 360 107373
Subscribed and fully pald-up
Equity Shares af Rs. 1/ each 10,70,73,360 107573 40, 79,73 350 1407273
ey e
Tatal 1.079.73 107573
A} Recontilistion of the number of equity shanes and shase capital
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 3024
Mo af M. of
Lhares Fs. inLacs Zhares Rs. in Lacs
Suhgcribed and fully poid-up equity shares
Dutstanding at the heginning of the yeae 10.79.73,360 107873 10,78, 73,360 107873
Enaresissned during the year = =] - =
Dutstanding at the end of the year 10, 70,73, 360 107873 40,79, 73,350 14075.73
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|8}  Dietail of Shares held by the promoters:

At at March 31,2025 Az at March 31,2024 Changes during tha year
5. Mame of the Promater Nao, af % of Shares Mo, af % of Shares Changes during the year
Mo, Shares held Shares hietd Mo of shares *
1 YEQUARLIL AMIN - - 1,78,83,900 1E56% 1,748,583, 500.00 16.56%
2 IQBAL AHSAN 142502 BATH 9142502 BATH - 0.00%
1 IFTIEHARLIL ARMIN 1,52,35.622 14.11% 50,80.432 BAl% 61,55,190.00 570
4 MUBASHIRUL AMIN 56,95.447 5.1T% 45,580,000 4.25% 11,06,447.00 102%
% UIMAIRUL AMIN 6,05 448 5.2T% 45 80,000 4.25% 11,05448,00 103%
& TANVEERLIL A8IN 63,5170 6.07% 45,050,000 4.17% 20,51,730.00 1.90%
7 FARHA FATIMA BILBEOIS 571% 41,16.28% 181% 20,5173 1.90%
2 SOPHL AMIN 34,55.400 3.200% 32,58.400 120% 0.00%
9 ISMAT IGBAL 1,10,30.555 10.31% 30,832,800 2.86% B47,755.00 T A%
10 RURLANA AMIN = 0.00% 26,33.400 Laak -26,33.400.00 -Lad%
TOTAL 6.30,77,723 58.4x% £,30,77,723 SE.22% = 0.00%
As st March 31,2024 As at Manch 31,2023 Changes during the year
% Name of the Promaoter Mo, of % of Shares Mo of % of Shares Changes during the year
Mo, Shares hald Sharos held No of shares *
1 YEQUARLIL AMIN 1,78.83,500 15.55% 17883900 16565 - 0.00%
2 IORAL AHSAN 95,.42,502 247% 914250 Bav% - 0.00%
3 IFTIKARLL AMIN a0, 80,432 8.41% 50,8043 281% Ol
4 MUBASHIRLIL AMIN 45,590,000 4.25% 45,850,000 4.25% - 0.00%
5 LMAAIRLIL AMIN 45,590,000 4.25% A45,90,000 4.25% B 0.00%
& TANVEERUL A8AIN 45,00,000 4175 45,00,000 4.17% * 0.00%
T FARHA FATIMA, 41,168,289 3.81% 4%, 10,000 4.17% 13,583,711} -0.36%
& SOPHLA AsNIN 34,568,400 3.20% 34.58.400 3.20% - 0.00%
o |SMAAT IBAL 30,52, 800 2.85% 30,82 800 186% - 0.00%
10 RURASA AMIN 233,400 2.44% 26,33 400 1aa% - 0.00%
TOTAL E30,77,723 8.47% 5,34,61.434 58.78% [3,83,711) -0.36%

[B]  Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The camparry has only ore class of equity shares having a pee value of Bs. 1 per share, Each halder of equity shares is entitled to ane vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends m
Indian Rugoes. The dividend propesed by the Board of Directars is subjact to the approval af the sharshalders in tha ensweng Annual General Moeting.

In the event of kquidation af the comgary, the holders of eguity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution

will ba Inpropomion to the numbaer of equity shares held by the shareholdars

€] Detsils of sharehold,

holding more than 5% shares. in the ¢

Particsars

A5 3t March 31, 1005

Az at March 31, 2124

Ko, o No, of
Shares B Shares %
[al M. Vegarul Amin - 1,75,53,500 16 56%
() MIr. Igbal Ahsan 31,942,503 B.ATH 1,432,502 24T%
feh  Mr Mticharul Aemim 1,52,35.62% 14.11% SO0,80,A32 BA1%
idi M. Mubsshirul femin 56,95 447 5.27T%
f2i b, Umezerul Amron 5E,05, 448 5.1TE
in K Tanveerndl Amin 65,51,730 6.07TH
gl Wirs Fasha Fatima 61,608,019 5.71%
15} M. Izt ighal 1,11,30,555 10:31%
HR4-15 1023-24
{Ma, al Shares) Mo, ol Shasas)
(B} Equity Shares afotted a5 fully paid pursuant o contract|s) withous peyment besng recalved in cash during the : .
imenedliately preceding fiva vears e, Ie
[E| Equity Shares allotted as fully paid up Bonws Shares during the emmediately preceding frve years NIL MIL
[Fl  Equity shares buy-back in smmediately preceding free wears MiL MIL
(G} Shares hedd by haldingfuRtimate holdng company andfor their subsdiariesy’ assocates HEL MIL
[H)  The Beard of Directoss of the Company has recommended a final dividend ol Re. 005 per equity shane [5%) face value of Re, 1 each for the year ended March 31 2024, subject to the approval of

Sharehoiders.
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13 Orther eguity
Particulars As at Maich 31, 2025 Az at March 31, 2024
Rz, i Lacs Rz, in Lacs
Capital Reseree 2959 29,559
Seouriies Premium 170.18 ]
General Beserve 434729 440124
Retaired Earnings 4,619.41 Aaa2a9
Tedal 9,266.42 B,643.30

4] Capltal Resarve
It represenl the gain ol capital nature which mamly include the exceis of vahue ol nel asset sogumed gver comiideration pasd by 1he compary far busmess combmatan in earlier pears

18} Securitios Premium
Serurities premiuen is used 1 record The premum on ssoe of shares. This reserve s utfized in sccordance with the provisions aof the Ao
ICh  General Reserve
The Company has transferred a portion of the et profit of the Campany befare decaring dwidend to general reserve pursuant fo the earlier provisions of Comoanias A, 1556, Mandatory
transfer to general reserve is nat required under the Companies Act, 2003
(] Retained Earnings
Petaired marnings are the peofits that the Compary bas ssmed Gl date, less any fransfers to general reserve, dividends paid or other distebutions out af ressries to shareholders,

14 Financial Liabiities - Mon-currant: 8 fings

Particulars A5 at March 31, 2025 Az at March 31, 2024
Rs. on Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Secured
Term foans from banks - IMR Ml
Wehicke Term loans from banks - INR 20716 Ba.B0
Totml 333,87 B4,80

Amount of default as on the Balance Sheet date:

(2] Repaymert of loan HIL ML
|b] Interest on Losn HiL ML
Repaymeril term;

[#] The classification of lcarns between ourrent lisbibties and non -ourrent labikties continues basad on repayment schedule under respective agreements 25 no loans hawve been recalled dus to
non compiarce of conditions under any of 1the loan agresments,
M} Scheduled repaymenty: Cembractual repayments i case al loans from banks [ndwdmg Current matuities disdosed uider other Current linarcial BEabiigies:

Partioalars As at March 31, 2025 Az ot March 31, 2004
s, Lacs fis. n Lacs
Ligita (Fres years 16293 a5,34
Btween three [a live years 8.5 1065
Creer e peary 51.25 -

Refer note 23]b] (17) & {I1) an Inerest rate risk and Lguidity Risk respectively.
Security details:

Term Lean other than Yehicke Loars
Aforesaid Term Loans ane secuned by hypothecation/mertgage of company’s mowveable and im-maveable propertes. Further secured by the persanal guarantee of promater Directors of the
company and &arti tanners Ltd. which is the subssdiary of the compary

fch  Secured by hypothecation of vehide fmanced and are repéyabis in 36 to &) Equated Manthly instalments [ERMIs)

15 Dwelurrad vao liabilities [Net)

Particuilars A& at March 31, 7125 Az at March 31, 20724
s i Lacs As. in Lacs
T effect of items conshtuting deferred tox Gobhty
On difference between back balance and tax balance of fiued assets 4535 108404
On EPCG. IIHLS & Otker lems 167.39
Tedal Tax effect of items corstituling deferred tax Babdity L01x7a 1.084.04
Tora effect af e conshituting defedired Tor oiaels
Expenses allowable on payment basis and other items 19464 Z71.46
Toal Tan effect ab iters coratiuting deferrad fax assate 15464 7146
Mot Deferred Tax Liahility 812.10 Bl2.58

16 Other Non-current Liabllities

Particulars As at March 31, 1025 As at March 31, 2024
. i Lacs Rz, im Lacs
Deferred Revenue
Genet Grand urder IDLS 176,50 152,27
EPCH Obdgations 610,67 562,00
Totl TEL1T 71a.27

(3] Gowernment Grant under 1045, the deferrad grant income i recognized In Statement of Prafis and Loss on a systematic basis cyer the useful life of asset on which such grant is receted
subiject to camoliance of other terms & canddions of the scheme

(1]

Under EPCE scheme, the Company is committed to export prescribed times of the duty saved on impart of capital goeds over & spectfied perod of time apart from mainainieg average export
growth. in case such commaments are not met, the Company would be reguired to pay the duty saved aleng with interest to the regulstory autharities. Tne deferred grant income is
recagnized in Statement of Frofit and Loss on a systematic base aver the periods in which the related performance obligations are fuffili=d.
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Teotes forming part of the Consofidated Financisl Statements lor the year ended March 31, 2025

17 Financial Liabilities - Current: Barrowings

Particidars

As at March 31, 2025

R, in Lacs R, in Lacs

3. in Lacs.

As at March 31, 2024
Fs. in Lacs

Secured
‘Working Capital Loan From Saniks
Aupes Loans
la) Cash Credit
{b] Packing Credit
lg) Achance against bills sent on collection

Other Short tenm Borrawings
Fareign Curmency kan
iy Stard by line of CreditSBLCE

Current maturities of lang term barrowimgs
Ursocured loan

Tatal
Amount af default as an the Bafance Sheet date:
|al Repayment of lnan
ikl Interest an Loan

|A) - Secumay

0T A8
1,559.00
oah. 34 5,BA1.EF

&71.78

4881

14.52

6,697,285

KL

A32.08
4,368.48

2, 30044 7,100,856

529045

11.15%

775128

MIL
ML

Warking Capital Leans are primarily secured by hypothecation of present and future Current Assets and Acticrable Claims [z, Inventorkes, trade receivable ) book detits, outstanding maonjes,

receivable daims, bills and materials in fransie).

These are further cofaterally secured by extensian of charge aver moseable and immaveable properties of the company.

Further securad by pemsenal guarantes of promoter directar(s) of the company and Aarifl tenners ed, which i the subsiciany of the comaany,
1B} Srard by Line of CreditSBLCY are privsasily seoured by bypothacation of Plant ard machinery and raw matesial and are further setured by perional puarantes of promater directons) of the

company and Aarifi tarners id. which = the subsidiary of the company.

ICl  PRate of Interast

‘Working capitad credit facities canry interest rates ranging from T.80% o 8,500,

18 Financial Liabdlities - Current: Trade Payabile

Fanticilars

A5 at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Ri. in Lacs s, ir Lacs
[a| Total Dutstanding Dues to micro and small enterprises [refer note below| 22602 BDE.a2
o) Total Dutstanding Due to parties ather than micro and srall enterprises 4,397,539 303806

Tatal 4,624.01 3.646.54
Trade Payable apeing Schedule:
Particulars Péak Due Outstanding from due date/date of transaction Total

Less than 12 yoars 2 -3 years Mees than
- 1 yaar 3 years

s at March 31, 2025
Undiputed Dises
{1} MEME [Micro and Small Ertities) 11958 644 6
i) Dthers 1,599.30 262011 143,45 035 h.57 435799
Disputed Dises
i MEME [Micro and Small Entities) -
lily - Cithers

Total L.B18.58 2,626,535 149,45 0.35 IR.57 462400
s at March 31, 2024
Undisputed Dues
liy  MEME [Micro and Small Entriies) EO8.458 - B0S.42
lilf  Others 1,556.32 138239 68,17 15.65 15.53 30E06
Diputed Dues
li}  MEME [Microand Small Entries) .
lily - Others -

Tatal 2,164,580 1,382.39 68.17 15.65 15.53 3.646.54
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MNate; The company bas reguested confemation Fram Suppliers regarding thes registration [filling of Memorandurm) urder the Micrs, Small and Medum Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (the
MSMED Act). Accoerding ko the information available with the company, the following dsdoswres has been made in respect of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises:

Particulars. Asat March, 2025 A5 a1 March, 2004
R, in Lacs R, in Locs
lal  Principal amount and interest due theracn remalning unpald to any supglier at the end of the vear
Principal Amount 236,00 &08.48
Interest dise on ahone 4.00
b} Amourt of mterest paid by the company in terms of section 16 of the MEMED Acr, afang with the amount of the payment made to the il i
supplier bevond the appainted day during the vear
le b Amourt of interest due and payable for the pericd of delay m making payment {which have besn paid but beyond the appomted day
during the year] but without adding the interest specified under the MEMED Act ML HiL
[df  the amount of infesast accrued and resnaining unpesd at the end al the year 2.74 5.54
|=| the amount af further interest remaining due and payabile even in the succeeding years, until such date when the intenest dues abave
are actually padd tothe small enterprise, for the purpase af disafowance of a deductible sxpendiure under section 23 of tha MSMED ML HIL
At
19 Fnancial Liabilities - Current: Other Financial Liabilities
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 A at March 31, 2024
A in Ls As. in Lacs
[2] Bcak overdraft from banks 39461 11,23
b} Unclaimad Dhdidond* 1611 11.E5
lch  Dther Liakikties L396.90 822,61
Tatal 1,807.62 955.49
* Represents dividend amaurts either ned clalmsd or kept in sbeyance In aicordance with Saction 126 of the Companies Act, 2013
20 Other Current Liabilities
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 A at March 31, 2024
R in Lads RE. in Lacs
[2] Advance fram customers Pt E i) 182 57
b} Advance agairst sale of fmed assets 34835 450,10
lc)  BA-o-M waluation on foraand cover 9391 65,80
Tatal 65106 0047
21 Currant Liabllities: Provisions
Particulars A al Manch 31, 2025 A5 Bt March 31, 2024
Rs. in Lacs Ra. in Lacs
Privesian for Gratulty 753al 21481
Prowision lor current tag 17.06 7.83
Tatal IT0ET 22364
27 Rewenug from operations
Particulars 1024-25 2023-24
Re. in Lacs A5 in Lacs Rs. in Lacs RE. in Lacs
|a] Eafes f Intome fram aperations
{i) Gales (Expart & Overseas) 23,023.86 15,452 42
liip Exihiange Fluctubtion an Sabey [Export) #0711 19881
iii} Sales {indigenous) 150808 1,148.75
{refar Mote (c) below far break-up] ITa%05 11,800.58
{b] Tther aperating revenus
Export Intentives [refer Note {d] below for break-up} 1,483.81 1.079.29
Revenus from operations (gross) 28,512 86 22, 880.27
——
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED
Motes forming part of the G lidated Financial 5 far the yesr ended March 31, 2025
Pairticutars F0214.35 2033249
R, i Lacs Re. in Lacs
(€] Breakup af Safes
Finishad Loathar 11.825.60 9,416,894
Leather Shie and compaments 15,146.54 12,3654 .04
Dthers S6.61
Tatal 27,020,105 2180098
—
(d)  Details af other operating revenus
Expeet Incentives
Dty Draw Back / ROSL 1,190.54 84627
licorces/Entaloments 9337 233.02
Tatal 1,483.81 1.4079.29
23 Other income
Particulars i 2 S 2003-24
5, i Lacs RS- In Lacs
Interest income
- from: Fixed Deposit with Baris rmE: 2601
- racehepd from Incomse Tas = 3
Renl Received = E
Prafit on %ale of Property, Plant & Eguipments 27025 0.21
Deferred rovenue an EP0S & 10LS Subsidy BH.51 145,43
Exchaige Fluctuaticn 463 -
Misceflaneous Income 17.64 4341
Share of profit fram the firm 313
Accratian in investment .
Taotal 212,85 218,59
24 Cost of material consumed
Partaulars 2079-25 203324
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs RS, inLacs RS, in Lacs
Raw Matenial consumsad
(a} Raw Hide for sole 136.05 87.87
(b} Raw Hige for chrame 5,499.30 133748
el Wet Blue Lesther Chrome 25.44 43,06
{d) Upper for safety shoes 1, 062,07 1,629.87
(e} Finish leathes for shos upper snd shoes 2,167.24 2.504.93
N Cahers 353.06 1R5.63
RBaw Materal consumsed 5543 36 78804
Chemicals corsusmed 43173.14 3,163,712
Stores & Spares consumed 3,266.14 LEIRT9
Total 17,552.54 13,671.35
—
25 Purchase of stock in trade
Particulsrs HR4-I5 2023-24
Rs. in Lacs Bsin Lacs
(a} Finishad Leather (mcuding Salit| &677.15 609,66
(b}  Shoe Uppes S8B.TD 301.52
Total 1,265.85 911.18
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26 Increasefdecreass in

Fartikulars 2074-315 20313-74
B in Lacs R inLacs Ra. im Loty Ex. in Lacs
at e ok of the year

Finidmd G #5545 131005

Wk in gencess ERELE 145033

Sorap 2488 2036

TOTAL "A 1,98879 3290235
Inyenbonies at the end of the yvem

Finised Goods 125048 25545

Work in process 1597 45 EARLEE]

Serap 10,36 4 36

TOTAL'R' 3.27ean 19373
Decreasaffincraase| in Stocks [&-8] 27| i 291,50

47 _Errgloryun banufit

Particulary HOQA-25 HFEM

R, in Laci B b Lacs
Sadary, Wages and Borwus 1.0zu7 arala
Directors Remuneration T158 6553
Contribution 1o Provident and other funds o BE12
Contribution to Graturby Fund 402 210z
Warkmen and Stalf WeFare prpemes BE 1R TR0
Total 365.02 1,162 50

2B Anance cost

Farticulars 0225 I
!I_s_.ln Lmcs Hx i Lacs
Irbesil
- Tarm Ladn (A5 BE3
- Oihars 417.83 40621
apd de 41224
Eank Charges 93,12 Iral
Forelgn Bank Charges 14.20 1316
Tetlt —TE — B
23 Other expenses
Fartizulary 2024-1% T34
Hs.in Locs s, in Lacs B2 in Lace W5, in Lacs
Mlamaacturing Expenwes
hels Werk Chargin .122.43 1.550.4%
Pomar and Fusl ETRAT E45.67
Efftueint Troabment Expsinit 113 E8.55
Repairs and Maintenance
Buiking 17633 17367
- Mlackinery 196.93 145.34
IO 2,553.90
Selling and Datribubion Ligenses
Freght, Handling and Oither Sales and fistrigsgion Evpenses 167 48 1,104, 500
Cammision g Sale S M9£E
Onkne Seking Expersas B30T
Advartisamest and Publicity A7 15.31
Expectod Cradil Logs LnEs in1s
Bad Diedas - Proisionfwnice off 139.23 10768
212358 143597
Establehment Esperses
Rem an.o4 il
Rptes and Tases 22m 09,80
Insurance A5.1% S0rr
E£G.C Premium EE B .66
Communicalion tosl ASET A6.5F
Trawuling and Convepancs 379.E2 176,68
Repairs and Manenante - Others 92 E3 83,50
Printing and Stacoaary L3ar BTE
Legal and Frofessional Charges 6638 a1.02
Auditor's Remuneration {refer Mote () bekow} 3= 3
Miscebaneoue Esperees ez 155.82
Research & Oevelopmant Espernses. 10 2T
Excherge Qifference 1113 55M
Charity and fanation 14 11
Lizns et Sarle of Pragarty, Plasd B Equipments 1E R
[ it i el of i [E:- 1o}
Conpeata Soclal Rewpensibiity Expanies L5100 £3.4%
171359 1007.338
Total ﬁsﬂlﬂ 507921
sl Auditcs's remunsration comprises:
A quditor EE) 354
Total 323 .54
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Wotes farming part of the Conseldated Finandial Statements lor the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars 2004-25 -4
Fis, In Lacs . in Lacs R, I Lacs R, In Lacs
30 Earnéng per share [EPS)
{a) Prafi Por the year [Rs. bn Lacs] 664,40 57108
[b) Weighted average numbsr of sguity shares for the purpose of
of cakulatian of Basic and Diluged EFS 10,79,73,360 10,789,731 360
leh Meaminal valise of equity shares |Rupees| 1.0 Lom
[d} EP5- Basic and dilited [Rugpess pes share] L1 054
31 Capital and athar commitments
b Estirmated valie ol conlrstts remaming Lo be execuled on cagital
account {ret af advances) 1,500.81 25700
A Dther Commitments ML HIL
32 Contingent liabilities
it Contingent Liabifities in respect of:
(] Letter of Credit cpaned and outstanding B35.40 22743
() Claims against the company not acknowedged as deb MIL NIL

313 Disclosure pursuant to ind AS 12 "Employee Benefits™:
{a) Defined Cantribution Plam

The emaloyess of the Company are members of a state-managed retrement benefit plans namely Provident fund and Persion and Employee State insurance [E31] operated by the
Gavernment of India. The Comparsy is required to contribute a specfied percentage of payrod costs to the retiremient benefit and ES| schamaes.

The only obligation of the company with respect to such retirement and ather berefit plan is to make the specified contributions,
The Compariy has recognized the following amounts in the income Statement dunng the year under ‘Cantribution ta staff prosvident and other funds' [refer note 27

R, In Lacs
Particulars H024-25 2023-14
Employer's contristion to #F and FRF 20.59 BE.10
|Emplovar's contriution to ESIC 11,48 1202
Tital I0z.07 86,12 |

it Defined Benefit Plan

The emplayees Gratuity Fund Scheme, which 5 a delined benefit plan, s managed by the trust maintained with LIC The present value of obigation is determined based an sttuarial valaation
ming Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as gning rise to sdditional unst of employee benefit entitlernent and measures each unit s=paratedy ta build up

the finad abligation.

Particulars

Garatuify [Funded)]

aratuity {Funded]

March 31, J25

Parch 31, 20249

1A Bdovements in present value al delined benel obligaticn

Obfgations 25 at beginning af the vear 36507 340.29
Clmemnt serdce cost 45.26 39.52
Interest cost 25.54 433
Cusrant serdie corli@ution- ampliges - -
Past Service Cost = =
Plan amendment
Remeasurement [ar Actuarial [gainkfLass) arisng from - =
- charge in demagraphic Sssumption F 2
- change in financial assumptan mn.re 186
ANpeTENcE varlance 124.27) (1232}
- oihers - -
Benefits paid {17.51) (13.61)
Present value of defmed benefit abligation as at end of the year 409.23 368,07
18} BAowements in the Tair value of plan assets
Fam value of plan adsets ot beginning of the vear 154 26 126.08
Investment Income 1080 .01
Raturn on plan assets, excluding amaunt recogrisad i met Interest expanse o7 105
Auctual contrititions by the employer 736 3TT3
Employes contribution - -
Benefits paid {17.51] [1%.61)
Faur walup of plan assets a5 at end of the year 155.562 15428

124



S

UPER TANNERY LIMITED

[C) Amount recognized in the bafsnce sheet

o

Prasent value of defined benedit chligation as at end of the year
Fair value af plan assets as at end of the year

Fundled status {Sunplusdefict])

Effect of balance sheet asset limit

Uinrecopnised past service cost

Met asset/|liatility} recagnised in bafance sheet

Nat asset/|liability) recognised in balance sheet at beginning of tha yoar
Expende recagnised in Ststement of Profit and Loss

Expanse recognised In Other Comprehensive Income

Actual confributions by the employer

et acquisitionbusiness combination

Net asset/|liakility) recagnised in bakance sheet at end of the year

b Amounts recogrized in the statement of prodfit and loss
Current service cost
Imterest cast
Lossf{paing an setthement
Past sarvice cost
Total

[E] Amounts recognised in other camprebensive income

Actuarial [gain) | loss dua to
change in demagraphic assumptan
-charge in finandal assumption
SXPETHINGE varianoe
-gihers
Eaturn on plan assats, axchuding amaunt recognised in net Interest capanse
Remeasurament [ar actissrial [guih]."lus&barhlng dige o hiset ceiling
Total

[Fl  Category of plan assets

G

IH

Fupids managed by Insurer

I Sensitrity analysis
DED an hase assumpiions
A, Discourt Rate
1, Effect due ta 1.00% increase n discount rate
2. Effect due to L00% decrease in discount rate
B Salary Escalation Rate
1, Effect due 1o 1.00% increase in salary escalation rate
2, Effect due 10 1.0D% decrease in salary escalation rate
L Withdrawal Rate
1, Effiect due ta 507 increase in withdrawal rate
2. EMect due 1o 5009 decresse in withdrawal rate
D. Martality Rate
1, Effert due to 100 increase in mortality rate
2, Effect due o 107 decresse in martality rate

Risk Exposure - Asset Yolanlity

6, 6%
7455

B.50%
-5.67%

0385
D428

-I05%
L0dse

4833
15562
[253.61}

125361}
[#14.51)
G030
114,24}
736

{25361}

45.26
15.04

G030

10,78
{2821}

10,71}

(1414}

#0523

EREN )
439.71

435.81
386,03

A07.ER
A10.94

409,04
408.41

100

6.51%
T.0%

6.H5I%
-6.04%

-0.23T%
0.30%

-0.03%
0.04%

ELENE)
15426
[214.81]

{214.81]

[214.21}
5484
{1651}
3771

{21483}

3352
15.32

185
{18.32]

{1.05}

[16.51)

363,07

345403
3750

9462
MGTE

ELnR
3017

36595
36920

The plan Eabilities are calcfated wsing a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; f plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit. Mast of the plan asset investments is in

Tized income securities with high grades and in govemment securities,

These are subject to interest rate rsk and the fund manages mterest rate risk derivatives to minemize risk to an acceptable level. & portion of the funds are invested in eguity securities ard in

alternative mvestments % which have low cormelation with equity securities

The eguity securities are expected to earn a return in excess of the discount rate and contribute to the plan deficit.

Actarial pssumptons

Actuarial valuation as at the year-end was done in respect of the aforesaid defined benefit plans based on the following assumptians:

il General assumgtions
- Descawnt rate {per annum}
- Withdrawal rate
- Rate ol increase in tompensslan

il MortaBty rates condidesad are ay per the published rated in the India Asured Lives Bprtaity [2002-14) Ulimate

6.60%
2,00%
B.50%

T.00%
.00
.50

iii] Leave encashment: Lease balance as at the end of the calendar year is encashed and bafance leawes earned thereafter to the extent not avaided by the emplayees are provided in the

ALCOUNTS,

Wl The discount rate showld be based upan the market yields available on Government bands at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the Rabilitis

w| The expectod rate of refurn on plan assets &= based an market axpectation, at the begnning of the wear, far ratwns over entira life af the related obligaticn.

wi] The assumption of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuatian, takes account of inflation, seniority, promatian, supply and demand ard other refevant factors.

vil] Lizbility an account of long term absences has been actuarially valued as per Projected Unit Credit Method,

W

W] Short term comgensated absences have been provided on aoial basis,
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(I Delimed berefit liability and employer contributions:

I} Expected comtribustions ta past-smplayment benefit plans in next year R 207 40 lxcs Az5.256,53 ks
I} Thee weighted average duration of the defined berefit obligation is 13 years. The expected maturity analysis of undiscaunted gratuity benefits is as follows:
Rs. in Lacs
Period 31032025 31.03.3024
1 ¥ear 16057 11985
2toS Years 90.05 Bl.58
6 1o 10 Years .99 110,22
Kare Than 10 Y 441,47 431195
Total TRO.35 T43.60
34 Disdlosure pursuant to ind AS 108 "Operating Segment”
The comgarny & aperating mainly in single segment i.e. Leather and leather products; hence re disclosure is required in terms of lnd A5 108
35 Expenditure on Research and Development
B in Lacs
Particulars 2024-25 23-24
Bevenue Expondifure 1.8% 2.1
Tatal 188 272}

36 Disclasure pursuant to nd AS 116 "Leaasas™:

{a)  ‘Where the company is Lessor
The coenpany has ot entered inko any Lease arrargaments,

{bl  ‘Where the company is Lessee
The company has not entered info any Lease arrangements,

37 Financial Instruments

lii Capital Maragement
The Company's cagital management is intended te create value for shareholders by fadlitating the meeting of long-term and shart-term goals of the Company.
The Company determines the amaunt of capital required on the basis of anmual operating plans snd long-term praduct and other strategic imestment plans. The funding reguirements sre
met through equity and ather lang-termy'shart-term borrowings. Thi Company's pobicy is aimed at combination of short-term and long-term borrowings
The Company monitoes the capital structure an the basis of fotal delbt to equity ratic and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Comparmy

The capital structure of the comparny consiits of debt, which inchades the borrowings Including temporary overdrawn balance , cash and cash equivalents inchuding short term bank deposits,
equity comprising issuad capital, reserves and non-controling interests. The gearing ratia far the year & as unden

(A= In L:khsil
articulars As at March 31, 2005 As at harch 31, 2024
Dbt 693115 7.835.04
Less: Cash and cash eguivalant
73174 08,80
het debs (A} 6,198.41 753114
Total equity |3) 10,346.15 272303
Diabs Equity Ratio (4/B| 060 077

[ii) Categories ol financial mstruments
Calculazion of Fair Values
The fair values of the financial assets and abilities are defined as the price that would be receved te 568 an 3sset of paid te transfer & labibty in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The following metheds and assumptions were used to estmate the fir values of fmancial instruments:

a) The Fair walues of mvedtment in guated Evestment in equity shares iy based on the current bid price of respective inyestmeant as ot the Balance Sheet date.

b} The Fair value of the leng-term borrowings carrying Floating-rate of mterest & not impacted duwe 1o interast rate changes and will not be significantly diffesent fram their (aomdng amounts a5
there is no significant change in the under-lying credit risk of the Company |snce the date of inception of the kans)

c) The fair value of loans from barks and other fnandcal indebledness as well &5 other ran current financsl labilites is estimated by discounting Tuture cash Fows using rates currently
avaiianle for debt or similar terms and remaining maturities.

d) Cash and cash eguivalerts, rade receivables, other financal assets, rade payables, and othar financial liabdites have fair valies that approzimate 10 their carmying amounts due o their
shart-term nature.
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(Fea. i Lakha
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Carrging value Fair value Carrying walue Fair valys
Financial Assets
Financial assets measured at faer valun
Investments measured at
i. Fair value thraugh other comiprebensive income 16.04 1617
ii. Fair vabue thraugh profic and lods 0.52 052
Financial assats measured a1 amortized cost
Trada Receivables 4,988,55 5,505.21
Cash and cash aguivalents 73174 304,501
Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivatents 644,59 Toa13
Other financial assets 917.78 BAZ.53
Tatal 7,283,566 16.56 7.596.17 16,69
Financial Liatilities
Financial liabilities maaswed at smortized cost
|Berrowings 6,5979,55 - 76723 -
Trade payables 4,397,549 303806
Other financial liahilities 1,758.81 %3430
Tatal 13,136.76 - 11,829.59 -
i} Income, eipenses, gains of losses on linardial nstruments R In Lacs
Particulars Far the year ended Far the year erded
March 31, 2IJ}j| March 31, 2024
Financlal assets measured st amorized cost
Allowances far doubdful receivables (1083 (10.15]
Financlal assets measured at fair vakue through Profit and Less mﬂﬁll el
Financial assets measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income L .

Fair value measurements recognized in the balance sheet:

Thee following tabie provides an analysts of financial instruments that ané measured subsequent 1o Initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 110 3 based on the degree to which the
fair value is chservable.

-Live] 1 Fair value messuremnents e those derived Frorm quated peced [unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets ar liabilities

Aewel 2 fair valise measuraments are thase derived from Inpists other than queted prices included within Leved 1 that are abservable for the asset or liahllity, esther directly |l.e, as prices) or
indiractly [i.e. derived From prices].

Ll 3 fair value measurernents are those derived froen valuation technsques that incluge inputs lor the asset or liability that are not based on observable market dats (uncbservable inputs),

livh Financial risk rnanagement chjectives:

The Cormparnys prindpal firancial Babilities comarize ol kaan froem banks and Ninancial institutions, and 1esde payablac. The mas purpose of thase lmancial liabilitsss 5 Lo raise Fnance T the
Company's eparatians, The Company has verous financlal assets such 35 trade recenablies, cash and shart term deposits, which arise directly from its cperations.

The main risks arising from Company’s financial mstruments are foreign currency risk, credit msk, market rsk, interest rate risk and liguidity risk. The Baard of Directors review and agree
palicies for managing each of these risks,

{al Credit risk:

Cradit sk is the risk ol linancial ks (o the Company il 8 custamer of counterparty B0 a financial instrument fails 1o meet its contraciual cbligations, and arises princigally from the Company's
trade and other recefvables, cash and cash equivalents and athar bank balances, The maximum exposure to crodit risk in case af all the financial instruments covered below is restricted to
their respective carrying amournt.

Trade and Other receivables

Customer credit i managed by each business unit subject ta the Company's established polices, procedures and control refatang to customer credit risk management. Trade receivables are
non-irterest baaring and are gererally on 90 days credit term, Credin lmits are estabilished for all customers basad on internal rating critesa, Outstandng customer recehables are repularly
meanitored

The Cornpany messures the expected cradi loss of rade recehvables based on historical trecd, industry practices and the business emdanment in which the antity cperates. Loss rates are
nased pn actual credit loss experience ard past trends

Expected credit loss ascassment Tor custamers:
Tha comparsy is making provisions on trade recefvables based on Expected Crodit Lass (ECL) model. The recenciliaticn of ECL s a5 falleas:

R In Lakhs]
Particulars 2024-15 2033-24
Impairment loss as per ECL recognised f|reversed] 10,82 10.15
Additional Provision | write off 132.33 107.68
Amaunt debited to Profit and Loss 150.15 | 117.83

Othor financial assets

The Campany maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks and derivative contracts,

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 73174 Lacs at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 3034: Rs. 304.9 Lacs). Cash and cash eguivalents ane held with reputable and oredit-warthy
hanks

Individual risk lmals aee sef lor each counter-party based on linancial position, credil ratag and past experience. Credit limits ard concentration of expasures ara solively monitored by the
Management of the Company,
Other than trade and other receivabiles, the Company has no other financial zss=ts that are past due bui not impaired

|} Market risk:
Market Risk i the risk that the fair value o futene cash flows of a finencial instrument will luctuste because of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency
risk, imterest rate rsk and price risk,
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|Vl Foreign currency risk

The Company is sxpesed to cusmenoy risk on account of @5 operating and finanong actsaties, The functional currency of the Company s Indian Bupee, Company's saposuee s mainly
denominated in USD, GBR and Euro. The exchangs rates have changed substantially in recent periods and may continue to fuctuate substanzally in the futurs, The Company has putin place s
Financlal Risk Managemant Paolicy to identify the maost effective and efficlent ways of managing the currency risks, The Company uses derivative instruments (maindy forelgn exchange
lorwasd contracts) to mstigate the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rate.

The Company do not use derivative financial instruments for trading of speculative purpases.

|1} interast rate risk:

Interast rate risk is measurad by using the cash flow sensitivity far changes in variable interest ratas. Any movemant in the reference s could have an Impact an the Company's cash fiows
as well as costs, The Company also wes a mic of interest rate sersitive financial instruments to manage the liguidsty and fund requirements for its day to day coerations like shart-term loans.

Ivierest rate sensdtivity analysis:

A at Barch 31, 2025 intorest braring financa! llabdity |seoured loan fram banks| stood at Bs. 693115 Lacs, was subjoct to varlable interast ratos. Increase/decreass of 50 basls points in
Interest rates at the balance sheet date would rasutt in decraasefincrease in profit bedose tan of Rs, 34,66 Lacs.

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 50 basis points interast rate, This caloulation also assumss that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculased
based an risk exposures autstanding as a1 that date. The period end balances are noll necessanily representative of the average debt autstanding during the perad

This analysi=s sssumes that all other variables, inparticular foreign curency rates, rermain constant,

Fair vatue of finandal irstruments:

Al firancial assets are mitizly recognized at fair value of consideration paid, Sunsequently, financial assats ane camed a1 fair value ar amertized cost less impairment. Wnere non = darivative
limancial assets are carried ab fair vatue, gairs and losses on re- messurement are recognized directly in eguity unless the financial assets have been designated as being held at fair value
through profit ar koss, in which case the gans and losses are recognized directly in the corscfidated statement of profit and loss. Financisd assets are desgnated as besag held at fair walue
through prafit ar lass when it s necessary to reduce measurement inconsistency for refated assets and liabilities. All financial kafilites other than derivatives are mitially recagrzed at fair
valup of considaration recetsed net af transaction costs as apprepriate [intiad cost) and subseguently carried &t amartized cost,

[} Ligidity risk:
The Cornpany fellows a Conervative palicy of ensunag sufficient liguadity at 2 times threugh 8 strategy aof profitable growth, efficient lquidivy at =8 times through @ strategy af prafiable
growth, =ficient working capital management as well a5 prudent capital expenditure. The Company has 2 averdralt facility with banks to support any temporary funding reguiremernts.

The Cormpany belieyes 1hat curieimt cash and cash equisalents, tied up Bocrowing lises and cash low that @& gereraled lrom opessions & sulfdient 1o meet requirernenly, Scoardingly, Bquidity
risk is peroefved to be low.

Liquidiy tabda:
Liqquidity tabies grawn up based an the cash flows of irancial Rabilities based on the earkest date on which the Company can be reguired to pay is disclosed at Mate ma, 43,

(¥] Other price sk
The Compary i nat expased to any sgnificant equety price risks ansing from equety investments, as an 315t March 2025, Equity inwestments are held for strategic rather than trading
purpases, The Company does not activaly trade these mvasiments,

(Wil Eguity price sersitivity anabysis:
There is na exposune o equity price risks & at the reperting date or &5 at the previous reparting date.

33 Disclosure pursuant to knd AS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets”:

The campany has recognised cantingent liabities a3 dscoied in Note 32 shove and a3 such ne provision is required 1o be made. Mo provision was outstanding a8 at the beginming and 21 the end of
the year,

39 Discloswre pursuant to knd AS 10% “Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations™:
There are no such asset keld for safe and discontinued operations as on March 31, 2025,

A0 Discloswre of retated parties/related party ransactions/balances purseant 1o Ind AS 24 "Related Party Dischosures”

bl.] Mame of Related Parties and nature of relationship
i, loint Ventures il

Il Associates with whom transactions were carried oul during the year il

jii. Key Management Persennel (KMP) & Relatives:

al Mr, Iftikhard Amim —Maraging Directar gl M. B K, fawasthi - Company Secrefary

B) Mr, Igbal Absan = Directar Rl Wr, ¥ 5 Eatiyar - Ran Execative and Indeperdant Diractar
c} Mr, Vequarul Amine Man Executee and Non Indeperdent Directar il Mr, Mubashirul Aman {Son of M. lgbal Shsan|

d} Mr. Irran Saddioui — ‘Whole time Director il Mir. Tanveerd Amin |Son of Mr. iftisharul &min)

| Mr, Arshad Khan - ‘Whele time Director Kl Wir. Khaiid Sayeed (Brather of &e. bmran Siddqui}

fl W, Mok Imran — Whake time Director 1| Wr, Umairal Arin (3an of M igbal Ahsan)

) BAr Almad Faraz Amin (Son of #Ar tikharul &min| nj wis, Farha Fatima (KPR relative)

lu. Dthers: Enterprise ower which KMP or relatives of KMP are able to exercise significant influence:
al Amin Tannery Lud dl Industrial infrastractung Services (1) Lnd
b} Amin Colonizers & Deviopers Lid | Borwird Frills LLP
g} Basthar industrisl Pallution Contred Campany
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(B} (i} Disclosure of related party transactions during the year {in ordinary course of b

at arm benghth price) Summary:

Transactions Associates Other related parties KMP and Relatives
As at [ for the year ended As at [ for the year ended As at [ for the year ended
31.3.25 31.3.24 31.3.25 31.3.24 31.3.25 31.3.24
Purchases of materlals / finished goods - - 87.50 281.24 -
Sale of materials [ finished goods 16087 134.66 -
Services (Job work) - 0.0
Donation 10.66 13.51
Rent received 072 072 - -
Remuneration/sitting fee - - 143.76 120,79
Recelvables (Met) 6410 113.07 - -
Payables (Trade payable & other liabilities) 1.13 118.E3 19.27 35,98
Loans and Advances
Inwvestmemnts refer Note No. 3
{ii] Detail of related party transactions during the year (in ordinary course of business at arm lenghth price)
Mame of related party & Transactbons Assoclates Other related parties KMP and Relatives
A at [ for the year ended As at [ for the year ended As at f for the year ended
31.3.25 31.3.24 31.3.25 31.3.24 31.3.25 31.3.24
Purchases of matarials / finished goods
Amin Tannery Lid 67.68 268.86
Bowvinl Frills LLP - 20403 1238 -
87.90 281.24
1 nish
Amin Tannery Lid 108.70 110038
Baowini Frills LLP 52.17 24.28 -
160.87 134.66 -
Services (Job Waork)
arnin Tannery Lid o9
Industrial Infrastructures Services Hnr]'r:lj
009
ation
Arnin Wetfare Trust 10.66 13.51 -
1066 1351 -
Rent received
Boini Frills LLP 072 0.72
072 .72
Mame of related party & Transacthons Assoclates Other related parties KMP and Relatives
313325 31.3.24 31.3.25 31.3.29 31.3.25 31324
Commission paid
Ber. Iftikharul Amin 2.00 2.00
M. Igbal Ahsan 2.00 2.00
Remuneration/sitting fee
B, tikharul Amin 24,00 24.00
B Igbal Ahsan 1400 24,0
Mr. Imran Siddigue .08 roa
Mr.Arshad Khan - 438 4.38
br. Maohd Imran 3.94 31.94
mr. Mubashirul Amin 26.83 1R.35
Belir. Ahmad Faraz Smin 573 5.73
br. Tamyeerul Amin 15.18 15,18
Bbr. Khalid Sayeed 185 1.76
btr. Umairul Amin 21.33 13.55
Farah Fatirma 6.41
BAr. R.K. Awasthi 300 1.82
143,76 127.51
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[C] Outstanding balances with related parties;

I Recewablas {Mes)
Amin Tannery Lid
Boreini Frills LLF

|6] Payables [Trade pa

Bvini Frills LLP

Amin Tannesy Lid

Arnin Welfara Trust

r, Iftikharul Amin

hr. Igkal Aksan

P, Irran Saddigue

ir Arshad Khan

I, Mubasharul Amin

tar. Ahmad Faraz Amin

i, Tanveerul Amin

M. Khalid Sayesd

e, Umairul Amin

i, R.K, Awasthi

|@i} Loans and Advances
Amin Weifare Trust

{0y Mo amount has been written offfback or provided as doubtful debts during the yeas in respect of related partles,

le & other Rabalities

- - 55,51 216
560 1m
64,10 113.07
= : - 118.83
113
.00 14,90
- - - ’ .00 127
5 - - £ 138 138
- z . - 0.8 088
= H E H 113 15.44
113 116
288 291
. - - . 039 038
- - - - 103 123
. - - . 045 [XE
5 - 113 11883 1827 L)

6] Key Managerial Parsannel are entitled to post-emplayment benedits and other long term employes berefits recognized as per Ind AS 19 - ‘Employee Benefits’ in the financial
statements, As these employee benefits are lurmg sum amounts provided on the bass of acuanal valuation, the same is not included above,

41 Remuneration lo Whole Time Direciors

Partiulars 2024-25 1023-24
|2] Short Tarm Employen Benefits [Salay) 6273 5131
|b) Commission to Directors 4.0 4,00
€} Contribution to defimed contribution plan [PF) 06T 067

Tatal 67.40 65.98

4z Additianal information pursuant to Scheduba 0 ta the Act for the year ended March 31, 2025 of enterprises consolidated as subsidiary and associates

Nat Assets Lo, total agsets Shara In Profit or (Loss] Share in Other Comprahensive | Share In Total Comprahansive

Marme of the company minus total lkabilities incams Iricome
As % of Armournt [Rs. As 5% of Amount s % ol Amount As Kool Armount
comsalkdated Inlacs) | comsobidated  (Rs. In Lacs) consolidated  (Rs. nlacs) | consolidated  (Rs, bn Lacs)
net assets profit or loss othar total
comprehensive comprehensive
income income
Parent Company
Supar Tannery Limited 103.96% 10,809.78 108935 T26.16 100,005 10.21 108, 78% 736.37
Subsidiaries - Foreign
Super Tannery (LLK.) Ld. -3.35% |348.86) 0.659% 4,62 - - 0.68% 4.62
Pigneer Investment Fico -0.45%, (47.93) -6.55% (43.53) - -5,49% 143,93
Supsr |tala SR -0.52% 154,01) 4. 71H (31.39) - . -4.64% 131.3%]
Subsidiaries - Domestic
Aarifi Tanners Ltd 0.015% 088 ek .61 - - 0.05% 6l
Secure Salety Lid -0.28% (29.43) -L03% |6.83) - -1.02% 16.85]
Ha London Fashions 0,245 15.02 2.25% 15.02 - 212% 15.02
Super Corparation Limited 0.01%, Q.70 DOFH 0.0 . - 0.03% .20
Total Subsidiariss 99.50% 10,346.15 99.65% E6d.40 100% 1021 95.66% a4 61
Mon contralling interess in all the
tsubsidiarins 0,505 52.20 -1.35% 12.32) - - -0.39% [2.32]
| Tatal 100.00% 10,398.35 9% B62.08 :.ml 1021 % 672,29
43 Disclosure pursuant to ind AS 1 "Presentation of Financial $tatements”,
|a] Current labilities expected to be settled within twelve manths and alter twelve months fram the reparting date:
R in Lacs
MNote As @t Mareh 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Mo, Within After Total Within After Total
Farticur twalve twelve el Tweben
manths months months manths

Borrowings 6,697.28 6,697,238 775124 - 775124
Trade and ather payahles 4,624.01 4,624.01 3,.646.54 - 3,646.54
Qther financial Babilities 1,807.62 - 1,B07.62 85549 95549
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(0] Current assets expected to be recoverad within twelve months and after twelve months from the reporting date:

RS in Lacs
MNaote As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Mo, ‘Within After Taotal Within After Total
Particulars twoive twelue twelve twelve
mnnths months minths manths
Inventores 5.565.08 - 5.565.08 5.663.40 - 5.663.40
Trade Recelvable 4, 988.55 4, 9B3.55 5,905.21 - 5,905.21
Other Financial Assets g17.78 - 917.78 68253 - GE2.93
Other Current Assets 1,713.32 . 1,713.32 184202 . 1,842.02

A4 Additicnal Begulatory Informatioe

Additional Regulatory Infarmation pursuant to Clavse BL of General fnstructions for preparation of Balance Sheet a4 given in Part | of Division || of Schedule 1 to the

Companies Act, 2013, are given at respectrer place(s] to the extant relevant and are not of repeatative nature with no additional imformation, the same are diclosed
appropriately in standalone financial statemaents.

45 Figuras of the previows year have been regrouped rearranged wheraver required Iin order to make them comparable with those of current year, Figures have been rounded off to the
naarest fupess in lacs.

As per our amached report of even date Far and on benalf of the Board

For Kapoor Tandon & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registraticn Na, 000520

Mg, Imran
Director (Finance] & CFO
DIN:O0D37E2T

Iftilharul Armin
Managing Director
DEM:0D03T424
Diwyank Migam
Partrar

M. No, 438443

Place: Kanpur

E. K, Awasthl
Date: 29.05.2025

Company Secretary
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

CIN:L19131UP1984PLCO06421
Regd. Office :187/170,Jajmau Kanpur-208010

Flease complete the attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of Meeting Hall and also bring your copy of the enclosed

Annual Report.
ATTENDANCE SLIP
| hereby record my presence at the 417 Annual General Meeting of the company held on Tuesday, 30th September, 2025.
Regd. Folic Mo. ‘ ‘ oP o ‘

No.of shares ‘ ‘ Client 1ID* ‘

Wame of the Share holder (in block letters)

Signature of the shareholder or proxy

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

CIN:L19131UP1984PLCO0G421
Regd. Office :187/170.Jajmau Kanpur-208010

PROXY FORM /| FORM NO:MGT-lI
(Pursuzant to section105(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 193} of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rule, 2014).

e-mail Id:
Mame of the member|s): :
Folio No,/™ Client 1d;
Registered Address
*DP Id:
1'We, being the member(s) of aof shares of Super Tannery Limited, hereby appoint:
1 __af having e-mail id ar failing him
2. of having e-mail id or failing him
3. of having e-mail Id

and whose signature(s) are appended below as mylour proxy 1o attend and vole (on a poll) for me/us and on my/ our behalf at the
41" Annual General Meeting of the Company, o be held on Tuesday, September 30'2025 at 09.A.M. at 187/170 Jajmau, Kanpur,

208010 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
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** | wish my above Proxy to vole in the manner as indicated in the box below:

Resolutions Far Against
ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Adoption of Audited Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended
March 31, 2025 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors.

2.Declaration of Dividend.

3.Re-appointment of Mr. Vegarul Amin, whao retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment,

4.Re-appointment of Mr. Yogendra Singh Katiyar, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointmeant,

S.Appointment of M/s Kapoor Tandon & Co (Registration No.000952C). as Auditors of the
Company, and fix their remuneration,

SPECIAL BUSINESS | Special /Ordinary Resolutions)

6. Re- appointment of Mr. iftikharul Amin (DIN: 00037424) as the Managing Director of the
Company for period of 3 vears w.e.f 30.08.2025.

7.Re- appointment of the Mr. Igbal Ahsan (DIN: 00037445) as the Joint Managing Director of the
Company for period of 3 years w.e.f 30.09.2025.

8.Re- appointment of Mr. Imran Siddigue (DIN: 00037552) as the Whole Time Director of the
Company for period of 3 years w.e.f 30.09.2025

9.Re- appointment of the Mr. Arshad Khan (DIN: 00037655) as the Whole Time Director of the
Company for period of 3 years w.e.f 30.09.2025.

10. Re- appointment of Mr. Mohd Imran (DIN: 00037627) as the Whole Time Director of the
Company for period of 3 yvears w.e.f 30.09.2025.

11. Donation to charitable and other funds not directly related to the business of the Company.

12. Appointment of Mfs K.N Shridhar & Associates (FCS NO: 3882) as the Secretarial Auditor
af the Company for a term of five consecutive financial year commencing from 2025-2026.

13. Enhancement of remuneration of Mr. Mubashirul Amin holding an office or place of profit in
the Company for the monthly remuneration of Rs. 4,50,000 (Rupees Four Lakh Fifty Thousand).

14. Enhancement of remuneration of Mr. Umairul Amin holding an office or place of profit in the
Company for the monthly remuneration of Rs. 4,00,000 {(Rupees Four Lakhs).

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

Signed day of 2025 Aftor
Signature of Shargholder Revenue
Stamp
Signature of first proxy holder Signature of second proxy holder Signature of third proxy holder
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NOTE:

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less
than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company

carmying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person of
shareholder,

This is only optional. Please put a X' in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the 'For' or
‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as helshe thinks
appropriate.

Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes.

In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint holders should be stated,
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED
CIN : L19131 UP 1984 PLC 006421
Registered Office ; 187/170, Jajmau Road, KANPUR - 208 010,
Phone No. ; 7522000370, 371, 372 Fax MNo. : 91-512-2460792
Website | www.supertannery.com E-mail : share@supertannery.com

BALLOT FORM

1. Mame and Registered address of the
Sole/First named Shareholder
{In block letters)

2.  Mame of the Joint Holders, if any

3. Registered Folio Mo./DP 1D No*
(*Applicable to investors holding Shares in Demat Form)

4. Number of Equity Shares held

5. |/We hereby exercise my /Our Vote(s) in respect of the following resolutions to be passed at the 41st Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 30th September, 2025 for the business stated in the
notice dated 13" August, 2025 by sending my/our assent or dissent to the said Resolution by placing the (X) atthe
appropriate box below.

Please Mention No. of Shares

RESOLUTION NUMBER: FOR AGAINST | ABSTAIN

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Adoption of Audited Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss for
the year ended March 31, 2025 together with the Reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors’ thereon.

2. Declaration of Dividend,

3. Re-appointment of Mr. Vegarul Amin, who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4. Re-appointment of Mr. Yogendra Singh Katiyar, who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

5. Appointment of M/S Kapoor Tandon & Company Chartered Accountants
Kanpur as Auditor of the Company and fix their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS: (Special Resolution/ Ordinary Resolution)

6. Re- appointment of Mr. Iftikharul Amin (DIN: 00037424) as the Managing
Director of the Company for period of 3 years w.e.f 30.09.2025.

7. Re- appointment of the Mr. Igbal Ahsan (DIN: 00037445) as the Joint
Managing Director of the Company for period of 3 years w.e.f 30.09.2025.

8. Re- appointment of Mr. Imran Siddique (DIN; 00037552) as the Whole
Time Director of the Company for period of 3 years w.e.f 30.09.2025

9. Re- appointment of the Mr, Arshad Khan (DIN: 00037655) as the Whole
Time Director of the Company for period of 3 years w.e.f 30.09.2025,
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Please Mention No. of Shares

RESOLUTION NUMBER: FOR AGAINST | ABSTAIN

10, Re- appointment of Mr. Mohd Imran (DIN: 00037627) as the Whole Time
Director of the Company for period of 3 years w.e.f 30.09.2025.

11. Donation to charitable and other funds not directly related to the
business of the Company.

12. Appointment of K.N Shridhar & Associates (FCS NO: 3882) as the
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of five consecutive
financial year commencing from 2025-2026.

‘13_ Enhancement of remuneration of Mr. Mubashirul Amin holding an office
or place of profit in the Company for a monthly remuneration of
R=.4.50,00 (Rupees Four Lakh Fifty Thousand)

14. Enhancement of remuneration of Mr. Umairul Amin holding an office or
place of profit in the Company for a monthly remuneration of Rs.4.00,00
{Rupees Four Lakhs)

Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form

Place- Kanpur
Date. 30.09.2025 Signature of Shareholder

Note:

T

This form should be completed and signed by the members. In case of Joint members holding this form should be
completed and signed (as per the specimen signature(s) registered with the Company) by the first named
member and his absence, by the next name member. Unsigned ballot form will be rejected.

The ote may be accorded by recording the assent in column 'FOR’ or dissent in column "AGAINST' by placing
an X mark in the appropriate Column,

In case of Shares held by Companies, Trust, Society, etc the duly completed ballot form should be accompanied
by a certified copy of board resolution,

The Scrutinizers decision of the validity of the ballot form shall be final.

The Company is also offering e-voting facility as an alternate, for all the members to enable them to cast their vote
electronically instead of dispatching physical ballot form. The detailed procedure of e-voting is sent to you along
with notice of this Annual General Meeting.

If a member has opted for e-voting, then he/she should not vote by physical ballot also and vice-versa. However,
in case members cast their vote both via Physical Ballot and E-Voting then voting through e-voting shall prevail
and voting done by physical ballot be treated as invalid.

Amember desiring to exercise vote by physical ballot may complete this ballot form and send it to the Scrutinizer
Mr. K.N Shridhar & Associates 111&108, Chandralok Complex Birhana Road Kanpur- 208001.

Members may please note to bring copy of this ballot form to the meeting hall if they are coming to attend the
Annual General Meeting personally.
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